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Chartered Accountants
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of Zuari Infraworld India Limited
REPORT ON THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

OPINION

We have audited the accompanying Consolidated Financial Statements of Zuari Infraworld India Limited
(“hereinafter called as “Holding Company”) and its subsidiaties listed in Annexure I, which comprises the
consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2025, the consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss (including
Other comprehensive income) and consolidated statement of changes in equity and cash flow statements
for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information. (hetreinafter referred to as “the

consolidated financial statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
accompanying consolidated financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner
so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted
in India, of the consolidated state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2025 and of consolidated loss,
consolidated changed in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section
143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in
the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our repott.
We are independent of the Group and its associates in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to out
audit’ of the financial statements under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules
thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements
and the Code of Ethics.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for

out opinion.
OTHER INFORMATION

The Holding Company’s management and Board of Directots are responsible for the preparation of the
other mformation. The other information comprises the information included in the Board of Directors
report but does not include the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the othet mfogm;ld we do not

express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. .
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In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
financial statements, ot out knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that thete is a matetial misstatement of
this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITY OF MANAGEMENT FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Holding Company’s Board of Directots is responsible for the preparation and presentation of these
consolidated financial statements in term of the requirements of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) that
give a true and fuir view of the consolidated financial position, consolidated financial performance and
consolidated cash flows of the Group including its associates in accordance with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the
Act. The respective Board of Ditectors of the companies included in the Group and of its associates are
responsible for maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act
for safeguarding the assets of the Group and for pteventing and detecting frauds and other itregularities;
selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are
reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
televant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which have been used for the putpose
of preparation of the consolidated financial statements by the Directors of the Holding Company, as
aforesaid.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective Board of Directots of the companies
included in the Group and of its associates and jointly controlled entities are responsible for assessing the
ability of the Group and of its associates and jointly controlled entities to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless the Board of Directors either intends to liquidate the Group ot to cease operations, or has no
realistic alternative but to do so.

The tespective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group and of its associates and jointly
controlled entities are responsible for overseeing the financial reporting process of the Group and of its
associates and jointly controlled entities.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as
a whole are free from matetial misstatement, whether due to fraud or etrot, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or etror and are considered material if, individually ot in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of usets taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As patt of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

» Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statcments,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to thage tisks, and
g ! &

obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for ou n. The risk
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of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, mistepresentations, or the

override of internal control.

» Obtain an understanding of intetnal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(1) of the Act, we are
also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal
financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

» Evaluate the approptiateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting

estimates and related disclosures made by management.

» Conclude on the approptiateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, we can conclude that thete is no material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concetn. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the
date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease

to continue as a going concern.

» Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and the financial statements represent the undetlying transactions and events in a

manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those chatged with governance with a statement that we have complied with televant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and othet
matters that may rcasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and whete applicable, related
safeguards.

OTHER MATTER

We did not audit the consolidated financial statements of one subsidiatry, which consists of itself, it’s
subsidiary, one joint venture and a subsidiary of that joint venture, all of which are incorporated outside
India, whose consolidated financial statements reflect total assets of Rs. 1,16,113.32 lakhs as at 31st March
2025, total revenues of Rs. 1,568.36 lakhs and net cash inflows amounting to Rs. 278.30 lakhs for the year
ended on that date, as considered in the consolidated financial statements. These consolidated financial
statements of the subsidiary have been audited by the auditors of that subsidiary.

The consolidated financial statements also include the Group’s share of net loss of Rs 1.88 lakhs for the
year ended 31st March 2025, as considered in the consolidated financial statements, in respect of three
assoclates to the extent recognised as detailed in Note 4.1, whose financial statements have not been
audited by us. These financial statements of the associates have been audited by the auditors of those
associates.

The reports of the auditors of the subsidiaty and associates as mentioned above, have been furnished to
us by the Management and our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, in so far as it relates to
the amounts and disclosures included in respect of these subsidiaties and associat i
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terms of sub-section (3) of Section 143 of the Act, in so far as it relates to the aforesaid subsidiaries and
associates, 1s based solely on the reports of the other auditors.

REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS
AS REQUIRED BY SECTION 143(3) OF THE ACT, WE REPORT THAT:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid Consolidated
Financial Statements.

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as tequited by law relating to preparation of the
aforesaid Consolidated Financial Statements have been kept so far as it appears from our
examination of those books and the reports of the other auditors.

(c) The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Profit and Loss Statement, the consolidated
Statement of Changes in Equity and the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this
Repott are in agreement with the relevant books of account maintained for the purpose of
preparation of the consolidated financial statements.

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with the Indian
Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act read with Rule 7 of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 201.

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st March, 2025
taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Holding company and the tepotts of the
statutory auditors of its associates companies incorporated in India, none of the directors is
disqualified as on 31st March, 2025 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164
(2) of the Act.

() With respect to the adequacy of internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Group
and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our sepatate report in Annexure A.

(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditot’s Repott in accordance with the
requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended::

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
Company has complied with the provisions of section 197 of the Act is to the extent applicable with
respect to managerial remuneration paid during the year and this is subject to apptoval of the
shareholders in the ensuing annual general meeting.

(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditot’s Report in accordance with Rule
11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditot’s) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us:

()  The consolidated financial statements disclose the impact of pending litigations on the
consolidated financial position of the Group and its associates — Refer Note 29.2 to the

consolidated financial statements. Q
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(i)  Provision has been made in the consolidated financial statements, as required under the
applicable law or Indian accounting standards, for material foreseeable losses, if any, on long-
term contracts.

(i)  There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Holding Company, and its associate companies incorporated in
India.

i The management has represented that other than those disclosed in the notes to accounts,

() No funds have been advanced or loaned or invested by the company to ot in any other
person(s) or entitics, including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding
that the intermediary shall whether directly or indirectly lend or invest in other petsons or
entities identified in any manner by or on behalf of the company (Ultimate Beneficiaties)
or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of ultimate beneficiaties.

(i) No funds have been received by the company from any person(s) ot entities including
foreign entities (“Funding Parties”) with the understanding that such company shall
whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any
manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the funding party (ultimate beneficiaries) or provide
guarantee, secutrity or the like on behalf of the Ultimate beneficiaries.

Based on the audit procedures performed, we repott that nothing has come to our notice
that has caused us to believe that the above representations given by the management
contain any material mis-statement

VSPV & Co.
et
Chaﬁe:ed Beoountants

Vikas Gupta, FCA
Membership No.200924
Partner

VSPV&E Co

Chartered Accountants

Firm No.005483N

Place : Bangalore

Date :09-May-2025

UDIN : 25200924BMHX]JV 1207




ANNEXURE A TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

The Annexure referred to in Clause (g) under the heading “Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements” of our Independent Auditors Repott of even date on the Consolidated financial statements
of Zuari Infraworld India Limited for the year ended 31st Match, 2025.

REPORT ON THE INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS UNDER CLAUSE (I) OF SUB-
SECTION 3 OF SECTION 143 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 (“THE ACT”)

In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the Company as of and for the
yeat ended March 31, 2025, We have audited the internal financial controls over financial repotting of
Zuari Infraworld India Limited (hereinafter referred to as “the Holding Company™)

MANAGEMENT’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS

The respective Board of Directors of the of the Holding company and its associate companies, which are
companies incorporated in India, are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting ctitetia established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
(ICAD). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the ordetly and efficient conduct of its
business, including adherence to the respective company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the
prevention and detection of frauds and etrors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as requited under the Companies Act, 2013.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Out tresponsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's intetnal financial controls over financial
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of
Intetnal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note™) issued by the ICAI and the
Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be presctibed under section 143(10) of the
Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and petform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and
if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedutes to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal
financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial
controls over financial reporting, assessing the tisk that a material weakness exists, and testing and
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.
vV .':\?i\f 452’_ g
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained, and the audit evidence obtained by the other auditors
in terms of their reports referred to in the Other Matters paragraph below, is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basts for our audit opinion on the Company’s intetnal financial controls system ovet financial
reporting.

MEANING OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

A company's internal financial conttol over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal
financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that

(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and faitly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company.

) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessaty to permit preparation of
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts
and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authotisations of
management and directors of the company; and

(3)  provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention ot timely detection of unauthotised acquisition,
use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a matetial effect on the financial
statements.

VoY & —-

e
Charlere 4 hc:-an;lan!s
Alrciss



INHERENT LIMITATIONS OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS OVER
FINANCIAL REPORTING

Because of the inhetent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or impropet management overtide of controls, material misstatements due to errot
or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial
controls over financial reporting to future periods ate subject to the risk that the internal financial control
ovet financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may detetiorate.

OPINION

In our opinion, the Holding Company which is incorporated in India has, in all matetial tespects, adequate
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial
reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2025 based on the internal control over financial
tepotting criteria established by the Company including basis of allocating expenses to vatious projects
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls Over Financial Repotting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

OTHER MATTERS

Our aforesaid reports under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of
the intetnal financial controls over financial reporting insofar as it relates to three associate companies,
which are companies incorporated in India, is based on the cotresponding repotts of the statutory auditors
of such companies incorporated in India.

Vikas Gupta, FCA
Membership No.200924
Pattner

VSPV& Co

Chartered Accountants

Firm No.005483N

Place : Bangalote

Date :09-May-2025

UDIN : 25200924BMHX] V1207




Annexure - 1

List of entities included in the Consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March
2025:

 Wholly owned subsidiary |
- Step Down Subsidiary i
Joint Venture of Step down subsidlary '

Subsidiary of the Joint Venture of Step down |
- subsidiary
- Associate

Pranan Niketan Private Limited ! Associate

Darshan Nn:maan Pr1vate lelted

Nexus Vintrade Prlvate Limited
Bahubah Tradecomm Prlvate Limited
Hopeful Sales Private Llrmted
Divine Realdev Private Limited

| Kushal Infraproperty Private Limited
Beatle Agencles anate L1rmted

Saket Mansions Private Limited - Subsidiary of Associate

Chartered Accountants



ZUARI! INFRAWORLD INDIA LIMITED
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31 MARCH 2025
{All Amiounts in Indian Rupees in lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Note As at As at
No. 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
ASSETS
Non-current assets
(a.) Property, plant and equipment 31 151.13 164.91
(b.) Other intangible assets 32 3.50 6.82
(c.) Right-of-use assets 3.3 - 45.36
(d.) Capital work in progress 3.4 7.00 3.50
(e.) Financial assets:
(i.) Investments 4.1 57,502.76 65,410.16
(ii.) Other financial assets 5.1 32.02 32,02
(f.) Deferred tax asset (net) 6 572.76 171.97
(g.) Other assets 71 - 109.73
58,269.17 65,934.47
Current assets
(a.) Inventories 8 18,370.00 17,418.50
(b.) Financial assets
(i.) Investments 42 332.58 -
(ii.) Trade receivables 9 1,921.71 2,714.30
(iii.) Cash and cash equivalents 10 1,688.72 4,306.05
(iv.) Bank balances other than (i) above 59,651.08 62,503.06
(v.) Other financial assets 52 368.01 298.35
(c.) Income tax assets (net) 7.02 347.52
(d.) Other assets 7.2 556.22 368.53
82,795.34 87,954.31
1,41,064.51 1,53,888.78
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
(a.) Equity share capital 11 5,526.32 5,626.32
(b.) Other equity 12 (18,255.70) (10,015.63)
(12,729.38) (4,489.32)
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
(a.) Financial liabilities
(i.) Borrowings 13.1 60,349.56 58,951.32
(ii.) Trade payables 15.1
‘- Dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises
- Dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 63.22 114.06
(b.) Provisions 181 40.35 40.35
60,453.13 59,105.73
Current liabilities
(a.) Financial liabilities
(i.) Borrowings 13.2 26,978.63 25,999.24
(ii.) Lease liabilities 14 - 119.18
(iii.) Trade payables 15.2
‘- Dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 0.03 0.51
- Dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 1,005.77 2,596.11
(iv.) Other financial liabilities 16.1 1,349.22 405.18
(b.) Other liabilities 17 63.796.41 70,025.38
(c.) Provisions 18.2 210.70 126.77
93,340.76 99,272.37
1,41,064.51 1,53,888.78
The accompanying notes form an integral part of the consolidated financial statements
As per our report attached For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Zuari Infraworld India Limited

el E(___(;/-o‘
\‘. __-c:ow.'.‘\i:'-‘l‘-
At

Vikas Gupta, FCA Alok Banerjee

Membership No.200924 Whole Time Director & CEO
Partner DIN: 01371033
VSPV&Co

Chartered Accountants

Firm.No. 005483N

Place: Bangalore C: ; ~\ 245

Date : 09.05.2025 Mlesh Thakur

UDIN: 25200924BMHXJV1207 Chief Financial Officer

Membership No. F8378
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ZUARI INFRAWORLD INDIA LIMITED
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2025
(All Amounts in Indian Rupees in lakhs, unless otherwise siated)

Particulars Note Forthe yearended For the year ended
No. 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Revenue from operations 19 2,772.32 6,617.61
Other income 20 44.65 155.65
Total Income 2,816.97 6,773.27
EXPENSES:
Purchase of materials, sub contract charges and other project costs 21 2,247.84 834.74
Changes in construction work-in-progress 22 (1,169.11) 3,001.98
Employee benefit expenses 23 1,071.20 1,036.04
Finance costs 24 9,526.45 10,461.64
Depreciation and amortization expense 25 98.37 89.35
Other expenses 26 758.54 1,571.90
Total expenses 12,633.29 16,995.65
Loss before share profit/(loss) in associates and tax expense (9,716.32) (10,222.38)
share in net profit/(loss) of associates & Joint Venture {(1.88) (35.71)
Profit/(Loss) before exceptional items (9,718.20) (10,258.09)
Exceptional items - 4,748.25
Profit/(Loss) before tax (9,718.20) (15,006.34)
Tax expense 27
Current tax expense 63.40 (63.04)
Deferred tax (398.16) (48.06)
Total tax Expense (334.76) (111.10)
Profit/(Loss) for the year (9,383.44) (14,895.25)
Other comprehensive income (OCI)
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Exchange differences arising on translation of foreign operations 1,143.38 922.91
Total Other Comprehensive Income 1,143.38 922.91
Total Comprehensive Income/(Loss) for the year (8,240.07) (13,972.33)
Earning per equity share (in Rs.) 30
Basic & Diluted (16.98) (29.76)
Weighted average number of shares used in computing Earnings per share 5,62,63,157 5,00,57,678
The accompanying notes form an integral part of the consolidated financial statements N

peflour report attached . For and on behalf of the Board of
Zyafti Infraworld India Limit:

Vikas Gupta, FCA Alok Banerjee
Membership No.200924 Whole Time Director & CEO

Partner R . DIN: 01371033
VSPV&Co

Chartered Accountants

Firm.No. 005483N Cb.lﬂﬁ/’

Place: Bangalore
Date : 09.05.2025 Akhilesh Thakur

UDIN: 25200924BMHXJV1207 Chief Financial Officer

Membership No. F82378
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ZUARI INFRAWORLD INDIA LIMITED
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 31 MARCH 2025
(Al Amounts in Indian Rupees in lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

For the year
ended
31 March 2025

For the year
ended
31 March 2024

CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES :

Profit/(Loss) for the year

Adjustments to reconcile profit and loss to net cash provided by operating activities:

Depreciation & amortisation expense
Foreign currency translation reserve
Interest Income

Balances written-off

Interest expense

Adjustments for share of loss in subsidiary

Operating Profit/(Loss) before working Capital Changes

Adjustment for net changes in:
Trade receivables

Financial and other assets

Inventories

Trade payables

Provisions

Financial and other liabilities

Net cash generated from operations

Direct taxes paid ( net of refund incl. Interest on refund)

Net cash generated from operating activities
CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES :
Additions to property, plant and equipment

Investments in Mutual Funds
Fixed deposits with bank

Investments in Joint Venture transferred from Inventories

Net cash from Investing activities
CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES :

Borrowings, net of repayments
Issure of equity shares

Interest Paid (including amount transferred to work-in-progress)

Net cash used in financing activities

Net Changes in Cash and Cash equivalents during the year
Cash and Cash equivalents at the beginning of the year
Cash and Cash equivalents at the end of the year (Refer Note 10)

This space has been intentionally left blank
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(9,381.56) (10,222.38)
98.37 89.35
1,143.38 922.91
(0.10) (55.97)
= (4,748.25)
10,548.68 10,737.11
(1.88) (35.71)
2,406.88 (3,312.94)
792.59 (2,183.62)
(147.63) 10,225.80
(953.50) 48,244.02
(1,760.84) 355.40
83.92 35.18
(5,284.94) 31,835.45
(4,863.51) 85,199.30
(60.29) (118.59)
(4,923.79) 85,080.71
(49.41) 38.04
(332.58) .
0.10 24,598.26
7,907.40 (62,480.02)
7,525.51 (37,843.73)
923.51 (6,208.14)
. 2,000.00
(9,094.54) (8,292.25)
(8,171.04) (12,500.39)
(5,569.32) 34,736.59
66,809.11 32,072.52
61,239.78 66,809.11




ZUARI INFRAWORLD INDIA LIMITED
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 31 MARCH 2025
(All Amounts in Indian Rupees in lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

For the year
ended
31 March 2025

For the year
ended
31 March 2024

Disclosure pursuant to Ind-AS 7 as amended:

Particulars As at 31 March 2024 Cash Flow Trf. to Non-Cash Adj.| As at 31 March
Securities (Fair Value 2025
Premium Adjustments)

Long term borrowings 59,204.56 891.76 - - 60,096.32

Redeemable Preference 1,145.00 - - - 1,145.00

Shares (Debt portion)

Lease liabilities (including 119.18 (119.18) - - 0.00

security deposit received

for Net investment in sub

lease)

Short term borrowings 25,999.24 979.39 - z 26,978.63

Trade payables 2,710.68 (1.641.66) - - 1,069.01

Other current financial 405.18 944 .04 - - 1,349.22

liabilities

Cash flows from operating activities are reported using the indirect method.

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the consolidated financial statements

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Zuari Infraworld India Limited

/2(1/@/ "7/ ' N

" Alok Banerjee ahab
Whole Time Director & CEO
DIN: 01371033

As per our report attached

ey & e
VErT

Athar
Director
DIN: 01824891

Vikas Gupta, FCA
Membership No.200924
Partner

VSPV&Co

Chartered Accountants
Firm.No. 005483N

Place: Bangalore

Date : 09.05.2025

UDIN: 25200924BMHXJV1207

Epars
Akhilesh Thakur
Chief Financial Officer

Company Secretary
Membership No. F8378
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ZUARI INFRAWORLD INDIA LIMITED

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2025

(All Amounts in Indian Rupees in lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

A. Equity share capital

B. Other equity
Securities premium

account

Balance as at 1 April 2023 11,961.00
‘Addition during the year 1,473.68
|Profit for the period -

' Adjustments for foreign currency translation -
Balance as at 31 March 2024 13,434.68 |
Profit for the period =
Adjustments for foreign currency translation -
Balance as at 31 March 2025 13,434.68

Note No

11

Equity
Component of
convertible
preference
shares

415.96

415.96

415.96

The accompanying notes forms an integral part of the consolidated financial statements
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Partner

VSPV&Co

Chartered Accountants
Firm.No. 005483N

Place: Bangalore

Date : 09.05.2025

UDIN: 25200924BMHXJV1207

Alok Banerjee
Whole Time Director & CEQ
DIN: 01371033

Akhilesh Thakur
Chief Financial Officer

Page 5 of 39

Retained
earnings

(9,271.66)

(14,895.25)
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(9,383.44)

(33,550.34)

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Wﬁa\mdd India Limited

As at
31 March 2025

5,526.32

OCI Reserve
(Foreign
Currency

Translation
reserve)

(622,29)

922.91

300.62

1,143.38
1,444.00
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Membership No. F8378

oy n
ar Shtahab

As at

31 March 2024

5,626.32

Total
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1,473.68
(14,895.25)
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(9,383.44).
1,143.38 |
(18,255.70) |



ZUARI INFRAWORLD INDIA LIMITED
NOTES FORMING INTEGRAL PART OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2025

1 Corporate information:

The Consolidated Ind AS financial statements of Zuari Infraworld India Limited [CIN: U45309KA2007PLC043161] and its Subsidiary
("hereinafter collectively referred as the "Company" / the "Group”) and its associates are for the year ended 31 March 2025. The Company
is domiciled in India and is incorporated under the provisions of the Companies Act applicable in India. The Group's primary business is
pre-dominantly into the business of developing long term real estate projects (residential cum commercial property intended for sale).

The consolidated financial statements were approved for issue in accordance with a resolution of the directors passed on meeting held
through video conference and other visual means (VC) dated May 9, 2025.

2 Significant accounting policies:
(a.) Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the group have been prepared under the historical cost convention on the accrual basis except for
certain financial instruments which are measured at fair values in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under
Section 133 of the Act read with Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and in accordance with the reporting
requirement under Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act"), to the extent notified.

These Accounting policies have been consistently applied by the group in the preparation and presentation of these financial statements
except where a newly issued/ notified accounting standard is initially adopted or a revision to an existing accounting standard requires a
change in the accounting policy which was in use.

Current and Non-current classification

Al Assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company's normal operating cycle and other criteria set
out in Schedule lll of the Companies Act, 2013. As the Company is engaged in developing a residential cum commercial project, the
normal operating cycle is based on the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realization in cash and cash
equivalents. The Company has ascertained its operating cycle at least 12 months after the reporting date for the purpose of Current - Non-
current classification of assets and liabilities, which is considered appropriate.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees and all the amounts disclosed in the financial statements have been
rounded off to the nearest lakhs pursuant to the requirements of schedule [il of the Companies Act, 2013., except when otherwise
indicated.
(b.) Basis of consolidation
The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of the Parent Company, its subsidiaries, and its associates as at
31 March 2024. Control is achieved when the Group has power over the investee, is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the investee.

Specifically, the Group controls an investee if and only if the Group has:

- Power over the investee (i.e., existing rights that give it the current ability to direct the relevant activities of the investee)
- Exposure, or rights, to variable retumns from its involvement with the investee, and

- The ability to use its power over the investee to affect its retumns

Consolidated financial statements are prepared using uniform accounting policies for like transactions and other events in similar
circumstances. If a member of the Group uses accounting policies other than those adopted in the consolidated financial statements for
like transactions and events in similar circumstances, appropriate adjustments are made to that Group member's financial statements in
preparing the consolidated financial statements to ensure conformity with the Group's accounting policies.

(c.) Consolidation procedure

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared following the below mentioned procedures:

(1.) Subsidiary has been consolidated on a line-by-line basis by combining together the book values of the like items of assets, liabilities,
income, expenses, and cash flows of the parent with those of its subsidiary, offsetting (eliminating) the carrying amount of the parent's
investment in subsidiary and the parent's portion of equity of each subsidiary and after eliminating all significant intra-group balances and
intra-group transactions and also unrealized profits or losses,

(2.) Interests in the assets, liabilities, income and expenses of the Associates over which the Group has significant influence but not control
have been consolidated using Equity method. Under the equity method of accounting , the investment in an associate is initially recognised
at cost and the carrying amount is increased or decreased to recognise the investor's share of the profit or loss of the investee after the
date of acquisition.

(3.) The difference of the cast to the Group of ils investment in Subsidiary over its proportionate share in the equity of the investee Group
as at the date of acquisition of stake is recognized in the financial statements as Goodwill or Capital Reserve, as the case may be. While
in the case of Associates such Goodwill or Capital Reserve is adjusted to the carrying value of investments.

(4.) The intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions between entities of the Group
(including profits or losses resulting from intragroup transactions that are recognised in assets, such as inventory and fixed assets) are
eliminated in full. Intragroup losses indicating an impairment are recognised in the consolidated financial statements. Pursuant to Ind AS12
on Income Taxes the temporary differences that arise from the elimination of profits and losses resulting from intragroup transactions are
recognised.

(5.) Profit or loss and each component of olher comprehensive income (OCI) are attributed to the equity holders of the Parent Company of
the Group and to the non-controlling interests, even if this results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit bala/nggh.ldongeuer the
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ZUARI INFRAWORLD INDIA LIMITED
NOTES FORMING INTEGRAL PART OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2025

minority interests has been restricted to zero on the transition date i.e. April 1, 2015 usir.ug the exemption_ provided by the Ind AS 101 and
the accumulated losses attributable to the minorities in excess of their equity on ihe transition date, in the absence of the contractual
obligation on the minorities, the same has been accounted for by the Parent Company.

(6.) The financial statements of the group entities used for the purpose of consolidation are drawn up to same reporting date as that of the
Group i.e. year ended 31 March 2025.
List of Subsidiaries and Associates considered for consolidation:

(A) Following Wholly Owned Foreign Subsidiary has been consolidated on line by line basis:

Name of the Group Country of Share of Ownership Share of Ownership
Incorporation Interest as at Interest as at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Zuarf Infra Middle East Limited ; Dubai, UAE 100.00% 100.00%
The information relating to the subsidiary of Zuari Infra Middle East Limited is given below
Name of the Group Country of Share of Ownership Share ot Ownership
‘ Incorporation Interest as at Interest as at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024

‘Zuari Infraworld SJM Properties LLC
-(Refer Note below) UAE 100.00% 100.00%

Note: Shareholding in Zuari Infraworld SJM Properties LLC includes 51% held by a nominee shareholder as per the Shareholders
Agreement dated 18 August 2014. As per the terms of this agreement Zuari Infra Middle East Limited has complete control over the
management and accordingly this Company has been considered as a subsidiary with 100% interest and thus consolidated. The paid up
share capital corresponding to the 51% interest has been included under other current liabilities, which is considered appropriate by the
Management.

(B} Following Investments in Associates have been consolidated using Equity Method of Accounting:

Name of the Group Country of Share of Ownership Share of Ownership
Incorporation Interest as at Interest as at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Brajbhumi Nirmaan Private Limited * India 25% 25%

[ based on consolidated financial statements

including its subsidiaries is given below]

Pranati Niketan Private Limited ] India 25% 25%
Darshan Nirmaan Private Limited India 25% 25%

* As at 31 March 2025, Brajbhumi Nirmaan Private Limited holds 50% (Previous year: 50%) each in Pranati Niketan Private Limited and
Darshan Nirmaan Private Limited respectively,

The information relating to the subsidiaries of Brajbhumi Nirman Private Limited (BNPL), an associate are given below:

Name of the Group Country of Share of Ownership Share of Ownership

Incorporation Interest as at Interest as at

31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Rosewood Agencies Private Limited India 100.00% | 100.00%
Neobeam Agenis Private Limited India 100.00% 100.00%
Mayapur Commercial Private Limited India 100.00% 100.00%
Nexus Vintrade Private Limited India 100.00% 100.00%
Bahubali Tradecomm Private Limited India 100.00% 100.00%
Hopelul Sales Private Limited India 100.00% 100.00%
Divine Realdev Private Limited India 100.00% 100.00%
Kushal Infraproperty Private Limited India 100.00% 100.00%
Beatle Agencies Private Limited India 100.00% 100.00%
Suhana Froperties Private Limited India 100.00% 100.00%
Saket Mansions Private Limited India 100.00% 100.00%
Pranati Niketan Private Limited India 50.00% 50.00%
Darshan Nirmaan Private Limited India 50.00% 50.00%

This space has been intentionally left blank

(d.) Use of accounting estimates, accounting judgements, and assumptions:

Preparation of these financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires the management to make estimates, judgments and
assumptions. Such estimates, judgments and assumptions affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of
assets and liabilities, the disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and reported amounts of
revenues and expenses during the year.

The application of accounting policies that require critical accounting estimates involving complex and subjective judgments and the use of
such assumptions in these financial statements have been disclosed in the ensuing notes. Accounting estimates could change from year
to year and also actual results could differ from those estimates. Appropriate changes in estimates are made as Management becomes
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ZUARI INFRAWORLD INDIA LIMITED
NOTES FORMING INTEGRAL PART OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2025

aware of changes in circumstances surrounding these estimates. Changes in estimates are reflected in the financial statements in the year
in which changes are made and their effects, if material, are disclosed by way of notes to the fihancial statements.

Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions :
Useful life of Property, plant & equipment:

The determination of estimated useful lives and expected residual values are based on the technical evaluation carried by the Company
and these are reviewed by the Management of the Company at each reporting date.

(ii.) Impairment of financial assets and evaluation of impairment indicators:
The evaluation of applicability of impairment indicators for an assets requires assessment of several external and internal factors which
could result in deterioration of recoverable amount of the assets. As at the balance sheet date based on the historical default rates
absorbed over the expected useful life, the Management assess the fair value of various financial assets and liabilities and their resultant
fair values.

(ii.) Impairment of non-financial assets:

Impairment existe when tho carrying valuc of an asact or cash generating unit exceeds its recavarable amaunt, which is the higher of its
fair value less cost of disposal and its value in use. The calculation of fair value less ensta of dispnsal is brsed on available data from
binding sales transaction conducted at arms' length for similar assets or observable market prices / guidance value less incremental cost
for disposing of the asset. The value in use calculation is based on a DCF model. The cash flows are derived from budget for the future
years and do not include any restricting activities not committed for or significant future investments that will enhance the performance of
the assets of the CGU being tested. The recoverable amount is sensitive to the discount rates used for the DCF model as well as the
expected future cash flows and the growth rate used for extrapolation purposes.,

(iv.) Contingencies:
Contingent liabilities may arise from the ordinary course of business in relation to claims against the Company, including legal. By their
nature, contingencies will be resolved only when one or more uncertain future events occur or fail to occur. The assessment of the
existence, and potential quantum, of contingencies inherently involves the exercise of significant judgement and the use of estimates
regarding the outcome of future events, which may or may not occur.

Construction work-in-progress

The Company holds inventories stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Such inventories include land, work in progress and
completed units. Considering the nature of the activity and, in particular the scale of its developments and the length of the development
cycle, the Company has to allocate project-wide development costs between units being built. It also has to forecast the costs to complete
on such developments.

<

In making such assessments and allocations, there is a degree of inherent estimation uncertainty; in particular due to the need to take
account of future direct input costs, sales prices and the need to allocate project-wide costs on an appropriate basis to reflect the overall
level of development risk, including planning risk. The Company has established internal controls designed to effectively assess and
review inventory carrying values and ensure the appropriateness of the estimates made. These assessments and allocations evolve over
the life of the development in line with the risk profile, and accordingly the margins reflects these evolving estimates. Similarly, these
estimates impact the carrying value of inventory at each reporting date as this is a function of costs incurred in the year and the allocation
of inventory to costs of sales on each property sold.

(vi.) Defined benefit plans (gratuity benefits)

The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan and the present value of the gratuity obligation are determined using actuarial valuations. An
actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future. These include the
determination of the discount rate, future salary increases and mortality rates. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-
term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each
reporting date. The parameter most subject to change is the discount rate. In determining the appropriate discount rate for plans operated
in India, the management considers the interest rates of govemment bonds. The mortality rate is based on publicly available mortality
tables for the specific countries. Those mortality tables tend to change only at interval in response to demographic changes. Future salary
increases and gratuity increases are based on expected future inflation rates for the respective countries.

(vii.) Fair value measurement of financial instruments
When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot be measured based on quoted prices
in active markets, their fair value is measured using valuation techniques including the DCF model. The inputs to these models are taken
from observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgement is required in establishing fair values.
Judgements include considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility. Changes in assumptions about these factors
could affect the reported fair value of financial instruments.

(viii.) Leases

The Company evaluates if an arrangement qualifies to be a lease as per the requirements of Ind AS 116 on Leases. |dentification of a
lease requires significant judgment. The Company uses significant judgement in assessing the lease term (including anticipated renewals)
and the applicable discount rate. The Company determines the lease term as the non-cancellable period of a lease, together with both
periods covered by an option to extend the lease if the Company is reasonably certain to exercise that option; and periods covered by an
option to terminate the lease if the Company is reasonably certain not to exercise that option. In assessing whether the Company is
reasonably certain to exercise an option to extend a lease, or not to exercise an option to terminate a lease, it considers all relevant facts
and circumstances that create an economic incentive for the Company to exercise the option to extend the lease, or not to exercise the
option to terminate the lease. The Company revises the lease term if there is a change in the non-cancellable period of a lease. The
discount rate is generally based on the incremental borrowing rate specific to the lease being evaluated or for a portfalio of leases with
similar characteristics. The Company reassess the option when significant events or changes in circumstances occur that are within the
control of the lessee.

Page 8 of 39 loarioied Aocountasts




ZUARI INFRAWORLD INDIA LIMITED
NOTES FORMING INTEGRAL PART OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2025

(e.) Property, plant and equipment and Depreciation

(i) Property, plant and equipment
The Property, plant and equipment (PPE") of the Company are stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses, if any. The cost comprises of the purchase price, barrowing costs if capitalization criteria are met and directly attributable cost of
bringing the asset to its current working condition for the intended use. Any discounts or rebates are deducted in ariving at the purchase
price. Subsequent expenditure related to an item of PPE is added to its book value only if it increased the future benefits from the existing
assets beyond its previously assessed standard performance.

Recognition principle:

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised as an asset if, and only if:

(i.) it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company; and
(ii.) the cost of the item can be measured reliably.

De-recognition principle:

Galn/ (losses) arising from the de-recognition ot a PPE are measured as the difference between the net proceeds on disposal and the
carrying amount of the PPE. The resultant gain/(losses) are recognised in the Profit or Loss statement when the PPE is de-recognised.

(ii.

Depreciation

Depreciation is calculated on the Straight Line basis over the estimated useful life of the PPE after retaining estimated residual value not
exceeding 5% of the original cost, except for Leasehold improvements and aluminium panels used for construction. Depreciation on
assets used for the project has been considered as part of construction and development cost. The residual values, useful lives and
methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if considered
appropriate.

Upon adoption of Ind AS, the Company has elected to measure all its property, plant and equipment at the Previous GAAP carrying
amount as its deemed cost on the date of transition to Ind AS i.e., 1 April 2015,

The Company has estimated the useful lives which is detailed as under for each category of PPE:

Name of Assets Useful Lives

Office Equipment |5 years

Plant & Machinery (P&M) |8 years

Furniture & Fixtures 10 years

Computer and servers |5 and 6 years

Motor Vehicles '10 years

Leasehold Improvements Over the primary lease period
Aluminium panel used for canstruction (PAN) 4 years

Temporary siructure 1 year

(f.) Intangible Assets and Amortisation

=

Intangible Assets
Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Subsequent to initial recognition, the intangible assets

are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment losses, if any.

Recognition:

The cost of an item of intangible asset is recognised as an asset if, and only if;

(i.) it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company; and
(ii.) the cost of the item can be measured reliably.

De-recognition:

Gain/ (losses) arising from the de recognition of intangibles are measured as the difference between the net proceeds on disposal and the
carrying amount of the intangibles. The resultant gain/(losses) are recognised in the Profit and Loss statement when the intangible asset is
de-recognised.

(it.) Amortisation

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed as either finite or indefinite. Intangible assets with finite lives are amortized on the
Straight Line basis over the useful economic life and assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset
may be impaired. The amortisation period and the amortisation methad for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least
at the end of each reporting peried. The amortisation expense on intangible assets with finite lives is recognised in the profit and loss
statement unless such expenditure forms part of camying value of another asset. Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are not
amortised, but are tested for impairment annually, either individually or at the cash-generating unit level. The assessment of indefinite life
is reviewed annually to determine whether the indefinite life continues to be supportable. If not, the change in useful life from indefinite to
finite is made on a prospective basis.

Intangible assets representing computer software is amortised on the straight line basis over a estimated useful economic life of five years.

Upon first-time adoption of Ind AS, the Company had elected to measure all its intangible assets at the Previous GAAP carrying amount as
its deemed cost on the date of transition to Ind AS i.e., 1 April 2015,

{a.) Leases

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange
for consideration.

(i.) The Company as a { essee: =

~ad
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ZUARI INFRAWORLD INDIA LIMITED
NOTES FORMING INTEGRAL PART OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2025

(ii.)

The Company accounts for each lease compenent within the contract as a lease separately from non-lease components of the contract
and allocates the consideration in the contract to each lease component on the basis of the relative stand-alone price of the lease
component and the aggregate stand-alone price of the non-lease components.

The Company recognises right-of-use asset representing its right to use the underlying asset for the lease term at the lease
commencement date. The cost of the right-of-use asset measured at inception shall comprise of the amount of the initial measurement of
the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received, plus any
initial direct costs incurred and an estimate of costs to be incurred by the lessee in dismantling and removing the underlying asset or
resforing the underlying asset or site on which it is located. The right-of-use assets is subsequently measured at cost less any accumulated
depreciation, accumulated impairment losses, if any and adjusted for any remeasurement of the lease liability. The right-of-use assets is
depreciated using the siraight-line method from the commencement date over the lease term or useful life of right-of-use asset, whichever
is earlier. The estimated useful lives of right-of-use assets are determined on the same basis as those of property, plant and equipment.
Right-of-use assets are tested for impairment whenever there is any indication that their carrying amounts may not be recoverable.
Impairment loss, if any, is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

The Company measures the lease liabilily Al (he prasent valie nt the [rase payments that are nat paid at the commencement date of the
lease. The lease payments are discounted using the interect rato implicit in tho lease, if that ratc can be readily determined. If that rate
cannot be raadily detarminad, the Campany uses incremental borrowing rate. The lease payments shall include fixed payments, variable
lease payments, residual value guarantees, exercise price of a purchase option where the Company is reasonably certain to exercise that
option and payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the lessee exercising an option to terminate the lease,
The lease liability is subsequently remeasured by increasing the carrying amount to reflect interest on the lease liability and reducing the
carrying amount to reflect the lease payments made. Where the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset is reduced to zero and there is a
further reduction in the measurement of the lease liability, the Company recognises any remaining amount of the re-measurement in
statement of profit and loss.

The Company has elected not to apply the requirements of Ind AS 116 on Leases to shori-term leases of all assets that have a lease term
of 12 months or leases for which the underlying asset is of low value. The lease payments associated with these leases are recognized as
an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Lease contracts entered by the Company majorly pertains for buildings taken on lease to conduct its business in the ordinary course. The
Company does not have any lease restrictions and commitment towards variable rent as per the contract.

The Company as a Lessor:

At the inception of the lease the Company classifies each of its leases as either an operating lease or a finance lease. The Company
recognises lease payments received under operating leases as income on a straight-line basis over the lease term. In case of a finance
lease, finance income is recognised over the lease term based on a pattemn reflecting a constant periodic rate of return on ihe lessor's net
investment in the lease.

When the Company is an intermediate lessor it accounts for its interests in the head lease and the sub-lease separately. It assesses the
lease classification of a sub-lease with reference to the right-of-use asset arising from the head lease, not with reference to the underlying
asset. If a head lease is a short-term lease to which the Company applies the exemption described above, then it classifies the sub-lease
as an operating lease and recognises lease income accordingly.

If an arrangement or contract contains lease and non-lease components, the Company applies ind AS 115 Revenue from contracts with
customers to allocate the consideration in the contract,

(ii.) Transition

(h)

(ii.

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) through Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2019 and Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Second Amendment Rules, has notified Ind AS 116 Leases which supersedes the existing lease standard, Ind AS
17 Leases, and other interpretations. Ind AS 116 sets out the principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of
leases for both lessees and lessors.

The Company has adopted Ind AS 116, effective from the financial year beginning April 1, 2019 and applied the standard to its leases,
using the modified retrospective method with cumulative effect of initially applying the standard, recognised on the date of initial application
(i.e., April 1, 2019}, Accordingly, the Company has not restated comparative information, instead, the cumulative effect of initially applying
this standard has been recognised as an adjustment to the opening balance of retained earnings as on 1 April 2019.

Refer note 2(e) — Significant accounting policies — Leases in the consolidated financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31
March 2018, for the accounting policy pursuant to Ind AS 17.

Impairment

Financial assets (other than at fair value})

The Company assesses at each date of balance sheet whether a financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired. ind AS 109
requires expected credit losses to be measured through a loss allowance. In determining the allowances for doubtful trade receivables, the
Company has used a practical expedient by computing the expected credit loss allowance for trade receivables based on historical credit
loss experience and is adjusted for forward looking information. The expected credit loss allowance is based on the ageing of the
receivables that are due and rates used in the provision matrix. For all other financial assets, expected credit losses are measured at an
amount equal to the 12-months expected credit losses or at an amount equal to the life time expected credit losses if the credit risk on the
financial asset has increased significantly since initial recognition.

Non-financial assets {Tangible and intangible assets)

Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets with finite life are evaluated for recoverability whenever there is any indication that
their carrying amounts may not be recoverable. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount (i.e. higher of the fair value less cost
to sell and the value-in-use) is determined on an individual asset basis unless the asset does not generate cash flows that are largely
independent of those from other assets. In such cases, the recoverable amount is determined for the cash generating unit (CGU) to which
the asset belongs. If the recoverable amount of an asset (or CGU) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of
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ZUARI INFRAWORLD INDIA LIMITED
NOTES FORMING INTEGRAL PART OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2025

the asset (or CGU) is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised in the profit and loss statement.

Borrowing Costs

Borrowing cost includes interest and amortization of ancillary costs incurred in connection with the arrangement of borrowings. Borrowing
cost also includes exchange differences, if any to the extent regarded as an adjustment to the borrowing costs.

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the construction of development property are capitalized as part of the cost till such time the
property is ready for its intended sale. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the year they occur,

Borrowing costs during an extended period in which it suspends the activities necessary to prepare an asset for its intended use or sale.
Such costs are costs of holding partially completed assets and do not qualify for capitalisation. However, the Company does not normally
suspend capitalising borrowing costs during a period when it carries out substantial technical and administrative work. The Company also
does not suspend capitalising borrowing costs when a temporary delay considering the nature of industry, is a necessary part of the
process of getting an asset ready for ils inlended use vl sale,

(.

Foreign Currency Translation

The Company's financial statements are prepared and presenied in Indian Rupees, which is also I's functional currency.

Initial Recognition:
Foreign currency transactions, if any, are recorded at exchange rate prevailing on the date of transaction/ realisation.

Conversion / Reinstatement:

Foreign currency monetary items are translated using the exchange rale prevailing at the reporting date. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost denominated in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rate at the date of the initial
transaction. Nan-monetary items measured at fair value denominated in a foreign currency are, translated using the exchange rates that
existed when the fair value was determined.

Exchange Differences:

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items or on reporting Company's monetary items at rates different from those
at which they were initially recorded during the year, or reported in previous financial statements, are recognized as income or as expenses
in the year in which they arise

The gain or loss arising on translation of non-monetary items measured at fair value is treated in line with the recognition of the gain or loss
on the change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation differences on items whose fair value gain or loss is recognized in other
comprehensive income (OCI) or profit and loss are also recognized in OCI or profit and loss, respectively).

(k.) Inventories

The cost of inventories shall comprise all costs of purchase including cost of land, costs of conversion and other costs including borrowing
costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition.

Inventories (comprising Land under Development and Construction Work-in-Pragress) are stated at lower of cost and net realizable vaiue.
Cost includes expenses, net of taxes recoverable, specifically attributable to construction and development of property intended for sale.
The allocation of common costs is based on the normal level of the activities.

Construction work-in-progress of constructed properties include the cost of land, internal development costs, external development
charges, construction costs, overheads, borrowings cost, development/construction materials and is valued lower of cost/estimated cost
and net realisable value.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the estimated cost of completion and estimated
cost necessary io make the sale.

Provisions and Contingent Liabilities

(L

Provisions
A provision is recognised when the Company has a present obligation as a result of past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources
embedying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

When the Company expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset, but only when
the reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense relating to a provision is presented in the profit and loss statement net of any
reimbursement.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects, when appropriate,

the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a
finance cost.

(ii.

Contingent Liabilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the control of the Company or a present obligation that is not recognized
because it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation. A contingent liability also arises in extremely
rare cases where there is a liability that cannot be recognized because it cannot be measured reliably. The Company does not recognise a
contingent liability but discloses its existence in the financial statements.

(m.) Revenue Recognition
The Company derives revenues primarily from development and sale of residential cum commercial properties and related services,

maintenance and consulting. Effective 1 April 2018, the Company adopted Ind AS 115 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers™using the
cumulative effect transition method being applied to contracts that were not completed as of 1 April 2018.
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ZUARI INFRAWORLD INDIA LIMITED
NOTES FORMING INTEGRAL PART OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2025

Revenues from customer contracts are considered for recognition and measurement when the contract has been approved by ihe parties,
in writing, to the contract, the parties 1o contract are committed to perform the irrespective obligations under the contract, and the contract
is legally enforceable. Revenue is recognized upon transfer of control over the promised products or services (“performance obligations”)
1o customers in an amount that reflects the consideration the Company has received or expects to receive in exchange for these products
or services (‘fransaction price”). When there is uncertainty as to collectability, revenue recognition is postponed until such uncertainty is
resolved.

To determine whether to recognize revenue, the Company follows a five step model as envisaged in Ind AS 115 given below:
Identifying the contract with a customer

Identifying the performance obligations

Determining the transaction price

Allocating the transaclion price to the performance obligations

Recognizing revenue when/as performance obligation(s) are satisfied.

Identify the Contract with Customer

The Company evaluates whether a valid contract is satisfying all the following conditions:
+ All parties have approved the agreement {may be oral or written}

- All parties are committed to approve their obligations.

- Each party’s rights are identifiable.

+ The contract has commercial substance.

- Collectability is probable.

Identifying the performance obligations

The Company evaluates the separability of the promised goods or services based on whether they are ‘distinct’. A promised good or
service is ‘distinct’ if both:

- the customer benefits from the item either on its own or together with other readily available resources, and

- it is 'separately identifiable’ (i.e. the Company does not provide a significant service integrating, modifying or customizing it)

(ii.

(iii.) Determining the transaction price
The Company considers the terms of the contract and its customary business practices to determine the transaction price. The transaction
price excludes amounts collected on behalf of third parties. The consideration promised include fixed amounts, existence of any financial
component and any other non-cash consideration, or both,

Where the Company has a right to consideration from a customer in an amount that corresponds directly with the value to the customer of
the performance completed to date, the Company recognizes revenue in the amount to which it has a right to invoice.

(iv.) Allocating the transaction price to the performance obligations
The transaction price is allocated to the separately identifiable performance obligations on the basis of their standalone selling price. For
services that are not provided separately, the standalone selling price is estimated using adjusted market assessment approach.

Recognizing revenue when/as performance obligation(s) are satisfied.
Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the revenue can be reliably
measured, regardless of when the payment is being made.

<

Revenue is recognized either at a point in time or aver time, when (or as) the Company satisfies performance obligations by transferring
the promised goods or services to its customers.

The main revenue streams for Zuari Infraworld India Limited relate are as under:
- Residential cum commercial properties (constructed properties)

- Development Management Services.

- Sales Commission.

Revenue from sale of residential cum commercial properties (constructed properties)

The Company develops and sells residential cum commercial properties. Revenue is recognised when control over the property has been
transferred to the customer. The properties have generally no alternative use for the company due to contractual restrictions. Enforceable
right to payment does not arise until legal title or posession of the property is deemed to have been passed to the customer. Therefore,
revenue is recognised at a point in time when the legal title has been passed to the customer or pocession of property is deemed to have
been passed to the customer. Each unit of the flats or properties are classified as a separate performance obligation and revenue is
recognised upen legal transfer of asset to buyer or when the pacession of property is deemed to have been passed to the customer,

The revenue is measured at the transaction price agreed under the contract. In most cases, the consideration is linked with the process of
construction and does not involve any significant financial component.

The Company has not adjusted the promised amount of cansideration for the effects of a significant financing component. In the view of
the Management of the Company, the contract with a customers would not have a significant financing component as there is no
difference between the promised consideration and the cash selling price of the residential units (as described in paragraph 61 and 62 of
Ind AS 115) had the same been sold on full cash basis.

Income from sale of services
Income from service contracts which is in the nature of fees for specified periods are recognised on accrual basis to the extent the services
have been rendered and invoices are raised in accordance with the contractual terms with the customers and recoveries are reasonably

certain.
Sales Commission from sale of plots/ residential units

Commission from sale of plots/ residential flats upon sale of the plots/ flats as per the terms of contract and recoveries are reasonably
certain.
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NOTES FORMING INTEGRAL PART OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2025

Other income

Other income comprises of interest income, dividend income and gain/loss on investments. Interest income is recognized on accrual basis
using the effective interest method. Dividend is recognised as and when the right to receive payment is established by the reporting date,
which is generally when shareholders approve the dividend.

(n.) Taxes on income

Current income tax
Tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Current income tax is measured at the amount expected to be paid to the tax authorities
using own estimates in accordance with the Income Tax Act, 1961.

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities. The
tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted, at the reporting date.

Current incume lux relaling {o items recognised outside profit or loss Is recognised outside profit or ioss (either n other comprehensive
income or in equity). Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax
regulations are subjcct to interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate.

(ii.) Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided using the balance sheet approach on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and
their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset is realised or the
liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits and any unused tax
losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised.

Deferred 1ax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss statement is recognised outside profit or loss (either in other comprehensive
income or in equity).

(0.) Retirement and other Employee Benefits

Provident Fund

Retirement benefit in the form of Provident Fund is a defined contribution scheme and the contributions are charged to the Profit and Loss
statement of the year when the contributions to the respective funds are due. There are no other obligations other than the contribution
payable under the scheme.

(ii.) Gratuity
Gratuity liability under the Payment of Gratuity Act 1972, are defined benefit obligations and are provided for on the basis of actuarial
valuation on projected unit credit method, made at the end of each financial year. The gratuity liability is not funded.

(iii.y Compensated Absences
Short term compensated absences are provided for based on estimates by the Management considering the entitliements outstanding as
at the reporting date. Long term compensated absences are provided for based on actuarial valuation made at the end of each financial
year. The actuarial valuation is done as per projected unit credit method.

Remeasurements:

Remeasurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling, excluding amounts included in net interest on
the net defined benefit liability and the return on plan assets (excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability),
are recognised immediately in the balance sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to retained earnings through OCI in the period in
which they occur. Remeasurements are not reclassified to profit or loss statement in subsequent periods. Net interest is calculated by
applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit liability or asset.

(p.) Financial Instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.
Financial assets and liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue
of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added to
or deducted from the fair value measured on initial recognition of financial asset or financial liability.

(i.) Financial assets at amortised cost
Financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost if these financial assets are held within a business whose objective is to
hold these assets to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the financial assets give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income

Financial assets are measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if these financial assets are held within a business
whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows on specified dates are solely payments of principal and interest on
the principal amount outstanding and selling financial assets.

(i

The Company has made an irrevocable election to present subsequent changes in the fair value of equity investments not held for trading
in other comprehensive income,

(iii.) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Financial assets are measured at fair value through profit or loss unless they are measured at amortised cost or at fair value through other
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comprehensive income on initial recognition. The transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets and liabilities at
fair value through profit or loss are immediately recognised in staternent of profit and loss.

(iv.) Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

{v.) Equity instruments
An equity instrument is a contract that evidences residual interest in the assets of the Company after deducting all of its liabilities, Equity
instruments recognised by the Company are recognised at the proceeds received net off direct issue cost.

(vi.) Financial guarantee contracts
Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Company are those contracts that require a payment to be made to reimburse the holder for a
loss it incurs because the specified debtor fails to make a payment when due in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument,

Financial guarantee contracts are recognised initially as a liability at fair value, adjusted for transaction costs that are directly attributable to
the Issuance of the guarantee. Subsequently, the liability is measured at the higher of the amount of loss allowance determined as per
impairment requirements of Ind AS 109 and the amount recognised less cumulative amortisation,

(9.) Earnings per Share
Basic eamnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to the equity shareholders (after
deducting attributable taxes) by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year. For the purpose of calculating
diluted earnings per share, net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares
outstanding during the year are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares,

Segment Reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision maker. Chief
operating decision maker reviews the performance of the Company according to the nature of business which primarily comprises of
development of real estate projects , both residential and commercial.

{r.

The Company prepares its segment information in conformity with the accounting policies adopted for preparing and presenting financial
statements of the Company as a whole.

(s.) Equity, reserves and dividend payments
Share capital represents the nominal (par) value of shares that have been issued.

Share premium includes any premiums received an issue of share capital. Any transaction costs associated with the issuing of shares are
deducted from share premium, net of any related income tax benefits.

Retained eamings are adjusted for the following:

- Re-measurement of net defined benefit liabilitycomprises the actuarial losses from changes in demographic and financial assumptions
and the return on plan assets

All transactions with owners of the parent are recorded separately within equity.

Dividend distributions payable to equity shareholders are included in other liabilities when the dividends have been approved in a general
meeting prior to the reporting date.

(t) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the cash flow statement comprises cash at bank and in hand and short term investments with an original
maturity periods of three months or less.

For the purpose of the Statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term deposits, as defined above, net
of outstanding bank overdrafts if any as they are considered an integral part of the Company's cash management.

(u.) Investments
Investments in subsidiary, Joint Ventures and Associates are accounted at their cost in the separate financial statements. Investment in

preference shares in Associates and mutual funds are accounted for at fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL) at the reporting date.

(v.) Recent Accounting pronouncements:

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA") notifies new standards or amendments to the existing standards under Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time o time. During the year ended March 31, 2025, MCA has notified Ind AS 117 -
Insurance Contracts and amendments to Ind As 116 — Leases, relating to sale and lease back transactions, applicable from April 1, 2024.
The Company has assessed that there is no significant impact on its standalone financial statements.

On May 8, 2025, MCA notifies the amendments to Ind AS 21 - Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates. These amendments aim to
provide clearer guidance on assessing currency exchangeability and estimating exchange rates when currencies are not readily
exchangeable. The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or after April 1, 2025. The Company is currently assessing
the probable impact of these amendments on its standalone financial statements.
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ZUARI INFRAWORLD INDIA LIMITED
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(All Amounts in Indian Rupees in lakhs, unless otherwise slated)

3 Property, plant and equipment

3.1 Tangible assets

Particulars 1 ,_Plal.“ and ‘ Ofﬁce Leasehold Computers Furr!iture and Vehicles Total
Equip 1t Equip Improvements Fixtures

Deemed Cost
As at 01 April 2023 6.56 80.95 132.86 14.48 46.51 164,14 445,50
Additions 0.63 1.20 - 10.94 . 0.27 - 13.03
Disposal - - - - = - -
Foreign currency transition differences - 0.43 - - - 248 292
As at 31 March 2024/ 01 April 2024 7.18 82,59 132.86 25.42 46.77 166.62 461.45
Additions - 4.04 - 4.51 - 34,56 43,10
Disposal - - - = = -
Foreign currency transition differences - 0.73 - - - 4.42 5.15
As at 31 March 2025 7.18 87.35 132,86 29,93 46.77 205.60 509.69
Accumulated depreciation
As at 01 April 2023 6.18 71.46 103.78 8.38 37.96 37.28 265,04
Charge for the year 0.07 ' 3.33 10.93 2.89 243 20.74 40.38
Disposals/adjusiments - - - - = = -
Foreign currency transition differences - 0.41 - - - 0.71 1.12
As at 31 March 2024/ 01 April 2024 6.25 75.20 114.71 11.27 40.39 58,72 306.54
Charge for the year 0.07 2.26 18.11 5.95 2.31 20.98 49.69
Disposals/adjustments - - = - - - -
Foreign currency transition differences - (0.05) - - - 2.39 2.33
As at 31 March 2025 6.32 77.41 132,82 17.22 42.70 82,09 358.57
Carrying amount (net)
As at 31 March 2024/ 01 April 2024 0.94 7.39 18.15 14,15 6.38 107.90 154,91
As at 31 March 2025 0.86 9.94 0.04 12,71 . 407, 123.51 | 151.13

3.2 : Other Intangible Assets
. Computer |

. Intangible Assets Software i Total

Deemed Cost

' As at 01 April 2023 35.45 35.45

Additions 237 2,37
Disposal - -

As at 31 March 2024/ 01 April 2024 37.82 37.82

Additions - -
Disposal - -

As at 31 March 2025 | 37.82 37.82 |

Accumulated depreciation -

As at 01 April 2023 27.39 27.39

Charge for the year 3.61 3.61

Disposals/adjustments - -

As at 31 March 2024/ 01 April 2024 31.00 31.00

Charge for the year 3.32 3.32

Disposals/adjustments - -

As at 31 March 2025 34.32 34.32

Carrying amount (net)

As at 31 March 2024/ 01 April 2024 6.82 6.82

As at 31 March 2025 3.50 | 3.50
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(Al Amounts in Indian Rupees in lakhs, unless otherwise stated)
3.3 : Right of Use Assets (RoU)

ROU

Particulars (Building) Total
Deemed Cost
As at 01 April 2023 263.77 263,77
Additions - -
Disposal - -
As at 31 March 2024/ 01 April 2024 263.77 263.77
Additions - -
Disposai - -
As at 31 March 2025 263.77 26277
Accumulated depreciation
As at 01 April 2023 173.06 173.06
Charge for the year 45.36 45.36
Disposals/adjustments - -
As at 31 March 2024/ 01 April 2024 218,42 218.42
Charge for the year 4536 45.36
Disposals/adjustments - -
As at 31 March 2025 263,77 263.77
Carrying amount (net)
As at 31 March 2024/ 01 April 2024 45.36 45.36
As at 31 March 2025 {0.00) (0.00)

=]

(d.) Capital work in progress

Particulars cwip Total
Deemed Cost

As at April 1, 2023 - -

Additions 3.50 3.50
Disposal - -
As at March 31, 2024/ April 01, 2024 3.50 3.50
Additions 3.50 3.50
Disposal - -
As at 31 March 2025 7.00 7.00

CWIP Ageing Schedule as at 31 March 2025
Past Ageing (Ou ding Since)

Particulars Less than 1 yez 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 Total
| years
Capital work in progress 3.50 3.50 - - 7.00
CWIP Ageing Schedule as at 31 March 2024
Past Ageing (Outstanding Since)
Particulars Less than 1 yez 1.2 years 2-1 years More than 3 Total
| years
Capital work in progress 3.50 - - - 3.50
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(All Amounts in Indian Rupees in lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

4 Investments As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
4.1 Non-current
(i) Investments in equity instruments carried at cost (Unquoted)
Investment in Associates
Brajbhumi Nirmaan Private Limited
As at the beginning of the year 2,232.45 2,268:16
Adjustment for share of profit/(loss) in Associates (1.88) (35.71)
2,230.57 2,232.45
Darshan Nirman Private Limited
As at the beginning of the year (0.04) (0.04)
(0.04) (0.04)
The Company holds 2,500 (Previous year:2,500) Equity Shares of Rs 10 each.
Pranati Niketan Private Limited
As at the beginning of the year 0.02 0.02
0.02 0.02
2,230.55 2,232,43
(i) Investments in redeemable non-cumulative optionally convertible preference shares
Unquoted Investments in preference shares in associate carried at fair value through Profit or Loss: (fully paid)
Brajbhumi Nirmaan Private Limited 550.00 550.00
[5,50,000 shares of Rs 100 each, fully paid, Date of Maturity 30 November 2033]
(1% Redeemable Non-Cumulative optionally convertible preference shares)
(Initial Cost : Rs.550 lakhs)
550.00 550.00
Note: As per the audited consolidated financial statement of the associate entity the investment in optionally convertible
preference shares have been considered as compound financial instrument.
Investment in Joint Venture (Refer Note 4.3 below) 54,722.21 62,627.73
57,502.76 65,410.16
4.2 Non-current
(i Investments in mutual funds (Quoted) (refer note 4.4 below)
Baroda BNP Paribas Liquid Fund Regular Growth 132.48 =
Baroda BNP Paribas Ultra Short Duration fund Regular 200.10 -
332.58 -
4.2 Investments in Redeemable optionally convertible Non-cumulative Preference Shares:

Company has made investment in 1% Redeemable optionally convertible Non-cumulative Preference Shares of Brajbhumi
Nimaan Private Limited, an associate. These investments in shares does not satisfy contractual cash flow test as they are
optionally convertible into equity shares and their dividends are linked to profits earned. Accordingly, the Company has
classified these investments in shares at Fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL). The fair valuation for this purpose was
carried by an Independent firm of Chartered Accountants.
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(All Amounts in Indian Rupees in lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

4.3

Investment in Joint Venture

During the financial year ended 31 March 2019, the step down subsidiary company has made subscription for 50% share in
the issued share capital of Burj District Development Ltd (“JV Company”), Cayman Islands made up of 25,000 shares of B
class of US$ 1 each as per JV agreement. The joint venture is engaged to carry out any activities which is not prohibited by
the Companies Law ( 2011 revision) of Cayman Islands.

The JV Company has not opened bank account(s) and hence the share capital amount is contributed in its wholly owned
subsidiary during the year. The JV Company hold 1 share in Burj District One Limited, a wholly owned, which is a Jebel Ali
Offshore Company, Dubai, U.A.E. This subsidiary owns a plot of land on which the project “Exquisite Living Residencies" is
being managed, supervised and developed by the company. In terms of an agreement between JV partners, the group is
committed to contribute AED 165,000,000 towards the seed capital. Out of this amount the group has contributed AED
164,604,702 till 31 March 2025. Balance of AED 395,298 will be contributéd before the end of the next financial year.
Additionally, the group has incurred / capitalised AED 110,285,364 towards the cost of contributing the seed capital.

5  Other financial assets As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Unsecured, Considered Good
5.1 Non-current
Security deposits (carried at amortised cost)* 31.00 31.00
Security deposits (carried at cost)* 1.02 1.02
32.02 32.02
5.2 Current
Security deposits - Current (Carried at cost)* 209.25 92.83
Interest Accrued but not due 0.05 0.30
Advance to employees 1.38 17.85
Expenses Recoverable (refer note 5.4. below)* 157.33 167.33
Other receivables - 30.04
368.01 298.35
* These balances are subject to confirmation.
5.3 Includes expenses recoverable from related parties;
Brajbhumi Nirmaan Private Limited, India 157.33 157.33
157.33 157.33
5.4 Expenditure incurred against various projects under preview. The management after discussion has assessed its recoverability
and decided to take charge in profit and loss statement.
6 Deferred tax (Asset) / liability (net) As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
6.1 Tax effect of items constituting deferred tax liabilities
Unrealised gain on investment in mutual funds carried at fair value through profit or loss 0.51 —
Lease liabilities - (9.19)
0.51 (8.19)
6.2 Tax effect of items constituting deferred tax assets
Property, plant and equipment and Intangible assets 33.83 19.94
Provision for employee benefits obligations 21.32 20.34
Others (23.12) 99.24
32.03 139.52
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Unused Tax Losses 1,726.65 938

Less: Not considered for deferred tax purposes (1,207.76) (938)
518.90 .
487.38 -148.72

Also, refer note 27 for other tax related disclosures.

6.3  The Company offsets tax assets and liabilities if and only if it has a legally enforceable right to set-off current tax assets and
current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same tax
autharity.

6.4  Asthe management expects that the interest an Nan canvertible cumilative redeemahble Preferance shares will not be allowed
as a deduction, the income tax impact on the same has been recognised in Other Equity, since the initial recognition was in
Other Equity.

7 Other Assets As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Unsecured, Considered Good
7.1  Non-Current
Advances recoverable in cash or kind - 639.61
Less: Provision doubtful baalnces - (639.61)
Goods and Service Tax Refund (refer note 7.4 below) - 103.97
Karnataka VAT - refund receivable - 5.76
- 109.73
7.2 Current
Advance to vendors 291.32 2,399.86
Less: Provision for balance written off - (2,124.40)
Goods and Services tax input credit (Refer Note 7.3 below) 169.06 =
Prepaid expenses (refer note 7.5 below) 95.84 91.88
Credit of Input VAT = 1.19
556.22 368.53

7.3 Goods and Service Tax Input credits carried in the books includes input tax credits aggregating to Rs. lakhs 14.53 lakhs
(Previous year: 17.75 lakhs) relating to advance payments to vendors and unpaid vendors bills beyond time period stipulated
under GST Law, which will be claimed in the returns in the subsequent periods when the company is eligible to claim such
credits under the provisions of the GST Law.

7.4 Represents Goods and Service Tax paid on export of services which is expected to be claimed as refund,during the year the

company received full refund.

7.5 Includes Rs.71.98 lakhs (Previous year Rs.35.92 lakhs) on account of brokerage & sales commission paid to an agency for

services, on gross sale consideration receivable from customers. As per the agreement, in the event of non-completion of sale
transaction, such commission is refundable by the agency. The commission paid is charged to the Profit & Loss Statement as
and when revenue is recognised on a proportionate basis.

8 Inventories As at As at
(valued at lower of cost or net realizable value) 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Completed units ( Refer Note 8.1. below) 926.44 2,217.32
Construction Work-In-Progress (includes cost of Land , Borrowing Cost and Project Constr 17,443.56 16,199.19

and Development Cost) (Refer Note 8.2 below)

18,370.00 17,416.50
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8.1 Represents residential units in respect of which company has entered into agreement for sale with the respective customers,
amounts received against these agreements by the company has been reported as advance from customers in Note No. 18.
Pending receipt of balance consideration and execution of absolute sale deed effecting the transfer of legal title/deemed
handover of the property, the same is reported as Inventory.

8.2 The Management has reviewed the carrying value of its construction work-in-progress by assessing the net realisable value of
the project which is determined by forecasting sales rates, expected sale prices and estimated costs to complete (including
escalations and cost overrun). This review by the management did not result in any loss and thus no adjustments/ provisions
to the carrying value of project work-in-progress was required and external valuation was not considered necessary by the
Management. In respect of early stage projects, the underlying fair value of land based on valuation report of chartered
engineer was considered for the purpose of determining the net realisable value and the camying value of the construction
work-in-progress was found to be less than the net realisable value so ascertained.

9 Trade receivables

As at

As at

31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Unsecured, Considered Good

9.1 Current
Trade receivables - Related Parties (refer note 9.2. below) 1,921.63 1,777.63
Trade receivables - others* 0.08 936.67
1,921.71 2,714.30
9.2 Receivables from the related parties;
Zuari Industries Limited - 1,351.34
Brajbhumi Nirmaan Private Limited 404.02 404.02
Paradeep Phosphates Limited 5.06 5.06
Burj District One Ltd 1,512.55 -
Zuari Farmhub Limited - 17.22
1,921.63 1,777.63
*Balances are subject to confirmation
Particulars Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Less than 6 | 6 months -1 1-2 2-3 years More than 3 Total
months year years years

Undisputed Trade receivables — 1,512.63 - - 5.06 404.02 1,921.71
considered good

Previous year

Undisputed Trade receivables — 2,288.01 17.22 5.06 - 404.02 2,714.30
considered good

9.3 The Management of the Company expects full realisation of these receivables, accordingly no allowance towards non recovery

is considered necessary by the Management.

9.4 No trade or other receivables are due from directors or other officers of the company either severally or jointly with any other
person. Nor any trade or other receivable are due from firms or private companies respectively in which any director is a

partner, a director or a member.

10 Cash and bank balances

As at

As at

31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Cash and cash equivalent
Cash on hand
Balances held in banks in current account

Deposits held with banks with other than lien marked more than 3 months but less that 12

months maturity period*

Other balances held with bank
Balance in ESCROW accounts
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11 Share capital As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024

11.1
(i)  Authorised
6,00,00,000 (Previous year:5,00,00,000) Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each 6,000.00 6,000.00
1,50,00,000 (Previous year:1,50,00,000) Preference Shares of Rs. 10 each 1,500.00 1,500.00
7.500.00 7,500.00
(i) Issued, subscribed & paid up
5,52,63,157 (Previous year:5,00,00,000) Equity Shares of Rs 10 each 5,526.32 5,526.32
1,14,50,000 (Previous year:1,14,50,000) Non-Convertible Cumulative Redeemable 1,145.00 1,145.00

Preference Shares of Rs 10 each issued at premium of Rs. 90 each.

6,671.32 6,671.32

11.2 Reconciliation of equity shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting year:

As at As at
Particulars 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
{shares of Rs. 10/- each) Nos. Amount (Rs.) Nos. Amount (Rs.)
At the beginning of the year 5,52,63,157 5,526.32 5,00,00,000 5,000.00
Issued during the year = | - 52,63,157 526.32
Qutstanding at the end of the year 5,52,63,157 5,526.32 5,52,63,157 5,626.32

11.3 Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company as at 31 March 2024

As at As at

Name of the Shareholder 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
No's. % holding No's. % holding

Zuari Industries Limited, the Holding Company 5,52,63,157 ‘ 100% 5,52,63,157 100%

_(including 10,000 equity shares jointly held) |

maintained by the Company

11.4 Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to equity shares:

Company has only one class of equity shares having par value of Rs 10 per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitied to
one vote per share. In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of the equity shares are entitled to receive
remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the
number of the equity shares held by the Shareholder.

11.5 The company has not issued any securities convertible into equity/preference shares.

11.6 For the period of five years immediately preceding the date as at which the Balance Sheet is prepared :
No shares were allotted as fully paid up pursuant to a contract without payment being received in cash.
No shares were allotted as fully paid up by way of bonus shares.

No shares were bought back.

11.7 There were no shares reserved for issue under options and contracts/commitments for the sale of shares/disinvestment.
11.8 There were no calls unpaid or forfeited shares.
Refer Note 13.5 below for details of Cumulative Compulsarily redeemable preference shares issued by the Company.
11.4 During the previous year issued of 52,63,157(Fifty Two Lakhs and Sixty Three Thousand One Hundred Fifty Seven only) equity

shares of face value of Rs. 10/~ (Rupees Ten only) each at a premium of Rs. 28/- (Rupees Twenty Eight only) to Zuari
Industries Limited.
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12 Other equity As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
12.1 Deemed equity on fair-value adjustment to Non-convertible cumulative redeemable preference Shares:
Equity component of redeemable Preference Shares
, 562.11 562,11
Income tax effect on the interest portion on Preference shares (146.15) (146.15)
415.96 415.96
Alsa refer note 13 & below for detailed disclosure on preference shares.
12.2 Security Premium Account:
As at the beginning and end of the year 13,434.68 11,961.00
Add: Addition during the year - 1,473.68
13,434.68 13,434.68
12,3 Balance in profit and Loss Statement
As at the beginning of the year. (24,261.09) (9,365.85)
Add: Profit for the year before OCI (9,383.44) (14,895.25)
Net deficits in the profit and loss statement (33,644.53) (24,261.09)
12.4 Foreign currency translation reserve
As at the beginning of the year. 277.34 (645.57)
Exchange differences on translating the financial statements of foreign subsidiary 1,143.38 922.91
1,420.71 277.34
(18,373.18) (10,133.11)
13  Borrowings As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
13.1 Long-term borrowings:

U]

(i)

Secured Loans

Term Loans from others:

IIFL Wealth Prime Limited -Debentures
AXIS Finance Limited

Less: Amortization as per IND AS

Bajaj Finance Limited

Unsecured Loans

Inter-Corporate Deposits from related parties
Akshay Poddar

Globalware Trading & Holdings Limited, UAE
Zuari International Limited

Zuari Industries Limited (refer note 13.3(i) below)

Other Loans (refer note 13.4)
Fairy Ryde Limited
Purshottam Kanji Co

Liability component of compound financial instrument
Non-Convertible Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares
(Also, refer note 13.6 below)
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- 9,000.00
14,250.00
(123.40) -
15,500.00 -
29,626.60 9,000.00
" 3,382.82
1,221.55 1,648.93
21,057.93 40,107.49
6,697.00 1,060.75
28,976.49 46,199.99
601.48 1,243.58
- 1,362.75
601.48 2,606.33
1,145.00 1,145.00
60,349.56 58,951.32
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13.2
U]

(i)

13.3
U]

(ii)

13.4

13.5
U]

(i)

Short -term borrowings:

Secured Loans
Term Loans from others

Vehicle Loan . 41.32
Barclays Bank PLC 18,500.00 11,090.64
IIFL Wealth Management Limited - 7,499.64
Interest Accrued but not due on current borrowings 136.09 378.00
Interest Accrued but not due on non-current borrowings 112.08 -
18,748.17 19,009.60
Unsecured loans
Inter-Corporate Deposits from related parties
Adventz Finance Private Limited 8,200.00 6,400.00
Indian Furniture Products Limited 30.47 29.74
8,230.47 6,429.74
Inter-Corporate Deposits from others
Toshniwal Brothers (SR} P Ltd . 206.90
Purvi Iron Limited - 151.97
Maruna Exports P Ltd - 201.02
- 559.90
26,978.63 25,999.24

Unsecured Inter-Corporate Deposits from related parties

Zuari Industries Limited, Holding Company

Unsecured inter-corporate deposit taken from Zuari Industries Limited, the holding company to meet the working capital needs
of the Company for a period of upto 3 years.

Terms of Repayment:

Particulars i Outstandin Loans Repaid Interest Outstanding Due Date*
g during the accured and 31 March 2025
31 March :  Year due
2024
Loan (including interest accured) 1,060.76 12,355.00 6,718.75 - 6,697.00 31-Mar-28
‘Total 1,060.76 12,355.00 6,718.75 - 6,697.00

* Due dates after considering rollover/ renewal during the year.

Adventz Finance Private Limited
During the year Additional loan for working capital purpose of Rs. 8200 lakhs from Adventz Finance Private Limited, a group
company carries interest rate of 12.5% p.a. from 1 Januanry 2025 11.50%. The loan outstanding including interest accruals as
at 31 March 2025 is Rs.8200 lakhs (Previous Year: Rs.6,400 lakhs).

Other Unsecured Loans

This represents unsecured and 12% (0 to 12%) per annum interest bearing loans availed from related and non-related parties
which are repayable within a period of 2 years.The parties has also agreed to extend the financial support to the Company by
not demanding payment of their outstanding dues till such time as the company's equity is restored

Non-Convertible Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares:
Reconciliation of Shares Outstanding at the beginning and end of the reporting year

As at As at
Non-Convertible Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares of Rs 10 each, issued |
|at premium Rs 90 per share 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
At the beginning of the year 1,14,50,000 | 1,14,50,000
\Issued during the year - -
'Outstanding at the end of the year 1,14,50,000 1,14,50,000
Shares holding more than 5% as at the beginning and end of the reporting year
Non-Convertible Cumulative Redeemable Preference As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024
Shares of Rs 10 each, issued at premium Rs 90 per In No’s In % ! In No's In%
\Mr. Saroj Kumar Poddar o | 85,00,000 74% 85,00,000 74%
Texmaco Infrastructure & Holdings Limited 29,50.000 26% 29,50,000 26%
Outstanding at the end of the year 1,14,50,000 100% 1,14,50,000 100%
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(iii)

(iv)

Rights, preferences & restrictions attached to Non-Convertible Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares:

The Company has only one class of non-convertible preference share having a par value of Rs 10 per share, carrying coupon
rate of 8.5% per annum which are cumulative in nature and redeemable on 31 Mar 2029 (70,00,000 Shares), 31 Mar 2029
(15,00,000 Shares) and 31 March 2027 (29,50,000 Shares) respectively. During the year the Company has extended the
redenption period of 85,00,000 preference shares which was due on 31 March 2025 to 31 March 2029, these share are
reedmable at a price band of Rs. 125 - Rs. 150 per preference share. Each holder of preference shares is entitled to one vote
per share on resolutions placed before the company.

Pursuant to Schedule 1ll of the Companies Act 2013 ("the Act"), for companies whose financial statements are drawn up in
compliance of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 read with Indian Accounting Standard 32 -
Disclosure of Financial Instruments, Non-convertible redeemable cumulative preference shares which are settled in cash
needs to be classified as ‘financial liability' and not 'equity'. Accordingly company has computed the fair value of these
preference shares considering the effective interest rate (EIR) at 14% and the portion computed as 'Borrowing' amounting to
Rs.1,145.00 lakhs (Previous Year : Rs.1,145.00 lakhs) has been classified under 'Long-term Borrowings' and the portion
computed as the deemed equity amounting to Rs. 415.96 lakhs (Previous year : Rs.415.96 lakhs), net of taxes has been
reported under 'Other Equity".

With respect to premium received on issue as well as the additional premium payable on redemption of preference shares no
adjustments/ disclosures has been carried out as contemplated in Ind-AS 32 and Ind-AS 109 read with Schedule Ill of the Act,
since such classification of the 'securities premium account' into 'borrowings' or 'other equity’ will be inconsistent with the
provisions of section 52 of the Act which stipulates the manner in which the securities premium account can be utilised. Also
the additional premium payable on the redemption has not been recognised in the absence of the accumulated profits since
recognition of such a liability will be violative of section 55 of the Act.

Considering above, the Company has been legally advised that no further recognition or adjustments to the premium amounts
are required in view of the specific provisions of section 52 and 55 of the Act. Accordingly, no adjustments as required under
Ind-AS 32 and Ind-AS 108 read with Schedule Il of the Act are made in respect of the premium payable on redemption

14 Lease Liabilities As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Current
Lease Liability . 118.18
= 119.18
- 119.18
(i.) The movement in lease liabilities is as follows:
Particulars For the year For the year
ended March 31,| ended March 31, '
2025 2024
Balance at the beginning* 111.38 169.29
Finance cost accrued during the year 7.7 18.90
Payment/payable towards lease liabilities 118.55 76.82
Balance as at the end - 111.38

(ii.)

*excluding refundable rent deposit of Rs.26.70 lakhs carried at amortised cost.

The details of the contractual maturities of lease liabilities as at 31 March 2024 on an undiscounted basis are as follows

Particulars For the year As at March 31
ended March 31, 2024
I 2025
|Less than one year - 99.64
Total i - 99.64
15  Trade payables As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
15.1 Non-Current
Retention Money - non current (carried at cost)* 63.22 114.06
63.22 114.06
15.2 Current
Retention Money - current (carried at cost)* 362.23 633.26
Dues to related parties (carried at cost) 1.52 1.52
Dues to micro & small enterprises (carried at cost)* 0.03 0.51
Dues to others (carried at cost)* 642.01 1,961.32
1,005.80 2,596.62
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Particulars
Less than 1-2 years
1 year
(i) MSME 0.03
|previous year B 13.27
(i) Others 263.44
previous year 442.29

Qutstanding for following periods from due date of payment

111.42
228.34

More than 3
years

266.24
33.48

Total

0.03
13.27
720.16
952.24

15.3 Details of dues to micro and small enterprises as defined under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act,

2006 (MSME Act) based on the information available with the Company are as under:

16

Principal amount due to suppliers under MSME Act 0.03 13.27
* Balances are subject to confirmation
Other Financial Liabilities As at As at

31 March 2025

31 March 2024

16.1 Current

Other financial liabilities (carried at cost)

Current maturity of long term loans (refer note 13) 750.00 -
Other Deposits 44.29 14.96
Due to employees 92.63 117.67
Due to related parties 453.77 -
Due to others 8.53 272.55
1,349.22 405.18
17 Other liabilities As at As at

31 March 2025

31 March 2024

Statutory dues
Advances from customers relating to;

- Completed units pending registration or transfer of possession

- Construction work-in-progress

- Maintenance charges

- Other customer advances (refer note 18.1 below)
Payable to Joint Venture

338.90 576.76
512.69 2,195.54
1,411.84 377.20
737.49 708.67
60,795.49 66,167.21
63,796.41 70,025.38

17.1 Includes advances of Rs.44.55 lakhs (Previous Year:Rs.433.49 lakhs) in respect of cancelled residential units in respect of
which the Company is in negotiation with parties for selling units of other projects against which these amounts are expected to
be adjusted and Rs. 731.77 lakhs (Previous year: Rs.323.01 lakhs) collected from the buyers towards club membership

charges fees which will be adjusted against the expenses incurred in this regard.

18

Provisions

As at
31 March 2025

As at
31 March 2024

18.1 Non-Current

Provision for gratuity obligation
Provision for compensated absences

18.2 Current

Provision for gratuity obligation
Provision for compensated absences
Staff end of service benefits

Also, refer note 35 for detailed disclosures on employee benefit plans.
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19  Revenue from operations For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Sale of residential units 1,199.19 4,192.90
Development management fees 1,5673.13 2,424.71
2,772.32 6,617.61
20 Other income For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Interest Income on ;
Deposits with Bank 0.10 55.97
Income tax refund 15.64 2.486
Gains from redemption of Mutual Fund 10.60 38.26
Premium of Redemption of Preference shares - 50.00
Other miscellaneous income 18.31 8.97
44.65 155.65
21 Project construction and development expenses For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Civil Work 1,034.15 513.43
Rework expenses charged to profit and loss 3.47 5.35
1,037.62 518.78
Add: Borrowing cost incurred during the year 1,022.23 275.47
Add: Employee benefit expenses transferred to construction work ir 187.99 40.48
2,247.84 834.74
22  Changes in inventories For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Completed units of stock
Completed units at the beginning of the year pursuant to Ind AS 11: 2,217.32 519.21
Add: Tranferred from construction Work-in- progress - 1.698.11
Less: Cost of Projects (1,075.26) -
Less: Finance cost transferred from inventories (215.61) =
Completed units at the end of the year 926.44 2,217.32
Changes in completed units during the year 1,290.87 (1,698.11)
Construction Work-in- progress
Construction work-in-progress at the beginning of the year 15,199.19 21,488.32
Add: Construction cost incurred during the year 2,247.84 834.74
Less: Cost of Projects - (3,831.37)
Less: Finance cost transferred from inventories = (1,589.04)
Less: Tranferred to completed units stock - (1,698.11)
Less: Modification/rework charges charged to profit and loss during (3.47) (5.35)
Construction work-in-progress at the end of the year 17,443.56 15,199.19
Changes in construction work in progress (2,244.37) 6,289.13
Less: Changes in WIP related finance cost 215.61 1,589.04
(2,459.98) 4,700.09
Total (Increase) / Decrease (a+b) (953.50) 4,591.02
23  Employee benefit expenses For the year ended For the year ended

31 March 2025

31 March 2024

Salaries and wages

Contribution to provident and other funds
Gratuity

Compensated absences

Staff welfare expenses

Less: Employee benefit expenses transferred to construction work i

1,106.13 1,003.41
28.21 5.74
89.76 30.40

6.45 14.36
28.63 22,61
1,259.19 1,076.52
(187.99) (40.48)
1,071.20 1,036.04

Co:
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24  Finance costs For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Interest expense:
Interest on borrowings 10,325.90 9,129.17
Finance cost transferred from inventrories 215.61 1,589.04
Fair value adjustment pursuant to Ind AS: ]
Interest on lease liability (refer note 14) 7.17 18.90
10,548.68 10,737. 11
Less: Borrowing cost transferred to construction work in progress (1,022.23) (275.47)
9,526.45 10,461.64
25 Depreciation and amaortization expenses For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Depreciation of Property, plant and equipment 95.05 85.74
Amortisation of intangible assets 3.32 3.61
98.37 89.35
26  Other expenses For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Rent 37.73 17.90
Travel and conveyance 88.29 101.32
Legal and professional fees 71.51 130.13
Communication and internet charges 16.46 14.37
Office Expenses 69.54 74.75
Repairs and maintenance 35.04 23.33
Auditors remuneration 14.95 21.54
Recruitment expenses, net 17.69 5.45
Maintenance charges 12.57 58.28
Advertising and publicity 200.20 64.93
Rates and taxes 9.63 48.35
Commission & Brokerage 30.31 399.46
Loss on redemption of Preference shares - 162.00
Maintenance and Security 75.44 72.76
Insurance 42.58 46.72
Business development expenses 28.91 ¥
Directors sitting fees 5.60 4.40
Miscellaneous expenses 2,07 10.72
Balances written-off, net - 315.49
758.54 1,571.90
26.1 Remuneration to Auditors' reported above includes
Statutory Audit Fees 8.75 8.75
Tax Audit Fees 1.00 1.00
Certification fees 6.71 3.75
16.46 13.50
27  Income Tax For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Income tax expense - (63.04)
Deferred tax charge/(credit) (398) (48.06)
(398.16) (111.10)
27.1 The tax effects of timing differences that resulted in changes For the year ended For the year ended

in deferred tax are as follows:

31 March 2025

31 March 2024

Interest accrued on preference shares issued (Adjustment pursuani
Difference between accounting base and tax base of tangible & Intz
Unwinding of security deposit received

Temporary differences on benefit obligations

Other adjustments

Fair valuation of investment in mutual funds

Unused Tax Losses

Fair valuation of leases

= 10.23
(12.98) 15.98
(0.98) (3.85)
- (45.07)
153.38 6.32
0.51 -
(518.90) :
(19.18) (10.10)
(398.16) (26.48)

27.2 Deferred tax assets arising from the carry forward of unused tax losses nare recognised to the extent of Rs. 518.90 lakhs in
these financial statements as there is convincing evidence that sufficient taxable profit will be available in the future against
which the unused tax losses can be utilised by the Company, which is considered appropriate by the Management.
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28 Disclosure of Interest in subsidiaries, joint arrangements and associates:

28.1 Disclosure of Interest in the following subsidiaries:

Name Country Ownership Interest of ZIlL (%) Method used to

of As at As at account for

Incorporation 31 March 2025 31 March 2024 investments

Zuari Infra Middle East Ltd UAE 100% 100% Line by line
consolidation
28.2 Disclosure of Interest in the following associates:

Name Country Ownership Interest of ZIIL (%) Method used to

of As at As at account for

Incorporation 31 March 2025 31 March 2024 Investments
Brajbhumi Nirmaan Private Limited India 25% 25% Equity Accounting
Darshan Nirman Private Limited India 25% 25% Equity Accounting
Pranati Niketan Private Limited India 25% 25% Equity Accounting

Also, refer Note 2(c) for detailed disclosure and accounting treatment.
Note: As at 31 March 2025 Brajbhumi Nirmaan Private Limited holds 50% (Previous year: 50%) of Darshan Nirman Private Limited and
50% (Previous year: 50%) of Pranati Niketan Private Limited.

28.3 Information regarding Associates:

i. Carrying amount of investment in Associates As at As at

31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Darshan Nirmaan Private Limited (0.04) (0.04)
Pranati Nirmaan Private Limited 0.02 0.02
Brajbhumi Nirmaan Private Limited 2,230.57 2,232.45
ii. Share of Profit/(loss) of Associates As at As at

31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Brajbhumi Nirmaan Private Limited (1.88) (35.71)

Note: Also refer note 4 of the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025.

28.4 Summarised financial information of the joint ventures, based on its Ind AS financial statements and reconciliation with the carrying
amount of the investment in consolidated financial statements are set out below:

(a) DARSHAN NIRMAAN PRIVATE LIMITED

i. Summarised Balance Sheet As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Current assets, including cash and cash equivalents 362.33 277.49
Non-current financial liabilities (365.49) (280.50)
Equity (3.16) (3.01)
Proportion of the Group’s ownership 25% 25%
Group's Share in Net Assets (0.79) (0.75)
Value of Goodwill on consolidation 0.36 0.36
Value of the investment (0.43) (0.39)

ii. Summarised Profit and Loss Statement

For the year ended For the year ended

31 March 2025

31 March 2024

Other Expenses (0.15) (0.14)
Profit/(loss) before tax {0.15) (0.14)
Income tax (expense)/credit - =

Profit/(loss) for the year (0.15) (0.14)
Other Comprehensive Income * -

Total comprehensive income (0.15) (0.14)
Proportion of the Group’s share 25% 25%
Group’s share of profit/(loss) for the year (0.04) (0.04)

VSPV & Lo
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(b)

(c)

PRANATI NIRMAAN PRIVATE LIMITED

i. Summarised Balance Sheet As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Current assets, including cash and cash equivalents 217.85 217.87
Non-current financial liabilities (220.42) (220.29)
Equity (2.57) (2.42)
Proportion of the Group’s ownership 25% 25%
Group's Share in Net Assets (0.64) (0.60)
Value of Goodwill on consolidation 0.36 0.36
Value of the investment (0.28) {0.24)

il. Summarised Profit and Loss Statement

31 March 2026

For the year ended For the year ended

31 March 2024

Other Expenses (0.15) (0.14)
Profit/(loss) before tax (0.15) {0.14)
Income tax (expense)/credit - -
Profit/(loss) for the year (0.15) (0.14)
Other Comprehensive Income i =
Total comprehensive income (0.15) (0.14)
Proportion of the Group's share 25% 25%
Group’s share of profit/(loss) for the year (0.04) (0.04)
BRAJBHUMI NIRMAAN PRIVATE LIMITED
i. Summarised Balance Sheet As at As at

31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Current assets, including cash and cash equivalents 23,229.56 21,972.19
Non-current assets 27.61 28.28
Current liabilities including financial liabilities (12,015.84) (17,264.77)
Non current financial liabilities (3,667.86) (725.81)
Less: Deemed Equity (1,233.32) (1,233.32)
Equity 6,340.15 2,776.57
Proportion of the Group's ownership 25% 25%
Group's Share in Net Assets 1,585.04 694.14
Value of Goodwill on consolidation 1,590.01 1,590.01
Adjustments for unrealised profits (17.66) (17.66)
Value of the investment 3,157.38 2,266.49

Summarised Profit and Loss Statement

For the year ended

31 March 2025

For the year ended

31 March 2024

Other Income

Purchase of Stock in trade

Change in inventories of finished goods, work in progress and stock in trade)
Employee Benefits Expense

Finance Cost

Depreciation and amortization expense

Other Expenses

Profit/(loss) before tax
Income tax (expense)/credit
Profit for the year

Other Comprehensive Income
Total comprehensive income

Proportion of the Group’s share
Group’s share of profit/(loss) for the year

0.27 0.41
0.27 0.41
1,199.77 1,319.11
(1,199.77) (1,319.11)
0.23 0.25
0.28 35.02
0.08 0.96
7.19 106.86
7.78 143.09
(7.51) (142.68)
(7.51) (142.68)
(7.51) (142.68)
25% 25%
{1.88) (35.67)

Note: The above furnished information are extracted from the audited financial statements of that associate entities for the year ended 31

March 2025.
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291

29.2

29.3

29.4

30

Commitments and Contingencies

Contingent Liabilities (not provided for)

Particulars 31 March 2025 31 March 2024 |
Dividend on Non Convertible redeemable cumulative preference shares not yet declared 926.20 828.87
Tax demand for defaults under Section 201 of Income Tax Act, 1961 as per TRACES portal 6.34 6.34

of Income tax website, against which company is in the process of filing rectification. |

GST demands in excess of provisions (pending in appeals aginst which Rs.12.71 lakhs paid' 258.16 -
as deposit for appeals)

Customer claims not acknowledged by the Parent Company 171.00 105.45

As per the audited consolidated Financial statements of Brajbhumi Nirmaan Private Limited, an associate entity, disputed
tax demands to the extent not provided for is as under:

(@) Income Tax demand pertaining to AY.2015-16 (FY 2014-15) pending before' 427.66 | 427.66 |
Commissioner Income Tax (Appeals) Kolkata. Against this demand, Parent Company has|

deposited as on the date is Rs.27.46 lakhs (Previous year: Rs. 27.46 lakhs )

the Company has certain litigations involving customers, for which a sufficiently reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation
cannot be made. Based on management assessment and in-house legal team's advice, the management believes that the
Company has reasonable chances of succeeding before the courts/appellate authorities and does not foresee any material liability.
Pending the final decision on the matters, no further provision has been made in the financial statements.

Capital Commitments

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on Project construction and development, net of advances aggregates to,

Zuari Infraworld India Limited, Parent Company 738.49 1,501.88
Zuari Infra Middle East Limited, Subsidiary Company - 1,285.04
738.49 2,786.92

Pledge of assets:

The Company has executed Corporate Guarantees with the Zuari Industries Limited, the holding company in favour of Canara Bank
for extending financing facility to Zuari Industries Limited, the hoiding company.The company has also provided security by way of
Mortgate on Project land of company for this financing facility

Earnings Per Share ("EPS")

Basic Earnings Per share (EPS) amounts are calculated by dividing the profit for the year attributable to equity holders of the parent
by the weighted average number of Equity shares outstanding during the year. There are no dilutive potential equity shares,
accordingly the Diluted EPS are also calculated by dividing the profit attributable to equity holders by the weighted average number
of equity shares outstanding during as at the end year.

The following reflects the income and share data used in the computation of basic and diluted EPS :
(No. of shares in absolute numbers)

Particulars 31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Profit before OCI attributable to equity holders of the parent company (9.383.44) (14,895.25)
Weighted Average number of equity shares used for computing EPS (Basic & Diluted) 5,62,63,157.00  5,00,57,678.43
Earning/(Loss) Per Share (Basic and Diluted) (Rs.) (16.98) (29.76)
Face value per share (Rs.) 10.00 10.00
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31 Related Party Disclosures

31.1 Details of related party and their relationship with the Company:

'Sl

No

Tt
_ 2|

24

25

26

27
28
29
30

a0

31
az

34 Athar Sahab, Managing Director, Zuari Industries Limited

35

36 Akhilesh Thakur, Chief Financial officer [appomted w.e.f February 5,

37 Laxman Aggarwal, Company Secretary (appointed w.e.f February 5,

38

ag

40

41
42
43
44

a3

Name of the related party

Zuari Industries Limited
Zuari Infra Middle East Limited, UAE

 Zuari Infraworld SJM Properties LLC, UAE (formerly SJM Elysium

‘Properties LLC)

Burj District Dé\relupman! Limited, Cayman Islands

_ Burj District One Limited, UAE
Bralhhurnl Nirmaan F'rlva!e Limited
Darshan Nl{mar‘l Private L:mrled
Pranali Niketan Private Limited

_Rosewood Agencles Private Limited

Neobeam Agents Private Limited
Mayapur Commercial Private Limited

Nexus Vintrade Privata Limited

Bahubali Tradecomm Private Limiled

_Hopeful Sales Private Limited

Divine Realdev Private Limited

_ Kushal Infraproperty Private Limited
Beatle Agencies Privale Limiled
Suhana Properties Private Limited
Saket Mansions Private Limited
Zuarl Management Services Limited
Slmon India Limited

| Zuari Finserv Limited (formerly known as Zuari Finserv Private

Limited) o
_Indian Furniture Froducts Limited
Zuarl Intemational Limited
Zuari Insurance Brokers Limited
Forte Furnifure Products India Private Limiled
 Zuari Envien Bioenergy Privale Limited
Zuari IAV Private Umlled
Fexmacn Infrastructure & Ho!dmgs Limited
Zuari Agrs Chemicals Limited
“Adventz Finance Private Limited
_Saroj Kumar Poddar
Akshay Poddar

| Puja Poddar

Alak Banerjee CEO & Dlr‘eclur
2024)

12024 resigned w.e.f May 17, 2024)

Yadvinder Goyal, Company Secretary (appointed w.e.f January 30,
2025 resigned w.e.f March 30, 2025) i
Akshar K. Biyani, Company Secratary (appointed w.e.f May 09. 2025)

Adventz Trading DMCC
Globalware Trading & Holdings Ltd, U.AE
Indian Furniture Products Limited. U.A.E

Green Tree Praperty Management Co. LLC. U.AE.

Vinay Varma

31.2 Details of transactions with related parties:

Sl
No

1

'Particulars

Management Fees Income

:Zuari Agro Chemicals Limited

Zuan Industries Limiled

Expenses,Service Charges, Reimbursement
Zuari Industries Limited

Simon India Limited

Zuari Mangement Service Limited

‘Adventz Finance Private Limited

‘Zuari International Limited

\Zuari Finserv Limited

Chariered A&.oun tants
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Nature of relationship with the Company
Holding Company

! Subsidiary
Step down Subsidiary

Jaint Venture of Step down subsidiary

Subsidiary of the Joint Venture of Step down subsidiary

Assoclates
Associates
Assoriates
Subsidiary of Brajbhumi Nirmaan Private Limited
Subsidiary of Brajbhumi Nirmaan Private Limiled
Subsidlary of Brajbhu irmaan Private Limited
Subsidiary of Brajbhu maan Privale Limited
Subsidiary of Brajbhumni Nirmaan Private Limited
Subsidiary of Brajbhumi Nirmaan Private Limited
Subsidiary of Brajbhumi Nirmaan Privale Limited
Subsidiary of Brajbhumi Nirmaan Private Limited
. Subsidiary of Brajbhumi Nirmaan Private Limited
Subsidiary of Brajbhumi Nirmaan Private Limited
_ Subsidiary of Brajbhumi Nirmaan Frivate Limited
Fellow Subsidiaries
| Fellow Subsidiaries
| Fellow Subsidiaries

Fellow Subsidiaries

Fellow Subsidiaries

Fellow Subsidiaries

Fellow Sub5|d|ar|es

_Joint Venture of Hufdlng Company
" Joint Venture of Holding Company
Associates of Holding Company
Associates of Holding Company
Promoter of Holding Company

_ Director of holding company

Person having significant influence & relative of director of holding:

company.

Persan having significant influence in subsidiary & relative of director af

tholding company.

_Key Management Personnel

_ Key Management Persannel
Key Management Personnel

' Key Management Personnel

| Key Management Personnel

Key Management Persannel

| Entifies having comman management control with subsidairy
Entities having common management control with subsidairy
_ Entities having common management control with subsidairy

Joint Venture of Step down subsidiary
Key Managemen! Personnel of subsidiary

Year ended
31 March 2025

4.80

15.44
3.60
50.79
99,56
1.56
0.89

Year ended
31 March 2024

25.20
1.217.36

187.73
3.60 |

95.71
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' 8l. |Particulars
No

2 Inter-Corporate Deposits Taken - Liability
Zuari Industries Limited
- Accepled
- Repayment
{Texmaca Infrastructure & Holdings Limited
- Repayment
‘Adventz Finance Private Limited
I- Accepted
- Repayment
1Zuarl International Limited
‘- Accepled
- Repayment
'Globalware Trading & Holdings Ltd
|- Repayment
'Akshay Poddar
|- Repayment
3 Interest on ICD (Expenses)
Zuari Industries Limited
!Zuari International Limited
_Texmace Infrastructure & Holdings Limited
4 Escrow& Restricted accounts
Burj District One Limited, UAE

31.3 Compensation paid to Key management personnel compensation:

"SI, Particulars
No
1 Short-term employee benefits
lAlok Banerjee, Chief Executive Officer & Director
'Anshul Amit Bansal, Chief Financial officer
|Dayanand G S Company Secretary
iKarishma Tyagi, Company Secretary
Akhllesh Thakur, Chief Financial officer
__ Vinay Verma, Key Management Personnel of subsidiary
2 Retirement benefits (Provident fund and Gratuity)
Alok Banerjee, CEQ & Direclor
Akhilesh Thakur, Chief Financial officer
3 Sitting fees
 Directors sitting fees to Non-executive Direclors
‘Total compensation

31.4 Year-end balances
Particulars

‘ Sl
'No
1 | Trade receivable
'Brajbhumi Nirmaan Private Limited
1Zuari Industries Limited
|Expenses Recoverable
|Brajbhumi Nirmaan Private Limited
Loans from related parties:
‘Zuari Industries Limited
Globalware Trading & Holdings Ltd
Zuari International Limited
_Akshay Paddar
4 Remuneration payable / dues to employees
Vinay Varma

N

Py

5 Investments in redeemable non-cumulative optionally convertible preference shares

| Brajbhumi Nirmaan Frivate Limited
Escrow& Restricted accounts
‘Brajbhumi Nirmaan Private Limited

o

31.5 Terms and conditions

Year ended
31 March 2025

12,565.00
6,928.75

8,200.00
6,400.00

5,875.00
24,924.62

467.85
3,465.85
343.26 ,
3,41 8-08
75.840.26
Year ended

31 March 2025

169.69

44.30
204.59 .

8,63

-

5.60 |
391.62

Year ended,
31 March 2025;

404,02

157.33
6,697.00 |
1,221.55

21,057.93 ,

453.77

550.00

75,840.26

Year ended
31 March 2024

2,834.00 |
1,925.05

500.00

6,400.00 -
2,400.00

27.825,00
4,598 .42

340.69

98.93
2,995.20
55.66

65,082.66

Year ended
31 March 2024

150.07
15.70
0.63
2,74
13.90
155.61

7.86
0.53

4.40
351.43

Year ended|
31 March 2024|

404.02
1,351.34

15733
|

1,648.93
40,107.49
3,382.82
272,55
5§50.00

B5,082.66

All transactions with related pariies are made on terms equivalent to those that prevail in arm's length transactions and in the normal course of

business.
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32

321

(i)

(ii.)

(iii.)

322

(i)

(ii.)

Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Company’s principal financial liabilities, comprise of loans and borrowings, trade and other payables, security deposits and
employee dues. The main purpose of these financial liabilities is to finance the Company’s operations and to provide guarantees
to support its operations. The Company's principal financial assets include loans, trade and other receivables and cash and short-
term deposits that derive directly from its operations.

The Company is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company's senior management oversees the
management of these risks. The Company's senior management is supported by the finance team that advises on financial risks
and the appropriate financial risk governance framework for the Company. Further, the company is primarily operating in the real
estate sector which is subject to The Real Estate (Regulation and Development) Act, 2016 (RERA).

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market
prices. Market risk comprises three types of risk: interest rate risk, currency risk and other price risk, such as equity price risk and
commaodity risk. Financial instruments affected by market risk include loans and borrowings, deposits and investments in mutual
funds.

Interest rate risk:

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in
market interest rates. The Company's exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the Company’s
long-term debt obligations with floating interest rates.

The Company manages its interest rate risk by having a balanced portfolio of fixed and variable rate loans and borrowings. Loan
facility from Bajaj Finance Ltd. is subject to floating rate of interest based on RBI Repo Rate, while the borrowings from the related
entities carry interest at a fixed rates.

Interest sensitivity analysis Outstanding Increase/ Effect on profit
Loan facility decrease in before tax
subject to basis points

floating rates
For the year ended 31 March 2025 ]
Increase in base points 15,500.00 +50 77.50

Decrease in base points -50 -
For the year ended 31 March 2024

Increase in base points - +50 | -
Decrease in base points - -50 -

Foreign currency risk:

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate because of changes in foreign
exchange rates. The Company’s exposure to the risk of changes in foreign exchange rates relates primarily to the Company's
operating activities (when revenue or expense is denominated in a foreign currency) and the Parent Company’s net investments in
foreign subsidiaries.

Equity price risk
The Company’s non-listed equity securities are susceptible to market price risk arising from uncertainties about future values of
the investment securities. The Company’s Board of Directors reviews and approves all Investment decisions.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract, leading to a
financial loss. The Company is exposed to credit risk from its operating activities (primarily trade receivables) and from its
financing activities, including deposits with banks and financial institutions, foreign exchange transactions and other financial
instruments.

Trade receivables

Sale of units (Villas/ Villaments & Appartments):

Customner credit risk is managed by "CRM team" subject to the Company’s established policy, procedures and control relating to
customer credit risk management. Outstanding customer dues with respect to Customers demands are regularly monitored for
proactive actions.

Development Management Fees:
Apart from real estate activities, the Company also provides Project Development services. The Trade Receivables includes dues
from these activities aggregated to Rs.1,861.60 lakhs (Previous year Rs 319.69 lakhs).

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date on an individual basis for these entities. The Company does not hold
collaterals as security. The Company evaluates the concentration of risk with respect to trade receivables as Nil, as its customers
are related and are part of the same group and with respect of sale of flats & villas the sale deed is executed only after the
realisation.
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32.3 Liquidity risk
The Company monitors its risk of a shortage of funds regularly and is directly monitored by CFO of the company .

The Company's objective is to maintain balance between continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of bank loans and
Debt Preference Shares.

The management expects to renew/rollover all of the short term debts/borrowings that are falling due in next 12 months. Further
the Company is confident of increased operational cash inflows from bookings of flats/villas/apartments and is also ensured of
continued support from its Holding/ Associates Companies and the Promoters.

The management also obtained consent from the preference shareholders for extension of the redemption of preference shares
which are due for redemption on 31 March 2025, These preference shares are now due for redemption on 31 March 2029,

32.4 Capital Management
For the purpose of the Company's capital management, capital includes issued equity capital, share premium and all other equity
reserves attributable to the equity holders of the parent. The primary objective of the Company's capital management is to ensure
their ability to continue as going concern and maximise the shareholder value.

The company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in economic conditions and the
requirements of the financial covenants. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the company may adjust the dividend payment
to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares. The company monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is
net debt divided by total capital plus net debt.

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Company’'s financial liabilities based on contractual
undiscounted payments as at 31 March 2025:

Particulars Ondemand <3 month !3to12months 1to3years @ > 3years Total
Borrowings - 16,648.17 11,681.94 53,771.48 5,226.60 87,328.20

(Incl. Debt portion of
Preference Shares)

Trade pa_yabi'es 36.58 195.92 456,14 377.86 2.51 1,069.01
Other financial liabilities - 63.56 535.66 = | - 599.22
Total 36.58 16,907.65 12,673.75 54,149.34 5,229.11 88,996.43

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Company’s financial liabilities based on contractual
undiscounted payments as at 31 March 2024:

Particulars Ondemand <3 month 3to12months 1to3years > 3 years Total
Borrowings - 7.379.22 18,620.02 56,745.57 1,145.00 83,889.81

{Inc!. Debt portion of
Preference Shares)

Lease liabilities 184.27 368.64 1,310.07 75.73 339.75 2,278.46
Trade payables I - 23.91 71.80 100.28 = | 195.99
Other financial liabilities - 63.56 210.01 - - 273.57
Total 184.27 7.835.33 20,211.90 56,921.57 1,484,75 86,637.82

As per the consolidated financial statements of Zuari Infra Middle East Limited, a subsidiary Company

The primary objective of the group capital management is to ensure that it maintains healthy capital ratios in order to support its
busines and maximize shareholders’ value. The group manage its capital structure and make adjustments to it in light of changes
in business conditions. No changes were made in the objectives, polices or processes during the year ended 31 March 2025,

* In terms of JV agreement, Zuari Infraworld S J M Properties L.L.C (the “company”) is acting as a custodian /agent of the
subsidiary of JV company which is entrusted with the task of project management, supervision and successful development of the
said project for an agreed fee.

* All the contracts and their related payments in relation to the above activities are entered into the name of the company.
Consequently, all the commitments regarding ongoing projects are disclosed in the subsidiary of JV company.
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33 Fair values

Set out below, is a comparison by class of the carrying amounts and fair value of the financial instruments
Particulars Carrying value
As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024

Financial assets carried at cost

Preference Shares held in Associate Company 550.00! 550.00
Interest accrued and due ] 33.72
Interest accrued and not due 0.05 0.30
Expenses Recoverable - Related parties 167.33! 167.33
Security deposits 31.00 31.00
}Trade Receivables 1,921.71 2,714.30
Cash and cash equivalents 61,239.80, 66,809.11
Advances lo employees 1.38| 17.85
Investment in Associate 2,230.57 2,232.45
‘Security deposits 210.27 93.85
Total 66,342.11, 72,639.90
iFinancial liabilities carried at fair value through profit or loss

'Preference shares (debt portion) 1,145.00 1,145.00
|Lease liability - 119.18
(Financial liabilities carried at cost

‘Other deposits 44.29 14.96
iDues to employees 92.63 186.05
‘Interest accruals on loans - 1,827.47
‘Trade payables 1,077.54 2,278.90
Total 2,359.47 5,671.56
Other Notes:

(i.) The management assessed that cash and cash equivalents, other bank balances, trade receivables, retention money, inter

corporate deposits, loan to related party and trade payables approximate their carrying amounts largely due to the short-term
maturities of these instruments. The fair value of the financial assets and liabilities is included at the amount at which the
instrument could be exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale.

(i1.) The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair values:

34

(i.)

(ii.) There have been no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 during the year.

(a.) The fair values of the unquoted Preference shares have been estimated using a DCF model and considering the future cash
outflow in this regard, based on a independent valuation . The valuation requires management to make certain assumptions about
the model inputs, including forecast cash flows, discount rate, credit risk and volatility. The probabilities of the various estimates
within the range can be reasonably assessed and are used in management's estimate of fair value for these unquoted Preference
shares.

(b.) The fair values of the Company’s interest-bearing borrowings and loans approximates to their carrying amounts i.e., cost as at
the end of the reporting year. The own non-performance risk as at reporting was assessed to be insignificant.

Fair Hierarchy
The following table provides the fair value measurement hierarchy of the Company’s assets and liabilities.

Quantitative disclosures fair value measurement hierarchy for assets:

Assets: Total Quoted prices in Significant Significant
active markets observable inputs = unobservable inputs

{Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
Preference shares held in Associate 550.00 - - 550.00

Amounts in the parenthesis represent previous year.
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35 Gratuity (Employment benefit plan)

Particulars As at 31 March 2025
Current : Non-current
Value of Plan - Gratuity (Un-Funded) 36.91 !

Gratuity:

As at 31 March 2024

Current
31.53

Non-current
29.35

The Company has a defined benefit gratuity plan. Every employee who has completed five years or more of service gets gratuity on departure at 15

days salary (last drawn salary) for each completed year of service.

The following tables summarise the components of net benefit expense recognised in the statement of profit or loss and the funded status and amounts

recognised in the balance sheet for the respective plans:

(i.) Netemployee benefit expense (recognized in Employee Cost) for the year ended:
Particulars

Current Service Cost
Net Interest Cost
Expense recognised in profit and loss statement

(ii.) Actuarial {gain)/loss on obligation:
|Particulars

(Gain)/loss from change in demographic assumptions
{Gain)/less from change in financial assumptions
Experience (gains) / losses

Total actuarial (gain)/loss

(iii., Other comprehensive income
iParticulars
|
Actuarial (Gain)/Loss recognized for the period
Total Actuarial (Gain)/Loss recognized in (OCI)

(iv.]Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation are, as follows:
‘Particulars
|

Opening defined obligation
Current service cost

Interest cost

Contribution paid

Actuarial (gain)/ loss on obligations
Defined benefit obligation

As at
31 March 2025
5.73
4.35
10.08
As at
31 March 2025
(0:30)
1.15
1.64
2.48 |
As at
31 March 2025 |
248
2.48
As at
31 March 2025
60.88
5.73
4.35
(8.94)
248
64.51

(v.) The principal assumptions used in determining gratuity obligations for the Company’s plans are shown below:

Particulars

Mortality

/Interest / Discount Rate

Rate of increase in compensation

'Expected average remaining service

Benefit of normal retirement considered as per Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972
Employee Attrition Rate (Past Service)

VSPV & Ce.
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As at
31 March 2025
100 % of IALM 2012-14
6.55%
5.00%
4.55
Rs. 20 Lakhs
PS: Oto 18 years :
18.13%
PS: 18 to 30 years :
18.13%
PS: 30 to 42 years :
18.13%

As at
31 March 2024
5.38
3.82°
9.20
As at
31 March 2024
5.60
1.32
(0.72)
6.20
As at
31 March 2024
6.20
6.20
As at
31 March 2024
51.16
5.38
3.82
. (587
6.20 |
60.88
As at

31 March 2024
100 % of IALM 2012-14
7.15%

5.00%

14.28
Rs. 20 Lakhs

" PS: 0to 18 years : 23%

PS: 18 to 30 years : 23%
PS: 30 to 42 years : 23%
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(vi.]A quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant assumption as at the reporting date is as shown below:

.Gratuity Plan As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024

Assumptions Discount rate Future salary increases

Sensitivity Level +1% increase -1% decrease ' +1% Increase -1% decrease
Impact on defined benefit obligation 66.94 62.27 | 62.40 66.77
iGratuity Plan - As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024

Assumptions Discount rate Future salary increases

Sensitivity Level +1% increase -1% decrease +1% increase : -1% decrease

.Impact on defined benefit obligation 62.72 59.16 59.29 62.57

The sensitivity analyses above have been determined based on a method that extrapolates he impact on defined benefit obligation as a result of
reasonable changes in key assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting period.

(vii. The following payments are expected contributions to the defined benefit plan in future years:

'Particulars As at As at

31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Within the next 12 months 27.60 28.35
‘Between 2 and 5 years _ 26.88 27.24
‘Between 5 and 10 years 29.53 | ~19.72 |
Total expected payments 84.02 76.31 :

Note: The above disclosures are based on the valuation report by an independent actuary and relied upon by the auditors.
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36

36.1

36.2

37

Segment Information

Information regarding Operating Segment Reporting as per Ind AS-108

The Chief Financial Officer monitors the operating resuits of its business units separately for the purpose of making decisions about resource
allocation and performance assessment. Accordingly, the Company has identified only one segment i.e., real estate sector as its reportable
segment for the purpose of Ind AS 108.

Real Estate segment (RE) is into development, sale, management and operation of all or any part of townships, housing projects, including
leasing of self owned commercial premises and also rendering development management services and thus entire business has been
considered as a single operating component by the Management.

The following table presents assets and liabilities information for the Company's operating segments as at year end:

Geographical information Non-current assets Revenue from operations
As at As at for the year ended \ for the year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
India 579.18 357.80 1,203.99 5,435.46
Outside India (Dubai) - - - 900.00
579.18 357.80 1,203.99 6,335.46

Note:
Non-current assets disclosed above are excluding Investment in subsidiaries & Associates, financial instruments, deferred tax assets, post-

employment benefit assets etc.
Revenue from the customers contributing more than 10% of the total revenue are given below:

There are no customers who individually contribute more than 10% of the total revenue of the Company. Accordingly, no disclosures has been
made in this regard.

Disaggregation of revenue

Particulars For the year ended 31 March 2025 For the year ended 31 March 2024
India Outside India India Outside India
Sale of residential units 1,199.19 - 6,375.11 -
Deve}opme_nt management fees 4.80 1,568.33 800.00 -
Sales Commission on sale of plots/residential units - - 41.41 -
Total 1,203.99 1,568.33 7,216.52 -
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vspy & Co.
Chartered Accourtants

Page 38 of 39




ZUARI INFRAWORLD INDIA LIMITED
NOTES FORMING PART OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2025
(All Amounts in Indian Rupees in lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

38 Accounts of most of the trade payables, trade receivables, loans & advances and customer advances are subject to confirmation anc
management does not except any material adjustments had the confirmation were received. In the opinion of the Management none of the
assets, other than property plant and equipment, have a value lower on realisation in the ordinary course of business than the amount a
which they are stated in these consolidated financial statements.

(Signatures to notes 1-2 & 29 to 38)
The accompanying notes form an integral part of the standalone financial statements

As per our report attached For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Zuari Infraworld India Limited

Vikas Gupta, FCA Alok Banerjee Athay Shahab
Membership No.200924 Whole Time Director & CEO Director

Partner DIN: 01371033 DIN: 01824891
VSPV&Co

Chartered Accountants

Firm.No. 005483N

Place: Bangalore diw

Date : 09.05.2025 Akhilesh Thakur AksharBiyani
UDIN: 25200924BMHXJV1207 Chief Financial Officer Compan Secretary

Membership No. F8378
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VSPV & Co

Chartered Accountants
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of Zuari Infraworld India Limited
REPORT ON THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
OPINION

We have audited the accompanying Standalone Financial Statements of Zuari Infraworld India Limited
(“the Company”) which comprises the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2025, the Statement of Profit and
Loss (including Other comprehensive income), Statement of changes in equity and Statement of cash
flows for the year then cnded, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
accompanying Standalone Financial Statements give the information required by the Act in the manner
so requited and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted
in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2025 and profit, changes in equity and its
cash flows for the year ended on that date.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section
143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further desctibed in
the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We ate
independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial
statements under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder, and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for

outr opinion.
OTHER INFORMATION

The Company’s management and Boatd of Directors are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in the Company’s Annual Report but does not
include the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, out responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
financial statements, or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. If, based on the wotk we have performed, we conclude that thete is 2 material misstatement of
this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this gcga@
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RESPONSIBILITY OF MANAGEMENT FOR THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the mattets stated in section 134(5) of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these Standalone Financial
Statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance, and cash flows
of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the
Indian accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate implementation and maintenance of accounting
policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation
and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant o the preparation and presentation of the
financial statement that gives a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due

to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is tesponsible for assessing the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to

cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.
The Boatd of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the company’s financial reporting process.
AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole, are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or etror, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or etror and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of usets taken on the
basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exetcise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

» Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and performed audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtained
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement tesulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
errot, as fraud may involve collusion, forgety, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the

override of internal control.

» Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that ate appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are
also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal
financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.




% FBvaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

» Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concetn basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, we can conclude that there is no material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the
date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to

cease to continue as a gOlﬂg concern.

» Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and the financial statements represent the undetlying transactions and events in a

manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requitements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS

As requited by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013, we give in
the Annexure-A a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent
applicable.

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a.  We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief wete necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so
far as it appears from our examination of those books.

c. The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by
this Report ate in agreement with the books of account.

d. In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Indian Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts)
Rules, 2014.

e. On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st March, 2025
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31st March,
2025 from being appointed as a directot in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

VIPY & Co.

Chartered Accountants



1.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial control over financial reporting of the
company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to outr separate teport in

Annexure B.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditot’s repott in accordance with
requirements of Sec 197(16) of Act:

- In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanation given to
us the company has complied with the provisions of section 197 of the Act to the extent
applicable in respect of managerial remuneration paid duting the yeat.

With respect to the other mattets to be included in the Auditot’s Repott in accordance with Rule
11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in out opinion and to the best of our

information and according to the explanations given to us:

1. The Company has disclosed pending litigations which would impact its financial position
(Refer Note 30.2 of the accompanying financial statements).

ii. The Company has made provision as required under applicable law or accounting
standard for material foreseeable losses, if any on long term contracts.

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education
and protection Fund by the Company.

tv. The management has represented that othet than those disclosed in the notes to

accounts,

() no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested by the company to or in any other
petson(s) or entities, including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding
that the intermediary shall whether directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or
entities identified in any manner by or on behalf of the company (Ultimate Beneficiaries)
or provide any guarantee, secutity ot the like on behalf of ultimate beneficiaries.

(i) no funds have been received by the company from any person(s) or entities including
foreign entities (“Funding Parties”) with the understanding that such company shall
whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons ot entities identified in any
manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the funding party (ultimate beneficiaries) or
provide guarantee, secutity or the like on behalf of the Ultimate beneficiaries.

Based on the audit procedures performed, we report that nothing has come to our
notice that has caused us to believe that the above representations given by the
management contamn any material misstatement

Based on outr examination, which included test checks, the Company has used accounting
software for maintaining its books of account for the financial year ended Match 31, 2025 which
has a feature of recording audit trial (edit log) facility and the same has operated throughout the
yeat for all relevant transactions recorded in the software. Further, during the course of our audit
we did not come across any instances of the audit trail featuring being tampered with.

i
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As proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is applicable from April 1,
2023, reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 on

preservation of audit trail as per the stationaty requirements for record retention is not applicable
for the financial year March 31, 2025.

v SPV Eig'{
Vikas Gupta, F
Membership No.200924
Partner
VSPV&ECo
Chartered Accountants
Firm No.005483N

Place : Bangalore
Date  :09-May-2025
UDIN : 25200924BMHX]JU2890



ANNEXURE-A REFERRED TO IN CLAUSE 1 OF REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND
REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS PARAGRAPH OF OUR REPORT OF EVEN DATE

Re: Zuari Infraworld India Limited (‘the Company’)

®

(i)

(i)

In respect of the Company’s fixed assets:

a) In our opinion and according to information and explanations given to us, the Company has
maintained proper records showing full patticulars, including quantitative details and situation of
Property, Plant and Equipment. The Company has maintained propet recotds showing full
particulars of intangible assets.

b) The Company has a program of verification to cover all the items of fixed assets in a phased
manner which, in our opinion, is reasonable having tegard to the size of the Company and the
nature of its assets. Pursuant to the program, certain fixed assets wete physically verified by the
management during the year. According to the information and explanations given to us, no
material discrepancies wete noticed on such vetification.

) According to the information and explanations given to us, the title deeds of the immovable
propetty of the company which is part of the inventory is held by the company in its own name

d) The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right of Use
assets) or intangible assets or both during the yeat

¢) The Company has no proceedings that have been initiated or ate pending against the company
for holding any Benami property under the “Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 and
Rules made thereundet.

a) The inventoty held by the company has been physically verified by the management during the
year and no discrepancies noticed on such vetification between the physical stock and the book
tecords. In our opinion, the frequency of such verification is reasonable.

b) In our opinion and according to information and explanations given to us, the company has
General corporate purpose limits in excess of five crore rupees, in aggregate from on the basis of
security of cutrent assets-The details of the same are in note 14

a) During the year the company has not provided loans, advances in the nature of loans, ot stood
g yeat pany p >
guarantee, or provided security to any other company.

(b) During the year investments made, guarantee provided, security given and the terms and
conditions of all loans and advances in the nature of loans & guarantee provided are not prejudicial
to company, s interest.

(©) In respect of loans granted by the Company, the schedule of repayment of principal and
payment of interest has been stipulated ie. repayable after three years from the date of
disbursement.

(d) According to the information given to us and based on the audit procedures conducted by us

there arc no overduc amounts exceeding 90 days.
W:Q& Co.
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()

)

(v)

(vi)

@)

(b)

() According to the information and explanation given to us, loan granted which has fallen due
during the year, has been rencwed.

Amount (Rs. In Lakhs)
Percentage of the aggregate
to the total loans or advances
in the nature of loans granted
during the year

17.98%

- -
| Aggregate amount of over
dues of existng loans
| renewed

' Name of the party

Zuari Infraworld Middle Fast = Rs 11,482.2 Lakhs
Limited |

(£) The Company has not granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans either repayable on
demand or without specilymyr any terms or period of repayment during the year. Hence, reporting
under clause 3(iid) (f) is not applicable.

The Company has complied with the provisions of Sections 185 and 186 of the Companies Act,
2013 1n respect of loans granted, investments made and guarantecs and securities provided, as

applicable.

The Company has not accepted any deposit or amounts which are deemed to be deposits. Hence,
reporting under clause (v) of the Order is not applicable.

The requirement of maintenance of cost records as specified by the Central Government under
sub-section (1) of section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 is applicable for the business activities
carried out by the Company. The Company has maintained the cost records as specified by the
Central Government under sub-section (1) of section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013

According to the information and explanations given to us, the company is generally regular in
depositing undisputed statutory dues with the appropriate authorities including Provident fund,
Employees State Insurance fund, income tax, service tax, cess or any other statutory dues.

According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts payable in
respect of provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income tax, service tax, cess and other
matenial statutory dues were in arrears as at March 31, 2025 for a period of more than six months
from the date they became payable cxcept for TDS default amounting to Rs 6.31 lakhs/-

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company, the details of dues which have not been deposited as on March 31,
2025, on account of disputes are as under:

' Name of | Nature of Amount | Period to which | Amount paid | Forum where
the statute dues claimed(in | the amount | under protest | dispute is pending
lakhs) relates (in lakhs)
Goods and | Central 95.53 18-19 447 Deputy
| Services Goods and Commissioner of
Tax Services Tax commercial taxes,
Bengaluru
Goods and | State Goods | 95.53 18-19 4.47 Deputy
Services and Services Commussioner of
Tax Tax commercial taxes,
| Bengaluru |
VSV & Co.

——
———

Chartered Accountants



)

()

Goods and | Central [ 35.43 | 19-20 | 1.88 | Deputy

Services Goods and Commissioner and

Tax Services Tax DGSTO-1,
Bengaluru

Goods and | Central 35.43 19-20 1.88 Deputy

Services Goods and Commissioner and

Tax Services Tax DGSTO-1,
Bengaluru

According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no transactions that are not
recorded in the books of accounts which have been surrendered or disclosed as income during the
year in the tax assessments undet the Income Tax Act, 1961.

(a) Based on the examination of records and information and explanation given to us, the Company
has not defaulted in repayment of its loans ot payment of interest to any lender.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the audit
procedutes, we report that the Company has not been declared as wilful defaulter by any banks,
financial institution or government ot any government authority.

() According to the explanation provided to us, the company has utilised the monies raised by the
way of term loans for the purpose for which the loan was obtained.

(d) Based on our audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting the true and fair view of
the financial statements and according to the information and explanations given by the
management, funds raised on short term basis was not utilized for long term purposes

(e) According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the
financial statements of the Company, we report that the Company has not taken any funds from
any entity ot person on account of or to meet the obligations of its subsidiaties, associates or joint
ventures.

(f) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its subsidiaties, joint ventures or
assoclate companies.

(a) The company has not raised the money by way of initial public offer or further public offer
(including debt instruments) during the year and hence teporting under clause (x)(a) of the order is
not applicable

(b)) During the year, company has not made any preferential allotment ot ptivate placement of
shares or convertible debentures (fully or partly or optionally) and hence reporting under clause
®)(b) of the order is not applicable

(2) No fraud by the Company and no material fraud on the Company has been noticed or reported
during the yeat.

(b) No report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has been filed in Form
ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the
Central Government, during the year and up to the date of this tepor
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(xid)

(siv)

(xv)

(xvid)

(evid)

(xix)

()

(c)No whistle-blower complaints were received during the year by the Company.

The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence teporting under clause (xii) of the Order is not
applicable.

In our opinion, the Company is in compliance with Section 177 and 188 of the Companies Act,
2013 with respect to applicable transactions with the telated parties and the details of related party
transactions have been disclosed in the standalone financial statements as required by the applicable
Indian accounting standards.

(a) In our opinion the Company has an adequate intetnal audit system commensurate with the size
and the nature of its business.

(b) We have considered, the internal audit reports for the year under audit, issued to the Company
duting the year and till date, in determining the nature, timing and extent of our audit procedures.

In our opinion during the year the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its
directors or persons connected with its directors. and hence provisions of section 192 of the
Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the Company.

(a) In our opinion, the Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve
Bank of India Act, 1934. Hence, reporting under clause (xvi)(a), (b) and (c) of the Ordet is not
applicable

(b) In our opinion, the company has not conducted any Non-Banking Financial or Housing
Finance activities and no Registration (CoR) from the Reserve Bank of India as per the Resetve
Bank of India Act 1934 is applicable

(©) In our opinion, the company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the
regulations made by the Reserve Bank of India and reporting under this clause is not applicable;

(d) In our opinion, the Group does not have more than one CIC,

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on audit procedures
performed, the Company has incurred cash losses Rs 2,635.85 lakhs in the financial year.

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year.

On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets and
payment of financial liabilities, othet information accompanying the financial statements, we ate of
the opinion that no material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that company is
capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within
a period of one year from the balance sheet date

(a) In tespect of other than ongoing projects, the company has not transferred unspent amount to a
Fund specified in Schedule VII to the Companies Act within a period of six months of the
expity of the financial year in compliance with second proviso to sub-section (5) of section 135
of the said Act and reporting under this clause is not applicable.
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(b) There is no amount remaining unspent under sub-section (5) of section 135 of the Companies
Act, pursuant to any ongoing project that has been transfetred to special account in compliance
with the provision of sub-section (6) of section 135 of the said Act and teporting undet this
clause is not applicable

g {_“}um\dit

Vikas Gupta, FCA
Membership No.200924
Partner
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Place : Bangalore

Date  :09-May-2025
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ANNEXURE - B TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT.

The annexure referred to in paragraph (2) (g) under the heading “Report on Other legal and
regulatory Requirements” of our Independent Auditor’s Report of even date on the standalone
financial statements of Zuati Infraworld India Limited of the year ended March 31, 2025.

Report on Internal Financial controls under clause (i) of Sub section 3 of Section 143 of the
campanies act, 2013 (“the Act”).

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Zuari Infraworld India
Limited (“the Company”) as of 31st March, 2025 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone
financial statements of the Company for the year then ended.

MANAGEMENT’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS

The Company’s management is tesponsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of intetnal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (“the Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the
ordetly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to Company’s policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting trecords, and the timely preparation of reliable financial
information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls over
financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted out audit in accordance with the Guidance
Note issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and the Standards on Auditing
prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit
of internal financial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note tequite that we comply with
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if
such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our
audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of
internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a matetial weakness exists,
and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of intetnal control based on the
assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditot’s judgement, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and approptiate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

e—
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MEANING OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS OVER FINANCIAL
REPORTING

A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting ptinciples. A
company’s internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures
that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect
the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance
that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the
company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of
the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material
effect on the financial statements.

INHERENT LIMITATIONS OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS OVER
FINANCIAL REPORTING

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including
the possibility of collusion or improper management ovettide of controls, material misstatements
due to etror or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the
internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the
internal financial control over financial repotting may become inadequate because of changes in
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

OPINION ;

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial
teporting and such internal financial controls over financial teporting were operating effectively as
at 31st March, 2025, based on the internal control over financial repotting criteria established by
the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note
issued by the Institute of Chattered Accountants of India
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ZUARI INFRAWORLD INDIA LIMITED
STANDALONE BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31 MARCH 2025
(All Amounts in Indian Rupees in lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Note As at As at
No. 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
ASSETS
Non-current assets
(a.) Property, plant and equipment 3.1 25.27 46.27
(b.) Other intangible assets 32 3.50 6.82
(c.) Right-of-use assets 3.3 - 45,36
(d.) Capital work in progress 7.00 3.50
(e.) Financial assets:
(i.} Investments 4.1 2,446.16 2,446.16
(ii.) Loans 5 76,396.45 67,924.03
(iii.) Other financial assets 6.1 32,02 32.02
(f.) Deferred tax asset (net) 7 550.42 149.63
(g.) Other assets 8.1 - 108.73
79,460.81 70,763.52
Current assets
(a.) Inventories 9 18,370.00 17,416.50
(b.) Financial assets
(i.) Investments 4.2 332.58 -
(ii.) Trade receivables 10 2,270.76 2,410.66
(iii.) Cash and bank balances 11 221.67 663.79
(iv.) Other financial assets 6.2 2,503.05 4,269.69
(c.) Income tax assets (net) 7.02 347.52
(d.) Other assets 8.2 483.11 381.64
24,188.19 25,489.81
1,03,649.01 96,253.33
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
(a.) Equity share capital 12 5,526.32 5,526.32
(b.) Other equity 13 7,893.58 8,321.01
13,419.90 13,847.32
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
(a.) Financial liabilities
(i.) Borrowings 14.1 58,526.52 51,313.25
(ii.) Trade payables 16.1
- Dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises - -
- Dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small
enterprises 63.22 114.06
(b.} Provisions 18.1 45.73 40.35
58,635.47 51,467.65
Current liabilities
(a.) Financial liabilities
(i.) Borrowings 14.2 26,948.17 25,928.18
(ii.} Lease liabilities 15 - 119.18
(iii.) Trade payables 16.2
- Dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 0.03 13.27
- Dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises
720.19 851.45
(iv.) Other financial liabilities 17 886.93 138.39
(b.) Other liabilities 18 3,002.086 3,850.02
(¢.) Provisions 19.2 36.26 37.87
31,593.64 30,938.35
1,03,649.01 96,253.33

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the standalone financial statements

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Zuari infraworld India Limited

VSPV & Lo ”J)/ \
a;—a!iete& Accountants : &
ar Shahab

our report attached

Vikas Gupta, FCA Alok Banerjee

Membership No.200924 Whole Time Director & CEO Director
Partner DIN: 01371033 DIN: 01824891
VSPV&Co

Chartered Accountants

Firm.No. 005483N

Place: Bangalore WV

Date : 09.05.2025 ilesh Thakur

UDIN: 25200924BMHXJU2890 Chief Financial Officer
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ZUARI INFRAWORLD INDIA LIMITED

STANDALONE STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2025

(All Amounts in Indian Rupees in lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Note For the year ended  For the year
No. 31 March 2025 ended

31 March 2024
Revenue from operations 20 1,203.99 6,335.46
Other income 21 B,637.45 10,614.34
Total Income 9,841.44 16,949.80
EXPENSES:
Purchase of materials, sub contract charges and other project cos 22 2,247.84 834.74
Changes in construction work-in-progress 23 (1,169.11) 3,001.98
Employee benefit expenses 24 515.84 634.07
Finance costs 25 8,462.56 9,927.96
Depreciation and amortization expense 26 76.90 67.31
Other expenses 27 532.99 700.25
Total expenses 10,667.02 15,166.31
Profit/(Loss) before exceptional items (825.58) 1,783.49
Exceptional items - 4,748.25
Profit / (Loss) before tax (825.58) (2,964.76)
Tax expense 28
Current tax expense - (63.03)
Deferred tax (398.16) (26.48)
Total tax Expense (398.16) (89.51)
Profit/(Loss) for the year (427.43) (2,875.25)
Other comprehensive income (OCI) - -
Total Other Comprehensive Income - -
Total Comprehensive Income for the year (427.43) (2,875.25)
Earning per share 31
Basic & Diluted (0.77) (5.74)
Weighted average number of shares used in computing Earnings per share 5,52,63,157 5,00,57,678
The accompanying notes form an integral part of the standalone financial statements

s per our report attached For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
ZUW India Limited

Vikas Gupta, FCA Alok Banerjee Athar 3hahab _
Membership No.200924 Whole Time Director & CEO Director

DIN: 01371033 DIN: 01824891

Partner

VSPV&Co
Chartered Accountants
Firm.No. 005483N

Place: Bangalore

(22 il
Date : 09.05.2025 ARfilesh Thakur

UDIN: 25200924BMHXJU2890 Chief Financial Officer

Aksharl,B. ani
Company Secretary
Membership No. FB8378
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ZUARI INFRAWORLD INDIA LIMITED
STANDALONE STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2025
(Al Amounts in Indian Rupees in lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars

For the year
ended
31 March 2025

For the year
ended
31 March 2024

CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES :

Profit/(Loss) for the year

Adjustments to reconcile profit and loss to net cash provided by

operating activities:

Depreciation & amortisation expense

Interest Income

Balances no longer required, net

Interest expense

Operating Profit/(Loss) before working capital changes
Adjustment for net changes in :

Trade receivables

Financial and other assets

Inventories

Trade payables

Provisions

Financial and other liabilities

Net cash generated from/ (used in) operations

Income taxes paid/(received), net of refunds

Net cash generated from / (used in) operating activities

CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES :

Additions to property, plant and equipment

Investments in Mutual Funds

Loans to subsidiaries, net of repayments

Investments in Associates

Deposits held with banks

Interest received

Net cash generated from / (used in) investing activities

CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES :

Borrowings, net of repayments
Issure of equity shares

Interest paid (including interest transferred to work-in-progress)

Net cash generated from / (used in) financing activities

Net Changes in Cash and Cash equivalents during the year
Cash and Cash equivalents at the beginning of the year

Cash and Cash equivalents at the end of the year (Refer Note 11)

(427.43) (2,875.25)
76.90 67.31
(0.07) (55.92)
= 4,748.25
9,262.01 10,203.43
8,911.41 12,087.82
139.90 (1,503.44)
1,774.91 (729.41)
(953.50) 4,591.02
(195.34) (516.18)
3.77 18.96
(218.60) (7,514.95)
9,462.56 6,433.81
(60.29) (208.10)
9,402.27 6,225.71
(10.72) (18.90)
(332.58) <

(8,472.42) (46,191.90)
0.00 112.00

5 24,517.90

0.07 80.31
(8,815.65) (21,500.60)
8,065.80 16,681.17
- 2,000.00
(9,094.54) (8,292.25)
(1,028.74) 10,388.91
(442.12) (4,885.98)
663.79 5,549.77
221.67 663.79

This space has been intentionally left blank
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ZUARI INFRAWORLD INDIA LIMITED

STANDALONE STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2025
(All Amounts in Indian Rupees in lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars

For the year

ended

31 March 2025

For the year
ended
31 March 2024

Disclosure pursuant to Ind-AS 7 as amended:

Particulars As at 31 March 2024 Cash Flow As at 31 March
2025

Long term borrowings 51,313.25 7,963.29 59.276.53

Redeemable Preference Shares (Debt 1,108.59 - 1,108.59

portion)

Lease liabilities (including security deposit 119.18 (119.18) -

Short term borrowings 25,928.18 1,019.99 26,948.17

Trade payables 978.78 (195.34) 783.43

Other current financial liabilities 3,850.02 (847.98) 3,002.04

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method.

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the standalone financial statements

As per our report attached

Vikas Gupta, FCA
Membership No.200924
Partner

VSPV&Co

Chartered Accountants
Firm.No. 005483N

Place: Bangalore

Date ; 09.05.2025

UDIN: 25200924BMHXJU2890

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Zuari Infraworld India Limited
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Alok Banerjee

N

AtharShahab

Whole Time Director & CEO
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Page 4 of 45

orld 2%

Directo

DIN: 01824891

Company Secretary

Membership No. F8378



ZUARI INFRAWORLD INDIA LIMITED
NOTES FORMING PART OF STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDING 31 MARCH 2025
(Al Amounts in Indian Rupees in lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

A. Statement of Changes in Equity share capital

fBaIance at the beginning and at the end of the year

B. Other equity
Particulars

|

‘Balance as at 1 April 2023
Profit/(Loss) for the period

| Addition during the year
|Balance as at 31 March 2024

|Profit/(Loss) for the period
Balance as at 31 March 2025

As per our report attached
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Vikas Gupta, FCA
Membership No.200924
Partner

VSPV&Co

Chartered Accountants
Firm.No. 005483N

Place: Bangalore

Date : 09.05.2025

UDIN: 25200924BMHXJU2890

Note No.

12 5,526.32 5,5626.32

Securities Equity Component | Retained earnings Total

premium account  of convertible

preference shares |
I 11,961.00  415.96 (2,654.39) ~9,722.57 |
= | Z (2,875.25) (2,875.25)
1 1,473.68 | - - 1,473.68
B 13;434.68 | 415.96 (5,529.64) 8,321.01_|
(427'43). (427.43)
13,434.68 | 415.96 | (5,957.06) 7,893.58

-
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For and on behalf of

the Board of Directors of

Zuari Infraworld India Limited

lok Banerjee
Whole Time Director & CEO
DIN: 01371033

Akhilesh Thakur
Chief Financial Officer
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ZUARI INFRAWORLD INDIA LIMITED
NOTES FORMING PART OF STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDING 31 MARCH 2025

1

(a)

(b.)

Corporate information:

Zuari Infraworld [ndia Limited (“the Company” or “ZIIL") [CIN: U45309KA2007PLC043161] is a wholly owned subsidiary of Zuari
Industries Limited ("ZIL") The company is a public limited company domiciled in India and is incorporated under the provisions of
the Companies Act applicable in India.The Company is primarily into the business of developing residential cum commercial
properties intended for sale.

The standalone financial statements were approved for issue in accordance with a resolution of the directors passed on meeting
held through video conference and other visual means (VC) dated May 9, 2025.

Signiflcant accounting policies:

Basis of preparation

The standalone financial statements of the Company have been prepared under the historical cost convention on the accrual
basis except for certain financial instruments which are measured at fair values in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards
(Ind AS) notified under Section 133 of the Act read with Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015
and in accordance with the reporting requirements under Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act"), to the extent notified

These Accounting policies have been consistently applied by the Company in the preparation and presentation of these financial
statements except where a newly issued/ notified accounting standard is initially adopted or a revision to an existing accounting
standard requires a change in the accounting policy which was in use.

Current and Non-current classification

All Assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company's normal operating cycle and other
triteria set out in Schedule Ill of the Companies Act, 2013. As the Company is engaged in developing a residential cum
commercial project, the normal operating cycle is based on the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their
realization in cash and cash equivalents. The Company has ascertained its operating cycle at least 12 months after the reporting
date for the purpose of Current - Non-current classification of assets and liabilities, which is considered appropriate.

The standalone financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees and all the amounts disclosed in the financial statements
have been rounded off to the nearest lakhs pursuant to the requirements of schedule Iil of the Companies Act, 2013., except
when otherwise indicated.

Use of accounting estimates, accounting judgements, and assumptions:

Preparation of these financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires the management to make estimates, judgments and
assumptions. Such estimates, judgments and assumptions affect the application of accounting policies and the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and
reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the year.

The application of accounting policies that require critical accounting estimates involving complex and subjective judgments and
the use of such assumptions in these financial statements have been disclosed in the ensuing notes. Accounting estimates
could change from year to year and also actual results could differ from those estimates. Appropriate changes in estimates are
made as Management becomes aware of changes in circumstances surrounding these estimates. Changes in estimates are
reflected in the financial statements in the year in which changes are made and their effects, if material, are disclosed by way of
notes to the financial statements.

Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions :

Useful life of Property, plant & equipment:
The determination of estimated useful lives and expected residual values are based on the technical evaluation carried by the
Company and these are reviewed by the Management of the Company at each reporting date.

Gl

PV & Co.
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Page 6 of 45



ZUARI INFRAWORLD INDIA LIMITED
NOTES FORMING PART OF STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDING 31 MARCH 2025

(i)

(iii.)

(vi))

(vii.)

Impairment of financial assets and evaluation of impairment indicators:

The evaluation of applicability of impairment indicators for an assets requires assessment of several external and internal factors
which could result in deterioration of recoverable amount of the assets. As at the balance sheet date based on the historical
default rates absorbed over the expected useful life, the Management assess the fair value of various financial assets and

liabilities and their resultant fair values.

Impairment of non-financial assets:

Impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset or cash generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the
higher of its fair value less cost of disposal and its value in use. The calculation of fair value less costs of disposal is based on
available data from binding sales transaction conducted at arms' length for similar assets or observable market prices / guidance
value less incremental cost for disposing of the asset. The value in use calculation is based on a DCF model. The cash flows are
derived from budget for the future years and do not include any restricting activities not committed for or significant future
investments that will enhance the performance of the assets of the CGU being tested. The recoverable amount is sensitive to the
discount rates used for the DCF mode! as well as the expected future cash flows and the growth rate used for extrapolation

purposes.

Contingencies:

Contingent liabilities may arise from the ordinary course of business in relation to claims against the Company, including legal.
By their nature, contingencies will be resolved only when one or more uncertain future events occur or fail to occur. The
assessment of the existence, and potential quantum, of contingencies inherently involves the exercise of significant judgement
and the use of estimates regarding the outcome of future events, which may or may not occur.

Construction work-in-progress

The Company holds inventories stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Such inventories include land, work in
progress and completed units. Considering the nature of the activity and, in particular the scale of its developments and the
length of the development cycle, the Company has to allocate project-wide development costs between units being built. It also
has to forecast the costs to complete on such developments.

In making such assessments and allocations, there is a degree of inherent estimation uncertainty; in particular due to the need to
take account of future direct input costs, sales prices and the need to allocate project-wide costs on an appropriate basis to
reflect the overall level of development risk, including planning risk. The Company has established internal controls designed to
effectively assess and review inventory carrying values and ensure the appropriateness of the estimates made. These
assessments and allocations evolve over the life of the development in line with the risk profile, and accordingly the margins
reflects these evolving estimates. Similarly, these estimates impact the carrying value of inventory at each reporting date as this
is a function of costs incurred in the year and the allocation of inventory to costs of sales on each property sold.

Defined benefit plans (gratuity benefits)

The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan and the present value of the gratuity obligation are determined using actuarial
valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future.
These include the determination of the discount rate, future salary increases and mortality rates. Due to the complexities
involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these
assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date. The parameter most subject to change is the discount rate. In
determining the appropriate discount rate for plans operated in India, the management considers the interest rates of
government bonds. The mortality rate is based on publicly available mortality tables for the specific countries. Those mortality
tables tend to change only at interval in response to demographic changes. Future salary increases and gratuity increases are
based on expected future inflation rates for the respective countries.

Fair value measurement of financial instruments

When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot be measured based on
quoted prices in active markets, their fair value is measured using valuation techniques including the DCF model. The inputs to
these models are taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgement is
required in establishing fair values. Judgements include considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility.
Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect the reported fair value of financial instruments.

VSPV & Ce.
Charter -l Accountants
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ZUARI INFRAWORLD INDIA LIMITED
NOTES FORMING PART OF STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDING 31 MARCH 2025

(viii.) Leases

(c)
@i.)

(ii.)

The Company evaluates if an arrangement qualifies to be a lease as per the requirements of Ind AS 116 on Leases.
Identification of a lease requires significant judgment. The Company uses significant judgement in assessing the lease term
(including anticipated renewals) and the applicable discount rate. The Company determines the lease term as the non-
cancellable period of a lease, together with both periods covered by an option to extend the lease if the Company is reasonably
certain to exercise that option; and periods covered by an option to terminate the lease if the Company is reasonably certain not
to exercise that option. In assessing whether the Company is reasonably certain to exercise an option to extend a lease, or not
to exercise an option to terminate a lease, it considers all relevant facts and circumstances that create an economic incentive for
the Company to exercise the option to extend the lease, or not to exercise the option to terminate the lease. The Company
revises the lease term if there is a change in the non-cancellable period of a lease. The discount rate is generally based on the
incremental borrowing rate specific to the lease being evaluated or for a portfolio of leases with similar characteristics. The
Company reassess the option when significant events or changes in circumstances occur that are within the control of the

lessee.
Property, plant and equipment and Depreciation

Property, plant and equipment

The Property, plant and equipment ('PPE') of the Company are stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses, if any. The cost comprises of the purchase price, borrowing costs if capitalization criteria are met and directly
attributable cost of bringing the asset to its current working condition for the intended use. Any discounts or rebates are
deducted in arriving at the purchase price. Subsequent expenditure related to an item of PPE is added to its book value only if it
increased the future benefits from the existing assets beyond its previously assessed standard performance.

Recognition principle:

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised as an asset if, and only if:

(i.) itis probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company; and
(ii.) the cost of the item can be measured reliably.

De-recognition principle:
Gain/ (losses) arising from the de-recognition of a PPE are measured as the difference between the net proceeds on disposal
and the carrying amount of the PPE. The resultant gain/(losses) are recognised in the Profit or Loss statement when the PPE is

de-recognised.

Depreciation

Depreciation is calculated on the Straight Line basis over the estimated useful life of the PPE after retaining estimated residual
value not exceeding 5% of the original cost, except for Leasehold improvements and aluminium panels used for construction.
Depreciation on assets used for the project has been considered as part of construction and development cost. The residual
values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at each financial year end and
adjusted prospectively, if considered appropriate.

Upon adoption of Ind AS, the Company has elected to measure all its property, plant and equipment at the Previous GAAP
carrying amount as its deemed cost on the date of transition to Ind AS i.e., 1 April 2015.

The Company has estimated the useful lives which is detailed as under for each category of PPE:

|Name of Assets |Useful Lives |
| Office Equipment 5 years -
'Plant & Machinery (P&M) '8 years '
|Furniture & Fixtures 10 years

Computer and servers 5 and 6 years -

‘Motor Vehicles 10 years

!Leasehold Improvements Over the primary lease period

|Aluminium panel used for construction (P&M) |4 years

Temporary structure |1 year

vspv & Co.
Chariered Acoouatants
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ZUARI INFRAWORLD INDIA LIMITED
NOTES FORMING PART OF STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDING 31 MARCH 2025

(d.)
(i)

(ii.)

(e)

Intangible Assets and Amortisation

Intangible Assets
Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Subsequent to initial recognition, the intangible

assets are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment losses, if any.

Recognition:

The cost of an item of intangible asset is recognised as an asset if, and only if:

(i.) it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company; and
(ii.) the cost of the item can be measured reliably,

De-recognition:

Gain/ (losses) arising from the de recognition of intangibles are measured as the difference between the net proceeds on
disposal and the carrying amount of the intangibles. The resultant gain/(losses) are recognised in the Profit and Loss statement
when the intangible asset is de-recognised.

Amortisation

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed as either finite or indefinite. Intangible assets with finite lives are amortized on
the Straight Line basis over the useful economic life and assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that the
intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite useful
life are reviewed at least at the end of each reporting period. The amortisation expense on intangible assets with finite lives is
recognised in the profit and loss statement unless such expenditure forms part of carrying value of another asset. Intangible
assets with indefinite useful lives are not amortised, but are tested for impairment annually, either individually or at the cash-
generating unit level. The assessment of indefinite life is reviewed annually to determine whether the indefinite life continues to
be supportable. If not, the change in useful life from indefinite to finite is made on a prospective basis.

Intangible assets representing computer software is amortised on the straight line basis over a estimated useful economic life of
five years.

Upon first-time adoption of Ind AS, the Company had elected to measure all its intangible assets at the Previous GAAP carrying
amount as its deemed cost on the date of transition to Ind AS i.e., 1 April 2015.

Leases

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in
exchange for consideration.

The Company as a Lessee:

The Company accounts for each lease component within the contract as a lease separately from non-lease components of the
contract and allocates the consideration in the contract to each lease component on the basis of the relative stand-alone price of
the lease component and the aggregate stand-alone price of the non-lease components.

The Company recognises right-of-use asset representing its right to use the underlying asset for the lease term at the lease
commencement date. The cost of the right-of-use asset measured at inception shall comprise of the amount of the initial
measurement of the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease
incentives received, plus any initial direct costs incurred and an estimate of costs to be incurred by the lessee in dismantling and
removing the underlying asset or restoring the underlying asset or site on which it is located. The right-of-use assets is
subsequently measured at cost less any accumulated depreciation, accumulated impairment losses, if any and adjusted for any
remeasurement of the lease liability. The right-of-use assets is depreciated using the straight-ine method from the
commencement date over the lease term or useful life of right-of-use asset, whichever is earlier. The estimated useful lives of
right-of-use assets are determined on the same basis as those of property, plant and equipment. Right-of-use assets are tested
for impairment whenever there is any indication that their carrying amounts may not be recoverable. Impairment loss, if any, is
recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

VSPV & Co.
Chartered Accountants
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ZUARI INFRAWORLD INDIA LIMITED
NOTES FORMING PART OF STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDING 31 MARCH 2025

(ii.)

()
(i)

The Company measures the lease liability at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the commencement
date of the lease. The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the Iease, if that rate can be readily
determined. If that rate cannot be readily determined, the Company uses incremental borrowing rate. The lease payments shall
inciude fixed payments, variable lease payments, residual value guarantees, exercise price of a purchase option where the
Company is reasonably certain to exercise that option and payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term
reflects the lessee exercising an option to terminate the lease. The lease liability is subsequently remeasured by increasing the
carrying amount to reflect interest on the lease liability and reducing the carrying amount to reflect the lease payments made.
Where the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset is reduced to zero and there is a further reduction in the measurement of the
lease liability, the Company recognises any remaining amount of the re-measurement in statement of profit and loss.

The Company has elected not to apply the requirements of Ind AS 116 on Leases to short-term leases of all assets that have a
lease term of 12 months or leases for which the underlying asset is of low value. The lease payments associated with these
leases are recognized as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Lease contracts entered by the Company majorly pertains for buildings taken on lease to conduct its business in the ordinary
course. The Company does not have any lease restrictions and commitment towards variable rent as per the contract.

The Company as a Lessor:

At the inception of the lease the Company classifies each of its leases as either an operating lease or a finance lease. The
Company recognises lease payments received under operating leases as income on a straight-line basis over the lease term. In
case of a finance lease, finance income is recognised over the lease term based on a pattern reflecting a constant periodic rate
of return on the lessor's net investment in the lease.

When the Company is an intermediate lessor it accounts for its interests in the head lease and the sub-lease separately. It
assesses the lease classification of a sub-lease with reference to the right-of-use asset arising from the head lease, not with
reference to the underlying asset. If a head Iease is a short-term lease to which the Company applies the exemption described
above, then it classifies the sub-lease as an operating lease and recognises lease income accordingly.

If an arrangement or contract contains lease and non-lease components, the Company applies Ind AS 115 Revenue from
contracts with customers to allocate the consideration in the contract.

Impairment

Financial assets (other than at fair value)

The Company assesses at each date of balance sheet whether a financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired. Ind
AS 109 requires expected credit losses to be measured through a loss allowance. In determining the allowances for doubtful
trade receivables, the Company has used a practical expedient by computing the expected credit loss allowance for trade
receivables based on historical credit loss experience and is adjusted for forward looking information. The expected credit loss
allowance is based on the ageing of the receivables that are due and rates used in the provision matrix. For all other financial
assets, expected credit losses are measured at an amount equal to the 12-months expected credit losses or at an amount equal
to the life time expected credit losses if the credit risk on the financial asset has increased significantly since initial recognition.
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ZUARI INFRAWORLD INDIA LIMITED
NOTES FORMING PART OF STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDING 31 MARCH 2025

(ii.)

(9.)

(h.)

Non-financial assets (Tangible and intangible assets)

Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets with finite life are evaluated for recoverability whenever there is any
indication that their carrying amounts may not be recoverable. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount (i.e higher of
the fair value less cost to sell and the value-in-use) is determined on an individual asset basis unless the asset does not
generate cash flows that are largely independent of those from other assets. In such cases, the recoverable amount is
determined for the cash generating unit (CGU) to which the asset belongs. If the recoverable amount of an asset (or CGU) is
estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or CGU) is reduced to its recoverable amount.

Borrowing Costs

Borrowing cost includes interest and amortization of ancillary costs incurred in connection with the arrangement of borrowings.
Borrowing cost also includes exchange differences, if any to the extent regarded as an adjustment to the borrowing costs.

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the construction of development property are capitalized as part of the cost fill
such time the property is ready for its intended sale. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the year they occur.

Borrowing costs during an extended period in which it suspends the activities necessary to prepare an asset for its intended use
or sale. Such costs are costs of holding partially completed assets and do not qualify for capitalisation. However, the Company
does not normally suspend capitalising borrowing costs during a period when it carries out substantial technical and
administrative work. The Company also does not suspend capitalising borrowing costs when a temporary delay considering the
nature of industry, is a necessary part of the process of getting an asset ready for its intended use or sale.

Foreign Currency Translation
The Company'’s financial statements are prepared and presented in Indian Rupees, which is also it's functional currency.

Initial Recognition:
Foreign currency transactions, if any, are recorded at exchange rate prevailing on the date of transaction/ realisation.

Conversion / Reinstatement:

Foreign currency monetary items are translated using the exchange rate prevailing at the reporting date. Non-monetary items
that are measured in terms of historical cost denominated in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rate at the
date of the initial transaction. Non-monetary items measured at fair value denominated in a foreign currency are, translated using
the exchange rates that existed when the fair value was determined.

Exchange Differences:

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items or on reporting Company's monetary items at rates different
from those at which they were initially recorded during the year, or reported in previous financial statements, are recognized as
income or as expenses in the year in which they arise

The gain or loss arising on translation of non-monetary items measured at fair value is treated in line with the recognition of the
gain or loss on the change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation differences on items whose fair value gain or loss is
recognized in other comprehensive income (OCI) or profit and loss are also recognized in OCI or profit and Ioss, respectively).

Inventories
The cost of inventories shall comprise all costs of purchase including cost of land, costs of conversion and other costs including

borrowing costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition.

Inventories (comprising Land under Development and Construction Work-in-Progress) are stated at lower of cost and net
realizable value. Cost includes expenses, net of taxes recoverable, specifically attributable to construction and development of
property intended for sale. The allocation of common costs is based on the normal level of the activities.

Construction work-in-progress of constructed properties include the cost of land, internal development costs, external
development charges, construction costs, overheads, borrowings cost, development/construction materials and is valued lower
of cost/estimated cost and net realisable value.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the estimated cost of completion and

estimated cost necessary to make the sale.
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ZUARI INFRAWORLD INDIA LIMITED
NOTES FORMING PART OF STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDING 31 MARCH 2025

G-)
(i)

(ii.)

(k.)

(ii.)

Provisions and Contingent Liabilities

Provisions
A provision is recognised when the Company has a present obligation as a result of past event, it is probable that an outflow of
resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the

amount of the obligation.

When the Company expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset, but
only when the reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense relating to a provision is presented in the profit and loss statement
net of any reimbursement.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects, when
appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time
is recognised as a finance cost.

Contingent Liabilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed by the occurrence or
non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the control of the Company or a present obligation that is not
recognized because it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation. A contingent liability
also arises in extremely rare cases where there is a liability that cannot be recognized because it cannot be measured reliably.
The Company does not recognise a contingent liability but discloses its existence in the financial statements.

Revenue Recognition

The Company derives revenues primarily from development and sale of residential cum commercial properties and related
services, maintenance and consulting. Effective 1 April 2018, the Company adopted Ind AS 115 “Revenue from Contracts with
Customers’using the cumulative effect transition method being applied to contracts that were not completed as of 1 April 2018.

Revenues from customer contracts are considered for recognition and measurement when the contract has been approved by
the parties, in writing, to the contract, the parties to contract are committed to perform the irrespective obligations under the
contract, and the contract is legally enforceable. Revenue is recognized upon transfer of control over the promised products or
services (“performance obligations") to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration the Company has received or
expects to receive in exchange for these products or services (“transaction price"). When there is uncertainty as to collectability,
revenue recognition is postponed until such uncertainty is resolved.

To determine whether to recognize revenue, the Company follows a five step model as envisaged in Ind AS 115 given below:
Identifying the contract with a customer

ldentifying the performance obligations

Determining the transaction price

Allocating the transaction price to the performance obligations

Recognizing revenue when/as performance obligation(s) are satisfied.

Identify the Contract with Customer

The Company evaluates whether a valid contract is satisfying all the following conditions:
- All parties have approved the agreement (may be written)

- All parties are committed to approve their obligations.

- Each party's rights are identifiable.

- The contract has commercial substance.

- Collectability is probable.

Identifying the performance obligations

The Company evaluates the separability of the promised goods or services based on whether they are ‘distinct'. A promised
good or service is ‘distinct’ if both:

* the customer benefits from the item either on its own or together with other readily available resources, and

- itis ‘separately identifiable’ (i.e. the Company does not provide a significant service integrating, modifying or customizing it)

vspv & Co.
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ZUARI INFRAWORLD INDIA LIMITED
NOTES FORMING PART OF STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDING 31 MARCH 2025

(iii.)

(iv.)

(v.)

Determining the transaction price

The Company considers the terms of the contract and its customary business practices to determine the transaction price. The
transaction price excludes amounts collected on behalf of third parties. The consideration promised include fixed amounts,
existence of any financial component and any other non-cash consideration, or both.

Where the Company has a right to consideration from a customer in an amount that corresponds directly with the value to the
customer of the performance completed to date, the Company recognizes revenue in the amount to which it has a right to
invoice.

Allocating the transaction price to the performance obligations

The transaction price is allocated to the separately identifiable performance obligations on the basis of their standalone selling
price. For services that are not provided separately, the standalone selling price is estimated using adjusted market assessment
approach.

Recognizing revenue whenl/as performance obligation(s) are satisfied.

Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the revenue can
be reliably measured, regardless of when the payment is being made.

Revenue is recognized either at a point in time or over time, when (or as) the Company satisfies performance obligations by
transferring the promised goods or services to its customers,

The main revenue streams for Zuari Infraworld India Limited relate are as under:
- Residential cum commercial properties (constructed properties)

- Development Management Services.

- Sales Commission.

Revenue from sale of residential cum commercial properties (constructed properties)

The Company develops and sells residential cum commercial properties. Revenue is recognised when control over the property
has been transferred to the customer. The properties have generally no alternative use for the company due to contractual
restrictions. Enforceable right to payment does not arise until legal title or posession of the property is deemed to have been
passed to the customer. Therefore, revenue is recognised at a point in time when the legal title has been passed to the customer
or pocession of property is deemed to have been passed to the customer. Each unit of the flats or properties are classified as a
separate performance obligation and revenue is recognised upon legal transfer of asset to buyer or when the pocession of
property is deemed to have been passed to the customer.

The revenue is measured at the transaction price agreed under the contract. In most cases, the consideration is linked with the
process of construction and does not involve any significant financial component.

The Company has not adjusted the promised amount of consideration for the effects of a significant financing component. in the
view of the Management of the Company, the contract with a customers would not have a significant financing component as
there is no difference between the promised consideration and the cash selling price of the residential units (as described in
paragraph 61 and 62 of Ind AS 115) had the same been sold on full cash basis.

Income from sale of services
Income from service contracts which is in the nature of fees for specified periods are recognised on accrual basis to the extent
the services have been rendered and invoices are raised in accordance with the contractual terms with the customers and

recoveries are reasonably certain.

vspy & Co
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ZUARI INFRAWORLD INDIA LIMITED
NOTES FORMING PART OF STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDING 31 MARCH 2025

()

(ii.)

(m.)
(i)

(ii.)

(iii.)

Sales Commission from sale of plots/ residential units
Commission from sale of plots/ residential flats upon sale of the plots/ flats as per the terms of contract and recoveries are

reasonably certain.

Other income

Other income comprises of interest income, dividend income and gain/ioss on investments. Interest income is recognized on
accrual basis using the effective interest method. Dividend is recognised as and when the right to receive payment is established
by the reporting date, which is generally when shareholders approve the dividend.

Taxes on income

Current income tax
Tax expense comprises current and deferred lax. Current income tax is measured at the amount expected to be paid to the tax
authorities using own estimates in accordance with the Income Tax Act, 1961.

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation
authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted, at the
reporting date.

Current income tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in other
comprehensive income or in equity). Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to
situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided using the balance sheet approach on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset is realised
or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits and any
unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against
which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss statement is recognised outside profit or loss (either in other
comprehensive income or in equity).

Retirement and other Employee Benefits

Provident Fund

Retirement benefit in the form of Provident Fund is a defined contribution scheme and the contributions are charged to the Profit
and Loss statement of the year when the contributions to the respective funds are due. There are no other obligations other than
the contribution payable under the scheme.

Gratuity
Gratuity liability under the Payment of Gratuity Act 1972, are defined benefit obligations and are provided for on the basis of
actuarial valuation on projected unit credit method, made at the end of each financial year. The gratuity liability is not funded.

Compensated Absences

Short term compensated absences are provided for based on estimates by the Management considering the entitlements
outstanding as at the reporting date. Long term compensated absences are provided for based on actuarial valuation made at
the end of each financial year. The actuarial valuation is done as per projected unit credit method.
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ZUARI INFRAWORLD INDIA LIMITED
NOTES FORMING PART OF STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDING 31 MARCH 2025

(n.)

(i)

(iii.)

(iv.)

(v.)

(vi.)

(0.)

Remeasurements:
Remeasurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling, excluding amounts included in net
interest on the net defined benefit liability and the return on plan assets (excluding amounts included in net interest on the net
defined benefit liability), are recognised immediately in the balance sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to retained
earnings through OCI in the period in which they occur. Remeasurements are not reclassified to profit or loss statement in
subsequent periods. Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit liability or asset.

Financial Instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. Financial assets and liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to
the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value measured on initial recoghition of financial asset or financial
liability.

Financial assets at amortised cost

Financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost if these financial assets are held within a business whose
objective is to hold these assets to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the financial assets give rise on
specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income

Financial assets are measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if these financial assets are held within a
business whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows on specified dates are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding and selling financial assets.

The Company has made an irrevocable election to present subsequent changes in the fair value of equity investments not held
for trading in other comprehensive income.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets are measured at fair value through profit or loss unless they are measured at amortised cost or at fair value
through other comprehensive income on initial recognition. The transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of
financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are immediately recognised in statement of profit and loss.

Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Equity instruments
An equity instrument is a contract that evidences residual interest in the assets of the Company after deducting all of its
liabilities. Equity instruments recognised by the Company are recognised at the proceeds received net off direct issue cost.

Financial guarantee contracts
Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Company are those contracts that require a payment to be made to reimburse the
holder for a loss it incurs because the specified debtor fails to make a payment when due in accordance with the terms of a debt

instrument.

Financial guarantee contracts are recognised initially as a liability at fair value, adjusted for transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the issuance of the guarantee. Subsequently, the liability is measured at the higher of the amount of loss
allowance determined as per impairment requirements of Ind AS 109 and the amount recognised less cumulative amortisation.

Earnings per Share

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to the equity shareholders
(after deducting attributable taxes) by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year. For the
purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity shareholders and the
weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.
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ZUARI INFRAWORLD INDIA LIMITED
NOTES FORMING PART OF STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDING 31 MARCH 2025

(p.)

(q.)

(s.)

t)

Segment Reporting

Operating segments are reporied in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision
maker. Chief operating decision maker reviews the performance of the Company according to the nature of business which
primarily comprises of development of real estate projects , both residential and commercial,

The Company prepares its segment information in conformity with the accounting policies adopted for preparing and presenting
financial statements of the Company as a whole.

Equity, reserves and dividend payments

Share capital represents the nominal (par) value of shares that have been issued.

Share premium includes any premiums received on issue of share capital. Any transaction costs associated with the issuing of
shares are deducted from share premium, net of any related income tax benefits.

Retained earnings are adjusted for the following:
- Re-measurement of net defined benefit liability-comprises the actuarial losses from changes in demographic and financial

assumptions and the return on pian assets
All transactions with owners of the parent are recorded separately within equity.

Dividend distributions payabie to equity shareholders are included in other liabilities when the dividends have been approved in a
general meeting prior to the reporting date.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the cash flow statement comprises cash at bank and in hand and short term investments with an
original maturity periods of three months or less.

For the purpose of the Statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term deposits, as defined
above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts if any as they are considered an integral part of the Company's cash management.

Investments

Investments in subsidiary, Joint Ventures and Associates are accounted at their cost in the separate financial statements.
Investment in preference shares in Associates and mutual funds are accounted for at fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL)

at the reporting date.

Recent Accounting pronouncements:

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) notifies new standards or amendments to the existing standards under Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to time. During the year ended March 31, 2025, MCA has notified Ind AS 117 -
Insurance Contracts and amendments to Ind As 116 — Leases, relating to sale and lease back transactions, applicable from April
1, 2024. The Company has assessed that there is no significant impact on its standalone financial statements.

On May 9, 2025, MCA notifies the amendments to Ind AS 21 - Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates. These
amendments aim to provide clearer guidance on assessing currency exchangeability and estimating exchange rates when
currencies are not readily exchangeable. The amendments arz effective for annual periods beginning on or after April 1, 2025.
The Company is currently assessing the probable impact of these amendments on its standalone financial statements.
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ZUARI INFRAWORLD INDIA LIMITED
NOTES FORMING PART OF STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDING 31 MARCH 2025
(All Amounts in Indian Rupees in lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

3 Property, plant and equipment
3.1 Tangible assets
‘Particulars | Plantand ~ Office Leasehold Computers Furniture and | Vehicles Total
Equipment Equipment Improvements Fixtures
Deemed Cost
| As at April 1, 2023 6.56 52.36 132.86 | 14.48 | 46.51 0.65 253.41
| Additions 0.63 1.20 - 10.94 0.27 - 13.03
Disposals/adjustments = - - - - = -
| As at March 31, 2024 7.18 53.56 132.86 | 25.42 46.77 0.65 266.44
Additions - | 272 - 4.51 = = 7.23
Disposals/adjustments I - | - - + |l - - =
| As at 31 March 2025 7.18 56.28 | 132.86 29.93 | 46.77 065 27367
Accumulated depreciation | | |
As at April 1, 2023 6.18 45.09 | 103.78 | 8.38 | 37.96 0.44 201.83
Charge for the year 0.07 1.95 l 10.93 2.89 | 2.43 0.08 18.35
| Disposals/adjustments | - i _ . - = =
As at March 31, 2024 6.25 47.04 114.71 11.27 40.39 0.52 220.18
Charge for the year | 0.07 | 1.70 18.11 5.95 2,31 0.08 28.23
Disposals/adjustments = - ‘ = ‘ , | - - -
| As at 31 March 2025 632 48.74 | 132.82 17.22 4270 060 24840
Carrying amount (net) | | | | |
As at April 1, 2023 0.38 7.27 29,08 | 6.10 | 8.54 0.21 | 51.58
Additions ‘ 0.63 | 1.20 = | 10.94 0.27 | - 13.03 ‘
Disposal - - - : - - -
Depreciation (0.07) (1.95) | (10.93) ‘ (2.89) | (2.43) ' (0.08) | (18.35)
As at March 31, 2024 | 0.94 ‘ 6.52 18.15 14.15 6.38 0.13 46.27 |
Additions i 272 - 451 I 7.23
Disposal - ‘ - - - - - - |
Depreciation | (0.07) (1.70) (18.11) (5.95) (2.31)| (0.08) (28.23)
|_As at 31 March 2025 0.86 7.54 0.04 12.71 | 4.07 | 0.05 25.27
3.2 Other Intangible Assets
'Particulars |  Computer | T
| Softv'w)lare Total J
|Deemed Cost | ‘
As at April 1, 2023 35.45 35.45
Additions 2.37 2.37
Disposal ‘ | -
As at March 31, 2024 37.82 37.82 |
Additions - | -
Disposal ‘ - - ‘
_As at 31 March 2025 37.82 | 37.82
Accumulated depreciation ‘ | -
As at April 1, 2023 27.39 27.39
Charge for the year 3.61 ‘ 3.61
Disposals/adjustments | - -
As at March 31, 2024 31.00 31.00 ‘
Charge for the year 3.32 | 3.32
‘ Disposals/adjustments | - -
| As at 31 March 2025 34.32 | 34.32 ‘
Carrying amount (net) | |
As at March 31, 2024 6.82 6.82 |
As at 31 March 2025 3.50 | 3.50 |
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ZUARI INFRAWORLD INDIA LIMITED
NOTES FORMING PART OF STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDING 31 MARCH 2025
(All Amounts in Indian Rupees in lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

3 Property, plant and equipment
33 Right of Use Assets (RoU)
i’b’articijl’érs S ROU Total
- (Building)

Deemed Cost
As at April 1, 2023 263.77 263.77
Additions - -
Disposal - -
As at March 31, 2024 263.77 263.77
Additions - -
Disposal - ‘ -

| As at 31 March 2025 263.77 '  263.77 |

| Accumulated depreciation |
As at April 1, 2023 173.06 | 173.06
Charge for the year 45.36 45.36
Disposals/adjustments ‘ o =z |
As at March 31, 2024 218.42 218.42
Charge for the year 45.36 45.36 |
Disposals/adjustments = | -

| As at 31 March 2025 | 263.77 | 263.77 |

| Carrying amount (net) | ‘
As at March 31, 2024 4536 45.36

| As at 31 March 2025 ! (0.00) (0.00)

3.4 (d.) Capital work in progress . -
|Particulars CWIP Total |
|Deemed Cost ‘ ‘

As at April 1, 2023 -

Additions ‘ 3.50 3.50
Disposal . ‘ o
As at March 31, 2024 3.50 3.50
Additions | 3.50 3.50
Disposal | - ‘ =

As at 31 March 2025 7.00 7.00

CWIP Ageing Schedule as at 31 March 2025

| Past Ageing (Outstanding Since) |
‘ Particulars ‘Less than 1 year‘ 1-2 years [2-3 years More than3 | Total
| ‘ years | ‘
|Capital work in progress 3.50 | 3.50 | = | - | 7.00

CWIP Ageing Schedule as at 31 March 2024 -

. Past Ageing (Outstanding Since) .
‘ Particulars ‘Less than 1 year‘1-2 years '2-3 years ‘ More than 3 | Total
i _ | | | years | |
Capital work in progress | 3.50 | - | - - | 3.50
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ZUARI INFRAWORLD INDIA LIMITED

NOTES FORMING PART OF STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDING 31 MARCH 2025

(Al Amounts in Iindian Rupees in lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

4 Investments As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
4.1 Non-current
(i) Investments in equity instruments carried at cost
Unquoted equity Instruments
Investment in Subsidiaries (refer note 4.2 below)
Zuari Infra Middle East Limited - wholly owned subsidiary 1.66 1.66
[10,000 (Previous year:10,000) Equity Shares of AED 1 each (1 AED = Rs.16.64)]
Investment in Associates
Brajbhumi Nirmaan Private Limited 1,894.00 1,894.00
[10,00,000 (Previous year:10,00,000) Equity Shares of Rs10 each, issued at a
premium of Rs 179.40/-)
Darshan Nirman Private Limited 0.25 0.25
[2,500 (Previous year: 2,500) Equity Shares of Rs 10 each]
Pranati Niketan Private Limited 0.25 0.25
[2,500 (Previous year:2,500) Equity Shares of Rs 10 each]
1,896.16 1,896.16
(i) Investments in redeemable non-cumulative optionally convertible preference shares
Unquoted Investments in preference shares in associate carried at fair value through Profit or Loss: (fully paid)
Brajbhumi Nirmaan Private Limited 550.00 550.00
[5,50,000 shares of Rs 100 each, fully paid, Date of Maturity 30 November 2033]
(1% Redeemable Non-Cumulative optionally convertible preference shares)
(Initial Cost : Rs.550 lakhs)
550.00 550.00
2,446.16 2,446.16
4.2 Current
(i) Investments in mutual funds (Quoted)
Baroda BNP Paribas Liquid Fund Regular Growth 132.48 E
Baroda BNP Paribas Ultra Short Duration fund Regular 200.10 -
332.58 -
5 Loans As at As at

31 March 2025

31 March 2024

Unsecured, Considered Good

Non - Current
Loan to subsidiary
(carried at amortised cost) (also refer note 5.1)
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ZUARI INFRAWORLD INDIA LIMITED

NOTES FORMING PART OF STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDING 31 MARCH 2025
(All Amounts in Indian Rupees in lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

5.1

Loans or Advances in the nature of loans are granted to the related parties
Unsecured Loan to Zuari Infraworld Middle East Limited, Dubai, a wholly owned subsidiary is to meet working capital
requirements of that company and carries interest rate of 12.50% per annum. These loans along with interest are repayable in
equivalent Indian Currency with three year moratorium for payment of interest and principal from the date of disbursement,
These loans are expected to be rolled over along with interest dues for further period and hence calssified as non-current.

Details of loan and date of Fair value of | Repaid | Fair value | Fair value of Due Date of Amount
disbursement |loan as at 31 during 'adjustment loan as at 31 repayment disbursed
March 2024 | the year March 2025 (In foreign
| Currency)
|Loan 2 - 03 May, 2017 653.95 - 97.59 | 751.55 46,143.00 AED 18E;
Loan 3 - 12 Jul, 2017 78.69 - | 1036 89.05 46,213.00 AED 2.00 |
|Loan 4 - 16 Aug, 2017 i 1,040.97 ' - 120.59 | 1,161.56 | 46,248.00 AED 26.00
Loan 5 - 25 April, 2018 | 500.89 = | 60.31 | 561.20 | 46,500.00 AED 13.19
Loan 6 - 23 May, 2018 387.56 | - 44.59 432.15 46,528.00 AED 10.00_|
|Loan 7 - 25 June, 2018 57948 | - | 67.30 | 646.78 | 46,561.00 _ AED15.20
|Loan 8 - 21 Sept, 2018 39.64 | - 2.96 | 42.61 46,649.00 ___ AED1.00 |
Loan 9 - 24 Oct, 2018 2,253.43 | - 74.43 | 2,327.86 46,682.00 AED 54.00 |
}Qan 10 - 03 April, 2019 29.76 - 1.50 | 31.25 | 4574800  AEDO0.80 |
ILoan 11 - 25 April, 2019 987.71 - 62.19 1,049.90 | 45,770.00 USD 7.04 |
Loan 12 - 19 July, 2019 | 383.85 i - 23.32 | 40717 | 45,855.00 USD 2.86
Loan 13 - 31 Oct, 2019 2,066.90 - 173.89 | 2,240.79 | 45,959.00 USD 15.49 |
'Loan 14 - 04 May, 2020 282.98 | - 32.76 315.73 46,145.00 USD 2.31 |
Loan 15 - 13 May, 2020 | 210314 - 234.21 | 2,337.35 | 46,154.00 UsD 17.23
Loan 16 - 27 Aug, 2020 | 1,554.59 - ‘ 177.33 | 1,731.91 | 46,260.00 USD 13.51
Loan 17 - 04 Nov, 2020 303.57 | - 34.30 | 337.87 46,329.00 USD 2,67
Loan 18 - 06 Nov, 2020 466.38 - 53.20 | 519.57 | 46,331.00 USD 4.04
Loan 19 - 24 Nov, 2020 258.09 | - 29.07 287.15 | 46,349.00 USD 2.29 |
Loan 20 - 11 Dec, 2020 i 528.45 | - 53.01 581.46 46,366.00 ! USD 4.48
\Loan 21 - 02 Feb, 2021 | 201.20 | - 22.53 223.74 | 46,419.00 uUsD 1.85‘
Loan 22 - 24 Mar, 2021 4148 - | 464 46.12 46,469.00 UsD0.38
Loan 23 - 06 May, 2021 289.62 | - | 29.59 | 319.22 | 46,512.00 uUsD 271 |
Loan 24 - 31 May, 2021 1,065.23 | - 123.02 | 1,188.25 | 46,537.00 , USD 10.33 |
Loan 25 - 29 Oct, 2021 1,471.22 | - 49.17 | 1,520.39 | 46,679.00 USD 13.86 |
|Loan 26 - 29 Mar, 2022 3,188.48 = 156.74 ! 3,345.22 46,839.00 USD 30.63 ‘
Loan 27 - 06 Jun, 2022 335.52 - 18.89 354.41 45,813.00 USD 3.22
Loan 28 - 23 Sep, 2022 | 258.55 - 17.42 | 27597 | 45,922.00 USD 2.47 |
|Loan 29 - 23 Oct, 2022 | 255.57 | - 28.65 | 284.22 | 45952.00 ' USD 2.43 |
|Loan 30 - 31 Oct, 2022 , 1,069.92 - ] 75.98 | ~1.145.89 | 45,960.00 ! USD 10.18
Loan 31 - 29 Nov 2022 | 1,636.60 | - | 120.95 1,757.56 | 45,989.00 . USD 15.91
Loan 32 - 29 Mar, 2023 . 112909 - | 13148 1,260.56 | 46,109.00 USD 12.14 |
[Loan 33 - 19 Apr, 2023 i 5,606.77 | = | 651.54 6,258.31 ! 46,130.00 ' USD 60.89
Loan 34 - 25 Apr, 2023 | 13,427.69 - | 155497 14,982.66 46,136.00 - USD 146.65 |
Loan 35 - 05 May, 2023 12,266.93 - | 141999 13,686.92 46,146.00 USD 133.66
|Loan 36 - 20 Jun, 2023 1,427.11 - 164.35 | 1,5691.46 46,192.00 USD 15.80 |
Loan 37 - 23 Jun, 2023 1,535.18 | - | 176.18 | 1,711.36 | 46,195.00 ' USD 17.03 |
Loan 38 - 13 Jul, 2023 | 65347 | - | 74.93 | 728.40 | 46,215.00 USD7.28
Loan 39 - 28 Aug, 2023 | 1,072.13 | = || 122.29 | 1,194.42 | 46,261.00 USD 12.06
Loan 40 - 05 Sep, 2023 1,015.72 | - 115.65 | 1,131.37 | 46,269.00 USD 11.43 |
Loan 41 - 26 Sep, 2023 | 2,653.61 | - 300.49 2,954.09 46,290.00 USD 11.43 |
_Forex Gain | | 4,582.98 |
Total 65,101.08 | - | 6,712.38 76,396.45 | |
VSPV & Co.
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ZUARI INFRAWORLD INDIA LIMITED
NOTES FORMING PART OF STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDING 31 MARCH 2025
(All Amounts in Indian Rupees in lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

6 Other financial assets As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Unsecured, Considered Good
6.1 Non-current
Security deposits (carried at amortised cost)* 31.00 31.00
Security deposits (carried at cost)* 1.02 1.02
32.02 32.02
6.2 Current
Security deposits - Current (Carried at cost)* 149.70 36.84
Interest Accrued but not due on deposit with bank 0.05 0.30
Advance to employees 1.38 5.76
Expenses recoverable (refer note 6.4 below) 2,351.92 2,396.75
Other receivables - 30.04
Unbilled Revenue - Service Contracts (Refer Note 6.3 below) - 1,800.00
2,503.05 4,269.69
* These balances are subject to confirmation.
6.3  Includes service income accrued and not billed as at the reporting date to related parties;
Zuari Infra Middle East Limited, UAE - Development Management fees - 1,800.00
- 1,800.00
6.4  Includes expenses recoverable from related parties;
Brajbhumi Nirmaan Private Limited, India 157.33 157.33
Zuari Infra Middle East Limited, UAE 2,194.59 2,239.42
2,351.92 2,396.75
6.5 Expenditure incurred against various projects under preview. The management after discussion has assessed its
recoverability and decided to take charge in profit and loss statement.
7 Deferred tax (Asset) / liability (net) As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
7.1 Tax effect of items constituting deferred tax liabilities
Unrealised gain on investment in mutual funds carried at fair value through profit or I¢ 0.51 -
Lease liabilities > (9.19)
0.51 (9.19)
7.2 Tax effect of items constituting deferred tax assets
Property, plant and equipment and Intangible assets 33.83 20.85
Provision for employee benefits obligations 21.32 20.34
Others (23.12) 99.24
: 32.03 140.43
Unused Tax Losses 1,726.66 937.56
Less: Not considered for deferred tax purposes (1,207.76) (937.56)
518.90 -
550.42 (149.63)

7.3

74

Also, refer note 28 for other tax related disclosures.

The Company offsets tax assets and liabilities if and only if it has a legally enforceable right to set-off current tax assets and
current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same tax

As the management expects that the interest on Non convertible cumulative redeemable Preference shares will not be aliowed

as a deduction, the income tax impact on the same has been recognised in Other Equity, since the inftiq],__reco
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ZUARI INFRAWORLD INDIA LIMITED
NOTES FORMING PART OF STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDING 31 MARCH 2025
(All Amounts in Indian Rupees in lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

8 Other Assets As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Unsecured, Considered Good

8.1 Non-Current
Advances recoverable in cash or kind - 639.61
Less: Provision for unrecoverable amount - (639.61)
Goods and Service Tax Refund (refer note 8.4 below) - 103.97
Karnataka VAT - refund receivable = 5.76
Service tax - retund receivable - 10.35
Less: Provision towards service tax refund - (10.35)

- 109.73

8.2 Current
Advance to vendors 228.94 2,399.44
Less: Provision for unrecoverable amount - (2,124.40)
Goods and Services tax input credit (refer note 8.3 below) 170.20 17.75
Prepaid expenses (refer note 8.5 below) 83.97 88.84

483.11 381.64

8.3 Goods and Service Tax Input credits carried in the books includes input tax credits aggregating to Rs. lakhs 14.53 lakhs
(Previous year: 17.75 lakhs) relating to advance payments to vendors and unpaid vendors bills beyond time period stipulated
under GST Law, which will be claimed in the returns in the subsequent periods when the company is eligible to claim such
credits under the provisions of the GST Law.

8.4 Represents Goods and Service Tax paid on export of services which is expected to be claimed as refund and the Company
has received the full refund during the year.

8.5 Includes Rs.72.98 lakhs (Previous Year: Rs.35.92 takhs) on account of brokerage & sales commission paid to an agency for
services, on gross sale consideration receivable from customers. As per the agreement, in the event of non-completion of sale
transaction, such commission is refundable by the agency. The commission paid is charged to the Profit & Loss Statement as
and when revenue is recognised on a proportionate basis.

9 Inventories As at As at
(valued at lower of cost or net realizable value) 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Completed units ( Refer Note 9.1. below) 926.44 2,217.32
Construction Work-In-Progress (includes cost of Land, Borrowing Cost and Project C 17,443.56 16,199.19
and Development Cost) (Refer Note 9.2. below)
18,370.00 17,416.50

9.1 Represents residential units in respect of which company has entered into agreement for sale with the respective customers,
amounts received against these agreements by the company has been reported as advance from customers in Note No. 19.
Pending receipt of balance consideration, i any and effecting the transfer of legal title/deemed handover of the property, the
same is reported as Inventory.

9.2 The Management has reviewed the carrying value of its construction work-in-progress by assessing the net realisable value of

the project which is determined by forecasting sales rates, expected sale prices and estimated costs to complete (including
escalations and cost overrun). This review by the management did not result in any loss and thus no adjustments/ provisions
to the carrying value of project work-in-progress was required and external valuation was not considered necessary by the
Management. In respect of early stage projects, the underlying fair value of land based on valuation report of chartered
engineer was considered for the purpose of determining the net realisable value and the carrying value of the construction
work-in-progress was found to be less than the net realisable value so ascertained.

a:;ﬂeted Accountants
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ZUARI INFRAWORLD INDIA LIMITED
NOTES FORMING PART OF STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDING 31 MARCH 2025
(All Amounts in Indian Rupees in lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

10 Trade receivables As at

As at

31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Unsecured, Considered Good

10.1 Current

Trade receivables - Related Parties (refer note 10.2. below) 2,270.68 215417
Trade receivables - others 0.08 256.50
2,270.76 2,410.66

10.2 Receivables from the related parties;
Zuari Industries Limited = 1,351.34
Brajbhumi Nirmaan Private Limited 404.02 404.02
Zuari Infra SIM Properties LLC, Dubai 1,861.60 56.84
Zuari Infra Middle East Limited, Dubai - 319.69
Paradeep Phosphates Limited 5.06 5.06
Zuari Farmhub Limited = 17.22
2,270.68 2,154.17
Particulars Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Less than 6 6 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 Total
months |months years
1 year
Undisputed Trade receivables 1,861.60 - - - 409.08 2,270.68 |
— considered good |

10.3 The Management of the Company expects full realisation of these receivables from related parties, accordingly no allowance

towards non recovery is considered necessary by the Management.

10.4 No trade or other receivables are due from directors or other officers of the company either severally or jointly with any other
person. Nor any trade or other receivable are due from firms or private companies respectively in which any director is a

partner, a director or a member.

11 Cash and bank balances As at

As at

31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Cash and cash equivalent

Balances held in banks in current account 209.23 599.63

Deposits held with banks with other than lien marked more than 3 months but less

that 12 months maturity period 12.44 62.16

Cheques in hand - 2.00
221.67 663.79

Note: The above balances held with banks are as per the statement of account obtained from that bank.

VSPV & CC'
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ZUARI INFRAWORLD INDIA LIMITED
NOTES FORMING PART OF STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDING 31 MARCH 2025
(All Amounts in Indian Rupees in lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

As at As at

12 Share capital 31 March 2025 31 March 2024

121

(i) Authorised

6,00,00,000 (Previous year:6,00,00,000) Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each 6,000.00 6,000.00
1,50,00,000 (Previous year:1,50,00,000) Preference Shares of Rs. 10 each 1,500.00 1,500.00
7,500.00 7,500.00

(ii) Issued, subscribod & paid up
5,52,63,157 (Previous year:5,52,63,157) Equity Shares of Rs 10 each 5,526.32 5,526.32
1,14,50,000 (Previous year:1,14,50,000) Non-Convertible Cumulative Redeemable

Preference Shares of Rs 10 each issued at premium of Rs. 90 each. 1,145.00 1,145.00
(Also, refer note 14.4 below )
6.671.32 6,671.32
12.2  Reconciliation of equity shares outstanding at the begin ning and at the end of the reporting year: -
| Particulars As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024
(shares of Rs. 10/- each) | Nos. Amount (Rs.) Nos. Amount (Rs.) |
| At the beginning of the year | 5,52,63,157 5,526.32 |_ 5,00,00,000 5,000.00 |
| Issued during the year - | - | 52,63,157 526.32
| Outstanding at the end of the year | 55263,157 | 5,526.32 5,52,63,157| 5.526i2l
12.3 Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company as at 31 March 2025
| Name of the Shareholder | As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024
| No's. ~ % holding | No's. % holding
Zuari Industries Limited, the Holding Company | 55263157 | 100% 5,52,63,157 | 100% |

(Including 10,000 equity shares jointly held)

Note: As per the records maintained by the Company including the registers of members/ sharehalders, the above share
holding represents both legal and beneficial ownership.

12.4 Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to equity shares:
Company has only one class of equity shares having par value of Rs 10 per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled
to one vote per share. In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of the equity shares are entitled to receive

remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the
number of the equity shares held by the Shareholder.

12.8 The company has not issued any securities convertible into equity/preference shares.

12.6 For the period of five years immediately preceding the date as at which the Balance Sheet is prepared :
No shares were allotted as fully paid up pursuant to a contract without payment being received in cash.
No shares were allotted as fully paid up by way of bonus shares.

No shares were bought back.

127 There were no shares reserved for issue under options and contracts/commitments for the sale of shares/disinvestment.

12.8 There were no calls unpaid or forfeited shares.

vspV & Co.
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ZUARI INFRAWORLD INDIA LIMITED
NOTES FORMING PART OF STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDING 31 MARCH 2025
(All Amounts in Indian Rupees in lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

12.9 Shares held by promoters at 31 March, 2025

%of total % Change

Promoter Name \ No. of Shares .
shares during the year
Zuari industries Limited, the Holding Company e | 100% W
7 . 0,
(Including 10,000 equity shares jointly held) 5526315 0.00%
Shares held by promoters at 31 March, 2024 )
~ Promoter Name | No. of Shares %of total| % Change
9.52%

| Zuari Industries Limited, the Holding Company 55263157 100% |
{(Including 10,000 equity shares jaintly haid) e I

Refer Note 14.4 for details of Cumulative Compulsarily redeemable preference shares issued by the Company.

13 Other equity As at

As at

31 March 2025 31 March 2024

13.1  Deemed equity on fair-value adjustment to Non-convertible cumulative redeemable preference Shares:

Equity component of redeemable Preference Shares 562.11 562.11
Income tax effect on the interest portion on Preference shares (146.15) (146.15)
415.96 415.96
Also refer note 14.5 below for detailed disclosure on preference shares.
13.2  Security Premium Account:
As at the beginning and end of the year 13,434.68 11,961.00
Add : Addition during the year - 1,473.68
13,434.68 13,434.68
13.3 Balance in profit and Loss Statement
As at the beginning of the year. (5,529.64) (2,654.39)
Add: Profit for the year before OCI {427.43) (2,875.25)
Net deficits in the profit and loss statement (5,957.06) (5,529.64)
7,893.58 8,321.01
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ZUAR! INFRAWORLD INDIA LIMITED
NOTES FORMING PART OF STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDING 31 MARCH 2025
(All Amounts in Indian Rupees in lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

As at As at

14 Borrowings 31 March 2025 31 March 2024

141 Long-term borrowings:
(i)  Secured Loans

Term Loans from others:

IIFL Wealth Prime Limited -Debentures - 9,000.00

AXIS Finance Limited 14,250.00

Less: Amortization as per IND AS (123.40)

Bajaj Finance Ltd 15,500.00 -
29,626.60 9,000.00

(i)  Unsecured Loans

Inter-Corporate Deposits from related parties (refer note 14.3 below)

Zuari Industries Limited 6,697.00 1,060.75
Zuari International Limited 21,057.93 40,107.49
27,754.93 41,168.25

Liability component of compound financial instrument
Non-Convertible Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares 1,145.00 1,145.00
(Also, refer note 14.4 below)

58,626.52 51,313.25
14.2 Short -term borrowings:
(i) Secured Loans
Barclays Bank PLC 18,500.00 11,090.64
IIFL Wealth Management Limited - 7,499.64
Interest Accrued but not due on current borrowings 136.09 378.00
Interest Accrued but not due on non-current borrowings 112.08 -
18,748.17 18,968.28
(i)  Unsecured loans
Inter-Corporate Deposits from related parties (refer note 14.3 below)
Adventz Finance Private Limited 8,200.00 6,400.00
8,200.00 6,400.00
Inter-Corporate Deposits from others
Toshniwal Brothers (SR) P Ltd - 206.90
Purvi Iron Limited - 151.97
Maruna Exports P Ltd - 201.02
= 5§59.90
26,948.17 25,928.18
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ZUARI INFRAWORLD INDIA LIMITED
NOTES FORMING PART OF STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDING 31 MARCH 2025
(All Amounts in Indian Rupees in lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

14.3 Unsecured Inter-Corporate Deposits from related parties

(i)

(it)

14.4

(M

(i)

(iff)

Zuari Industries Limited, Holding Company

Unsecured inter-corporate deposit taken from Zuari Industries Limited, the holding company to meet the working capital
needs of the Company for a period of upto 3 years.

_Terms of Repayment: )
I Outstandin

g Loans I Interest Outstanding
IPartlculars 31 March  during the Repaid accured and 31 March 2025 Due Date*
| 2024 | Year . | due | - |
i . . |
Loan (including interest 4 150 26 | 42 355,00 6,718.75 | 3 6,697.00 26-Mar-28|
|accured) | _ _ B .
| Total | 1,060.76 12,355.00 6,718.75 | - 6.697.00 |

* Due dates after considering rollover/ renewal during the year.

Adventz Finance Private Limited

During the year Additional loan for working capital purpose of Rs. 8200 lakhs from Adventz Finance Private Limited, a
group company carries interest rate of 12.5% p.a. from 1 Januanry 2025 11.50%. The loan outstanding including interest
accruals as at 31 March 2025 is Rs.8200 lakhs (Previous Year: Rs.6,400 lakhs).

Non-Convertible Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares:

Reconciliation of Shares Outstanding at the beginning and end of the reporting year

|Non-ConvertibIe Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares of Rs 10 each, | As at ; As at

issued at premium Rs 90 per share | 31 March 2025 | 31 March 2024J
At the beginning of the year | 1,14,50,000 1,14,50,000
Issued during the year | - -
Outstanding at the end of the year | 1,14,50,000 1,14,50,000|
Shares holding more than 5% as at the beginning and end of the reporting year )
[Non-Convertible Cumulative Redeemable . As at 31 March 2025 | As at 31 March 2024 |
Preference Shares of Rs 10 each, issued at In No's In %] In No's In %
|Mr. Saroj Kumar Poddar 85,00,000 | 74% 85,00,000 74%,
| Texmaco Infrastructure & Holdings Limited | 29,50,000 | 26% | 29,50,000 26%|

Rights, preferences & restrictions attached to Non-Convertible Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares:

The Company has only one class of non-convertible preference share having a par value of Rs 10 per share, carrying
coupon rate of 8.5% per annum which are cumulative in nature and redeemable on 31 Mar 2029 (70,00,000 Shares), 31
Mar 2029 (15,00,000 Shares) and 31 March 2027 (29,50,000 Shares) respectively. During the year the Company has
extended the redemption period of 85,00,000 preference shares which was due on 31 March 2025 to 31 March 2029,
these share are reedmable at a price band of Rs. 125 - Rs. 150 per preference share. Each holder of preference shares is
entitled to one vote per share on resolutions placed before the company.
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ZUARI INFRAWORLD INDIA LIMITED
NOTES FORMING PART OF STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDING 31 MARCH 2025
(All Amounts in Indian Rupees in lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

(iv)

Pursuant to Scheduie |1l of the Companies Act 2013 (“the Act"), for companies whose financial statements are drawn up in
compliance of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 read with Indian Accounting Standard 32 -
Disclosure of Financial Instruments, Non-convertible redeemable cumulative preference shares which are settled in cash
needs to be classified as ‘financial liability' and not ‘equity'. Accordingly company has computed the fair value of these
preference shares considering the effective interest rate (EIR) at 14% and the portion computed as 'Borrowing' amounting
to Rs.1,145.00 lakhs (Previous year : Rs.1,145.00 lakhs) has been classified under 'Long-term Borrowings' and the
portion computed as the deemed equity amounting to Rs. 415.96 lakhs (Previous year : Rs.415.96 lakhs), net of taxes has
been reported under 'Other Equity".

With respect to premium received on issue as well as the additional premium payable on redemption of preference shares
no adjustments/ disclosures has been carried out as contemplated in Ind-AS 32 and Ind-AS 109 read with Schedule IIl of
the Act, since such classification of the ‘securities premium account' into 'borrowings' or other equity' will be inconsistent
with the provisions of section 52 of the Act which stipulates the manner in which the securities premium account can be
utilised. Also the additional premium payable on the redemption has not been recognised in the absence of the
accumulated profits since recognition of such a liability will be violative of section 55 of the Act.

Considering above, the Company has been legally advised that no further recognition or adjustments to the premium
amounts are required in view of the specific provisions of section 52 and 55 of the Act. Accordingly, no adjustments as
required under ind-AS 32 and Ind-AS 109 read with Schedule 1l of the Act are made in respect of the premium payable on
redemption

14.5 Following the are the sanctioned working capital/General Corporate Purpose limits in excess of Rupees five crore in
aggregate
Balance Balance
Sanction outstanding as | outstanding as
L
ender name Limit on 31st March | on 31st March
2025 2024
IIFL Wealth Management Limited 7,500 - 7,500
IIFL Wealth Prime Limited 10,000 = 9.000
Barclays Bank PLC 20.000 18.500 11,091
Axis Finance Limited 15,000 15,000 =
Bajaj Finance Limited 18,900 15,500 -
14.6  During the previous year, the Company has executed Corporate Guarantees with the Zuari Industries Limited, the holding
company in favour of Canara Bank for extending financing facility Rs.27,000 lakhs to general corporate purpose to Zuari
Industries Limited.The company has also provided security by way of Mortgate 17.52 acres Project land of company for
this financing facility
[ As at As at
15 Lease Liabilities 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
15 Current
Lease Liability 5 119.18
- 119.18
- 119.18

ysPV & Co
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ZUARI INFRAWORLD INDIA LIMITED

NOTES FORMING PART OF STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDING 31 MARCH 2025

(All Amounts in Indian Rupees in lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

(i)

The movement in lease liabilities is as follows:

Particulars

|Balance at the beginning”

Finance cost accured during the year
'Payment/payable towards lease liabilities
Balance as at the end

*excluding refundable rent deposit of Rs.26.70 carried at amortised cost,

ended March

For the year |

For the?ear
onded March 31,

31, 2025 2024
111.38 ~ 169.29

7.17 18.90

118.55 76.82

2 111.38

The details of the contractual maturities of lease liabilities as at 31 March 2025 on an undiscounted basis are as

(ii.)

follows :
|Particulars As at March 31 | As at March 31
B 2025 i 2024
|Less than one year = 99.6_4:
[Total -] 99.64
As at As at
16 Trade payables 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
16.1 Non-Current
- Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises -
- Total. oufstandlng dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small 63.22 114.06
enterprises
63.22 114.06
16.2 Current
- Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 0.03 13.27
- Total' outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small 720.19 851.45
enterprises
720.22 864.72
IEarticulars Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Less than 1 y¢1-2 years |2-3 years More than 3 Total ‘
years
| (i) MSME 0.03 = | - - 0.03 |
|previous year 13.27 = | - - 13.27
!(ii) Others 263.44 111.42 | 79.08 266.24 | 720.16
previous year 442,29 228.34 261.40 | 33.48 | 952.24 |

16.3 Act, 2006 based on the information available with the Company are as under:

Principal amount due to suppliers under MSMED Act

* Balances are subject to confirmation

e Co.
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ZUARI INFRAWORLD INDIA LIMITED
NOTES FORMING PART OF STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDING 31 MARCH 2025
(All Amounts in Indian Rupees in lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

. . . As at As at
17  Other Financial Liabilities 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
17.1  Current
Other financial liabilities (carried at cost)
Current maturity of long term loans (refer note 14) 750.00 -
Other Deposits 44.29 14.96
Due to employees 92.64 123.43
886.93 138.39
gl As at As at
18 Other liabilitios 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Current
Statutory dues 340.05 568.61
Advances from customers relating to;
- Completed units pending registration or transfer of pocession 512.69 2,195.54
- Construction work-in-progress 1,411.83 377.20
- Other customer advances (refer note 18.1 below) 737.49 708.67
3,002.06 3,850.02
18.1 Includes advances of Rs. 731.77 lakhs (Previous year: Rs.323.01 lakhs) collected from the buyers towards club

membership charges fees which will be adjusted against the expenses incurred in this regard.

19 Provisions As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
19.1 Non-Current
Provision for employee benefits;
Provision for gratuity obligation 36.91 31.53
Provision for compensated absences 8.82 8.82
45.73 40.35
19.2 Current
Provision for employee benefits;
Provision for gratuity obligation 27.60 29.35
Provision for compensated absences 8.66 8.52
36.26 37.87

Also, refer note 36 for detailed disclosures on employee benefit plans.
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ZUARI INFRAWORLD INDIA LIMITED
NOTES FORMING PART OF STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDING 31 MARCH 2025
(All Amounts in Indian Rupees in lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

For the year ended For the year ended

20 Revenue from operations 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Sale of residential units 1,199.19 4,192.90
Development management fees & Expenses recovered 4.80 2,142.56

1,203.99 6,335.46

For the year ended For the year ended

21 Otherincome 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Interest Income on ;
Deposits with Bank 0.07 55.92
Inter-Corporate Deposits to subsidiary 6,712.38 7,219.92
Income tax refund 15.64 2.46
Exchange Gain 1,880.46 3,242.19
Gains from redemption of Mutual Fund 10.60 38.26
Premium of Redemption of Preference shares = 50.00
Other miscellaneous income 18.30 5.58
8,637.45 10,614.34

For the year ended For the year ended

22 Project construction and development expenses 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Civil Work 1,034.15 513.43
Rework expenses charged to profit and loss 3.47 5.35
1,037.62 518.78
Add: Borrowing cost transferred to construction work in progress 1,022.23 275.47
Add: Employee benefit expenses transferred to construction work in 187.99 40 48
progress

2,247.84 834.74
. . . For the year ended For the year ended

23 Changes in construction work-in-progress 31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Completed units of stock

Completed units at the beginning of the year pursuant to Ind AS 115 2,217.32 519.21
Add: Tranferred from construction Work-in- progress - 1,698.11
Less: Cost of Projects (1,075.26) -
Less: Finance cost transferred from inventories (215.61) -
Completed units at the end of the year 926.44 2,217.32
Changes in completed units during the year 1,290.87 {1,698.11)

R ———
—
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Construction Work-in- progress

Construction work-in-progress at the beginning of the year

Less: Tranferred to completed units stock

Add: Construction cost incurred during the year (refer note 22)

Less: Cost of Projects

Less: Finance cost transferred from inventories

Less: Rework expenses charged to profit and loss
Construction work-in-progress at the end of the year

Changes In construction work in progress
Less: Changes in WIP related finance cost

Total (Increase) / Decrease (a+b)

15,199.19 21,488.32
2 (1,698.11)
2,247.84 834.74
- (3,831.37)

_ (1,589.04)

(3.47) (5.35)
17,443.56 15,199.19
(2,244.37) 6,289.13
215.61 1,589.04
(2,459.98) 4,700.09
(953.50) 4,591.02

For the year ended

For the year ended

24 Employee benefit expenses 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Salaries and wages 636.40 626.81
Contribution to provident and other funds 28.21 574
Gratuity 12.57 15.40
Compensated absences 6.45 14.36
Staff welfare expenses 20.20 12.24

703.83 674.55
Less: Employee benefit expenses
transferred to construction work in progress (187.99) (40.48)
515.84 634.07

25 Finance costs

For the year ended
31 March 2025

For the year ended
31 March 2024

Interest expense:

Interest on borrowings

Interest others

Interest on lease liabilities (Refer note 15)
Finance cost transferred from inventories

Less: Borrowing cost transferred to construction work in progress

9,262.01 8,623.21
= 72.27

7.17 18.90
215.61 1,589.04
9,484.79 10,203.43
(1,022.23) (275.47)
8,462.56 9,927.96

For the year ended

For the year ended

26 Depreciation and amortization expenses 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Depreciation of Property, plant and equipment 28.22 18.35
Amortisation of intangible assets 3.32 3.61
Amortisation of right-of-use-assets 45.36 45.36

76.90 67.31
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For the year ended

For the year ended

27 Other expenses 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Rent 12.19 7.52
Travel and conveyance 43.31 48.63
Legal and professional fees 4499 119.63
Communication and internet charges 5.34 443
Office Expenses 19.12 35,32
Repairs and maintenance 20.51 19.22
Auditors remuneration 11.15 13.50

Recruitment Expenses 17.69 5.45
Advertising and publicity 178.45 64.93
Rates and taxes 0.64 23.54
Commission & Brokerage 30.31 54.05
Loss on redemption of Preference shares - 162.00
Manpower Service Expenses 70.07 72.76
Maintenance charges 12.58 58.28
Insurance 2.02 1.85
Business development expenses 28.91 -
Directors sitting fees 5.60 4.40
Miscellaneous expenses 0.1 472

532.99 700.26
28.1 The tax effects of timing differences that resulted in changes in  For the year ended For the year ended
" deferred tax are as follows: 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Interest accrued on preference shares issued (Adjustment pursuant i 1023
to Ind-AS) .
:Differe:nce between accounting base and tax base of tangible & (12.98) 15.98
ntangible assets
Temporary differences on benefit obligations (0.98) (3.85)
Fair valuation of investment in Preference shares - (45.07)
Other adjustments 153.38 6.33
Fair valuation of investment in mutual funds 0.51 -
Lease Liabilties (19.19) (10.10)
Unused Tax Losses (518.90) -
(398.16) (26.48)
28.2

Deferred tax assets arising from the carry forward of unused tax losses are recognised in these financial
statements as there is convincing evidence that sufficient taxable profit will be available in the future against which
the unused tax losses can be utilised by the Company, which is considered appropriate by the Management.
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29 Disclosure of Interest in subsidiaries, joint arrangements and associates:

29.1 Disclosure of Interest in the following subsidiaries:

Country | _Ownershi_p Interest of ZIIL (%) _. Method used to
Name of the company of As at As at account for
Incorporation 31 March 2025 31 March 2024 investments
|Zuari Infra Middle East Limited, Dubai UAE i 100% 100% At Cost
29.2 Disclosure of Interest in the following associates:
[ 5 Country | Ownership Interest of ZIIL i"/? ~ Method used to
Name of the company of As at As at account for
_ B Incorporation | 31 March 2025 | 31 March 2024 investments
|Brajbhumi Nirmaan Private Limited : India | 25% | 25% At Cost
|Darshan Nirman Private Limited ' India ! 25% 25% At Cost
Pranati Niketan Private Limited ] _ India __ 25% ' 25% At Cost

Note: As at 31 March 2025 Brajbhumi Nirmaan Private Limited holds 50% of Darshan Nirman Private Limited and 50% of Pranati Niketan

Private Limited.
30 Commitments and Contingencies

30.1 Contingent Liabilities (not provided for)

Particulars | March 31 2025 March 31 2024
|Dividend on Non Convertible redeemable cumulative preference shares not yet declared 926.20 828.87
‘Tax demand under Section 201 of Income Tax Act, 1961 as per TRACES portal of Income tax 6.15 6.34 |
website, against which company is in the process of filing rectification. |

GST demands in excess of provisions (pending in appeals aginst which Rs.12.71 lakhs paid| 258.16 -
|as deposit for appeals) |
[Customer claims not acknowledged as debt by the Company (refer note 30.2) | 171.00 105.45

| Total | 1,361.51 | 940.66

30.2 the Company has certain litigations involving customers, for which a sufficiently reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation cannot
be made. Based on management assessment and in-house legal team’s advice, the management believes that the Company has
reasonable chances of succeeding before the courts/appellate authorities and does not foresee any material liability. Pending the final

decision on the matters, no further provision has been made in the financial statements.

30.3 Capital Commitments

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on Project construction and development, net of advances aggregates to Rs.

738.49 lakhs (Previous year:Rs.1,501.88/- lakhs).
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30.4 Pledge of assets:

31

The Company has executed Corporate Guarantees with the Zuari Industries Limited, the holding company in favour of Canara Bank for
extending financing facility to Zuari Industries Limited, the holding company. The company has also provided security by way of Mortgate
on Project land of company for this financing facility

Earnings Per Share ("EPS")

Basic earnings per share (EPS) amounts are calculated by dividing the profit for the year attributable to equity holders of the parent by the
weighted average number of Equity shares outstanding during the year. There are no dilutive potential equity shares, accordingly the
Diluted EPS are also calculated by dividing the profit attributable to equity holders by the weighted average number of equity shares
outstanding during as at the end year.

The following reflects the income and share data used in the computation of basic and diluted EPS :
(No. of shares in absolute numbers)

|Particulars | March312025 | March 312024
lProfit before OCI attributable to equity holders of the parent company I (427.43) (2,875.25)
|Weighted Average number of equity shares used for computing EPS (Basic & Diluted) | 5,52,63,157 | 5,0057,678
|Earning/(Loss) Per Share (Basic and Diluted) (Rs.) ' (0.77)| (5.74)
Face value per share (Rs.) - 10.00 | 10.00
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32 Related Party Disclosures

32.1 Details of related party and their relationship with the Company:

Nature of relatTonship with the Company

Sl. | Name of the related party
1 | Zuari Industries Limited | Holding Company
|2 | Zuari Infra Middle East Limited, UAE | Subsidiary -
3 | Zuari Infraworld SJM Properties LLC, UAE (formerly SJM Elysium Step down Subsidiary
| Properties LLC)
| 4 | Burj District Development Limited, Cayman Islands Joint Venture of Step down subsidiary -
| 5 | Burj District One Limited, UAE | Subsidiary of the Joint Venture of Step down subsidiary
| 6 | Brajbhumi Nirmaan Private Limited Associates
| 7 | Darshan Nirman Private Limited B Associates I
| 8 | Pranati Niketan Private Limited Associates -
| 9 | Rosewood Agencies Private Limited _Subsidiary of Brajphumi Nirmaan Private Limited
10 | Neobeam Agents Private Limited Subsidiary of Brajphumi Nirmaan Private Limited
11 Mayapur Commercial Private Limited B | Subsidiary of Brajphumi Nirmaan Private Limited
[12 ' Nexus Vintrade Private Limited Subsidiary of Brajphumi Nirmaan Private Limited
| 13 | Bahubali Tradecomm Private Limited Subsidiary of Brajphumi Nirmaan Private Limited
| 14  Hopeful Sales Private Limited | Subsidiary of Brajphumi Nirmaan Private Limited
15 Divine Realdev Private Limited | Subsidiary of Brajphumi Nirmaan Private Limited
| 16 | Kushal Infraproperty Private Limited | Subsidiary of Brajphumi Nirmaan Private Limited
| 17 | Beatle Agencies Private Limited | Subsidiary of Brajbhumi Nirmaan Private Limited
| 18 | Suhana Properties Private Limited | Subsidiary of Brajphumi Nirmaan Private Limited
| 19 | Saket Mansions Private Limited | Subsidiary of Brajphumi Nirmaan Private Limited
20 | Zuari Management Services Limited Fellow Subsidiaries
21 | Simon India Limited Fellow Subsidiaries N
22 | Zuari Finserv Limited (formerly known as Zuari Finserv Private Limited) Fellow Subsidiaries -
.23 | Indian Furniture Products Limited | Fellow Subsidiaries
24 | Zuari International Limited Fellow Subsidiaries
25 | Zuari Insurance Brokers Limited Fellow Subsidiaries o
26 | Forte Furniture Products India Private Limited Fellow Subsidiaries
27 | Zuari Envien Bioenergy Private Limited Joint Venture of Holding Company
28 | Zuari IAV Private Limited Joint Venture of Holding Company
29 | Texmaco Infrastructure & Holdings Limited Associates of Holding Company
30 | Zuari Agro Chemicals Limited Associates of Holding Company
30 | Adventz Finance Private Limited Promoter of Holding Company
31 | Athar Sahab, Managing Director, Zuari Industries Limited | Key Management Personnel
32 | Alok Banerjee, CEO & Director | Key Management Personnel
33 | Akhilesh Thakur, Chief Financial officer (appointed w.e.f February 5, Key Management Personnel
2024)
34  Laxman Aggarwal, Company Secretary (appointed w.e.f February 5, 2024 Key Management Personnel
resigned w.e.f May 17, 2024)
35 | Yadvinder Goyal, Company Secretary (appointed w.e.f January 30, 2025 = Key Management Personnel
resigned w.e.f March 30, 2025)
| 36 | Akshar K. Biyani, Company Secretary (appointed w.e.f May 09, 2025) Key Management Personnel

32.2 Details of transactions with related parties:

Sl.
No
1

Particulars

Yearended | Year ended
31 March 2025 | 31 March 2024

_|Zuari Agro Chemicals Limited

Development Management Fees Income
Zuari Infra Middle East Limited

Zuari infra SJM Properties LLC

Zuari Industries Limited

Expenses,Service Charges, Reimbursement
Zuari Industries Limited

Simon India Limited

Zuari Mangement Service Limited

Adventz Finance Private Limited

Zuari International Limited
'Zuari Finserv Limited

Inter-Corporate Deposits Given- Asset
Zuari Infra Middle East Limited
- Given
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4 |Inter-Corporate Deposits Taken - Liability
Zuari Industries Limited

- Accepted 12,565.00 2,834.00
- Repayment 6,928.75 1,925.05
Texmaco Infrastructure & Holdings Limited
- Repayment - 500.00
|Adventz Finance Private Limited
- Accepted 8,200.00 6,400.00
- Repayment 6,400.00 2,400.00
Zuari International Limited ‘
- Accepted 5,875.00 27,925.00
|- Repayment 2492462 450842 |
5 |Interest on ICD (Expenses)
Zuari Industries Limited 343.26 | 98.93
|Texmaco Infrastructure & IHoldings Limiled = 55.66 |
| Zuari International Limited 3.418.08 : 2,885.20
6 |Interest on ICD given - Income (incl. adjustment on amortisation)
| |2uari Infra Middle East Limited 6,712.38 | 721992 |
| 7 /Reimbursement of Expenses received/receivable |
|Zuari Infra Middle East Limited o - - 25678 |
32.3 Compensation paid to Key management personnel compensation: S
Sl. |Particulars Yearended |  Yearended

INo

31 March 2025 | 31 March 2024

1 |Short-term employee benefits

169.69‘ 150.07

| Alok Banerjee, Chief Executive Officer & Director
Anshul Amit Bansal, Chief Financial officer - 15.70
Dayanand G S Company Secretary - ‘ 0.63
| Karishma Tyagi, Company Secretary = 2.74
|Akhilesh Thakur, Chief Financial officer 4430 13.90
2 |Retirement benefits (Provident fund and Gratuity) | i
|Alok Banerjee, Chief Executive Officer 8.63 7.86
|Akhilesh Thakur, Chief Financial officer 311 0.53 |
3 ISitting fees | ‘
‘__ | Directors sitting fees to Non-executive Directors 5.60 4.40 |
|Total compensation 187.03 | 195.&
32.4 Year-end balances
Sl. Particulars

No |

Year ended ‘ Year ended ‘

31 March 2025 31 March 2024

1 [Trade receivable

- ‘ 319.69 ‘

| Zuari Infra Middle East Limited
Zuari Infra SIM Properties LLC 1,861.60 56.84
Brajbhumi Nirmaan Private Limited 404.02 ‘ 404.02
| |Zuari Industries Limited - | 1.351.34
| 2 |Expenses Recoverable
Brajbhumi Nirmaan Private Limited 1567.33 157.33
L Zuari [nfra Middle East Limited 2,194.59 2,239.42
3 |Loans to related parties
| Zuarl Infra Middle East Ltd. (including interest accrual) 76,396.44 | 67,924.03
| 4 iLoans from related parties: '
Zuari International Limited 21,057.93 40,107.49
‘ Adventz Finance Private Limited 8,200.00 6,400.00
!_Zuari Industries Limited 6.697.00 | 1,060.75 |
5 |Other year-end balances ‘
| (a) Service Income accrued and not billed
Zuari Infra Middle East Limited - 1,800.00

(b) Payable balance
Zuari Industries Limited

15.64 | -

32.5 Terms and conditions

All transactions with related parties are made on terms equivalent to those that prevail in arm's length transactions and in the normal course

of business.
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33 Financial risk management objectives and policies
The Company’s principal financial liabilities, comprise of loans and borrowings, trade and other payables, security deposits and
employee dues. The main purpose of these financial liabilities is to finance the Company’s operations and to provide guarantees
to support its operations. The Company’s principal financial assets include loans, trade and other receivables and cash and
short-term deposits that derive directly from its operations.

The Company is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company's senior management oversees the
management of these risks. The Company’s senior management is supported by the finance team that advises on financial risks
and the appropriate financial risk governance framework for the Company. Further, the company is primarily operating in the real
estate sector which is subject to The Real Estate (Regulation and Development) Act, 2016 (RERA).

33.

-

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market
prices. Market risk comprises three types of risk: interest rate risk, currency risk and other price risk, such as equity price risk
and commodity risk. Financial instruments affected by market risk include loans and borrowings, deposits and investments in
mutual funds.

(i) Interestrate risk:
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in
market interest rates. The Company’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the Company’s
long-term debt obligations with floating interest rates.

The Company manages its interest rate risk by having a balanced portfolio of fixed and variable rate loans and borrowings. Loan
facility from Bajaj Finance Ltd. is subject to floating rate of interest based on RBI Repo Rate, while the borrowings from the
related entities carry interest at a fixed rates.

Interest sensitivity analysis Outstanding | Increase/ | Effect on profit |
Loan facility decrease in before tax
| subjectto | basis points

floating rates ! ‘

For the year ended 31 March 2025 | _
Increase in base points 15,500.00 | +50 | 77.50
| Decrease in base points 15,500.00 -50 ‘ (77.50)
For the year ended 31 March 2024 -
Increase in base points | % | +50 | .
-50 ' g

| Decrease in base points | |

(ii) Foreign currency risk:
Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate because of changes in
foreign exchange rates. The Company's exposure to the risk of changes in foreign exchange rates relates primarily to the
Company's operating activities (when revenue or expense is denominated in a foreign currency) and the Company’s net
investments in foreign subsidiaries.

(iii) Equity price risk
The Company's non-listed equity securities are susceptible to market price risk arising from uncertainties about future values of
the investment securities. The Company’s Board of Directors reviews and approves all Investment decisions.

VPV & Co
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33.2 Credit risk

(i)

(ii)

Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract, leading to a
financial loss. The Company is exposed to credit risk from its operating activities (primarily trade receivables) and from its
financing activities, including deposits with banks and financial institutions, foreign exchange transactions and other financial
instruments.

Trade receivables

Sale of units (Plots, Villas/ Villaments & Apartments):

Customer credit risk is managed by "CRM team" subject to the Company's established policy, procedures and control relating to
customer credit risk management. Outstanding customer dues with respect to Customers demands are regularly monitored for
proactive actions.

Development Management Fees:

Apart from real estate activities, the Company also provides Project Development services. The Trade Receivables includes
dues from these activities aggregated to Rs.1,861.60 lakhs (Previous year Rs 319.69 lakhs).

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date on an individual basis for these entities. The Company does not hold
collaterals as security. The Company evaluates the concentration of risk with respect to trade receivables as Nil, as its
customers are related and are part of the same group and with respect of sale of flats & villas the sale deed is executed only
after the realisation.

33.3 Liquidity risk

The Company monitors its risk of a shortage of funds regularly and is directly monitored by CFO of the company .
The Company's objective is to maintain balance between continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of bank loans and
Debt Preference Shares.

The management expects to renew/rollover all of the short term debts/borrowings that are falling due in next 12 months. Further
the Company is confident of increased operational cash inflows from bookings of flats/villas/apartments and is also ensured of
continued support from its Holding/ Associates Companies and the Promoters.

The management also obtained consent from the preference shareholders for extension of the redemption of preference shares
which are due for redemption on 31 March 2025. These preference shares are now due for redemption on 31 March 2029.

33.4 Capital Management

For the purpose of the Company's capital management, capital includes issued equity capital, share premium and all other
equity reserves attributable to the equity holders of the parent. The primary objective of the Company's capital management is to
ensure their ability to continue as going concern and maximise the shareholder value.

The company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in economic conditions and the
requirements of the financial covenants. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the company may adjust the dividend
payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares. The company monitors capital using a gearing
ratio, which is net debt divided by total capital plus net debt.
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The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Company’s financial liabilities based on contractual

undiscounted payments as at 31 March 2025:

Particulars ' Ondemand = <3 month 3to12months 1to3 years > 3 years Total
Borrowings -
(Incl. Debt portion of

Preference Shares) - 16,648.17 11,050.00 52,549.93 5,226.60 85,474.70
| Trade payables 36.58 195.92 170.56 377.86 2.51 783.43
'Lease liabilities - - = = | - -
Other financial liabilities - 886.93 | - | = | . 886.93
| Total ! 36.58  17,731.02 | 11,220.56 52,927.79 5,229.11 87,145.06

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Company’s financial liabilities based on contractual

undiscounted payments as at 31 March 2024:

Particulars Ondemand | <3 month |3to12 monthsi 1 to 3 years | > 3 years Total
Borrowings ‘ 11,528.54 ‘ . 14,399.64 50,168.25 1,145.00 77,241.43
(Incl. Debt portion of
Preference Shares) | ‘ !
Trade payables ‘ 182.64 | 292.10 193.06 185.15 125.83 978.78 |
Lease liabilities l - | 24.89 94.29 - | - 119.18
Other financial liabilities - 39.30 99.09 - | = 138.39
| Total | 11,711.17 | 356.29 14,786.08 50,353.40 1,270.83 78,477.77
VSPV & Co.
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34 Fair values
Set out below, is a comparison by class of the carrying amounts and fair value of the financial instruments

Financial Assets

|Particulars Carrying value

As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024

Financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss

Loan to Subsidiary 76,396.45 67,924.03
Financial assets carried at cost

Interest accrued and not due 0.05 0.30
Expenses Recoverable - Related parties 2,351 92 2,396.75
Preference Shares held in Associate Company 550.00 550.00
Unbilled Revenue - Service contracts - 1,800.00
Security deposits 31.00 31.00
Trade Receivables 2,270.76 2,410.66
Cash and bank balances 221.67 663.79
Advance to employees 1.38 5.76
Investments in Associate 1,896.16 1,896.16
Security deposits 150.72 37.86
Total 83,870.11 77,716.32

Financial liabilities
Particulars

Financial liabilities carried at fair value through profit or loss

Carrying value
As at 31 March 2024

As at 31 March 2025

Preference shares (debt portion) 1,145.00 1,145.00
Lease liability including current portion - 119.18
Financial liabilities carried at cost

Security deposit towards sub lease - (26.72)
Inter corporate deposits 27,754.93 48,128.15
Current maturity of long term loans 750.00 -
Other deposits 44.29 14.96
Dues to employees 92.64 123.43
Trade payables 783.44 978.78
Total 30,570.30 50,482.77

Other Notes:

The management assessed that cash and cash equivalents, other bank balances, trade receivables, retention money, inter corporate
deposits, loan to related party and trade payables approximate their carrying amounts largely due to the short-term maturities of these
instruments. The fair value of the financial assets and liabilities is included at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in
a current transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale.
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(ii.) The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair values:
(a.) The fair values of the unquoted Preference shares have been estimated using a DCF model and considering the future cash outflow
in this regard, based on a independent valuation . The valuation requires management to make certain assumptions about the model
inputs, including forecast cash flows, discount rate, credit risk and volatility. The probabilities of the various estimates within the range can
be reasonably assessed and are used in management's estimate of fair value for these unquoted Preference shares.

(b.) The fair values of the Company's interest-bearing borrowings and loans approximates to their carrying amounts i.e., cost as at the
end of the reporting year. The own non-performance risk as at reporting was assessed to be insignificant.

35 Fair Hierarchy
The following table provides the fair value measurement hierarchy of the Company’s assets and liabilities.

Quantitative disclosures fair value measurement hierarchy for assets:

|Assets: Total Quoted prices in | Significant Significant
active markets observable inputs | unobservable inputs |

| . (Level 1) | (Level 2) | (Level 3)
|Preference shares held in Associate 550.00 =i - 550.00 |
(550.00) | 5 - (550.00)

(i} Amounts in the parenthesis represent previous year.

(i.) There have been no transfers between Level 1 and Level 3 during the year.

This space has been intentionally left blank
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36

(ii.)

(iii.)

(iv.)

Gratuity (Employment benefit plan)

As at 31 March 2025 _
Non-current |
27.60 |

Particulars
I Current .
Value of Plan - Gratuity (Un-Funded) o 36.91

Gratuity:

Asat31M
Current

arch 2024
Non-current

3153

29.35

The Company has a defined benefit gratuity plan. Every employee who has completed five years or more of service gets gratuity on
departure at 15 days salary (last drawn salary) for each completed year of service.

The following tables summarise the components of net benefit expense recognised in the statement of profit or loss and the funded

status and amounts recognised in the balance sheet for the respective plans:

Net employee benefit expense (recognized in Employee Cost) for the year ended:

Particulars As at | As at
, 31March2025 = 31March 2024 |
|Current Service Cost - 5.73 - 5.38
|Net Interest Cost 4.35 3.82 |
'Expense recognised in profit and loss statement 10.08 9.20 |
Actuarial (gain)/loss on obligation: -
PParticulars As at | As at |
B 31 March 2025 31 March 2024 |
(Gain)/loss from change in demographic assumptions (0.30)| 5.60
(Gain)/loss from change in financial assumptions 1.15 | 1.32
 Experience (gains) / losses 1.64 | (0.72)]
Total actuarial (gain)/loss 2.48 6.20
Other comprehensive income
Particulars As at As at
B 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
|Actuarial (Gain)/Loss recognized for the period 2.48 6.27‘
‘Total Actuarial (Gain)/Loss recognized in (OCI) 248 6.20
Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation are, as follows:
\Particulars As at As at |
31 March 2025 31 March 2024 |
Opening defined obligation B 60.88 | 51.16 ‘
Current service cost 573 | 5.38 |
Interest cost 4.35 3.82
| Contribution paid (8.94) (5.67)|
Actuarial (gain)/ loss on obligations , 248 6.20 |
Defined benefit obligation | 64.51 | 60.88 |
The principal assumptions used in determining gratuity obligations for the Company's plans are shown below:
Particulars As at As at ]
] 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
|Mortality 100 % of IALM 2012-14(100 % of IALM 2012-14
Interest / Discount Rate 6.55% 7.15% 4‘
Rate of increase in compensation 5.00% 5.00%
Expected average remaining service _ 4.55 14.28 !
Benefit of normal retirement considered as per Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972 ! Rs. 20 Lakhs _ Rs.20Lakhs |
Employee Attrition Rate (Past Service) | PS:0to18years: PS:Oto 18years: |
| 18.13% | 23%
PS:18to30years: | PS: 1810 30 years : ‘
18.13% 23%

PS:30to42years:

18.13%
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(vi.)

(vii.

~

37
37.1

37.2

37.3

A quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant assumption as at the reporting date is as shown below:

‘Gratuity Plan As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2025
Assumptions Discount rate Future salary increases
Sensitivity Level +1% increase -1% decrease +1% increase ~ -1% decrease
{Impact on defined benefit obligation 66.94 62.27 62.40 | 66.77
Gratuity Plan | As at 31 March 2024 As at 31 March 2024
Assumptions Discount rate Future salary increases
Sensitivity Level +1% increase -1% decrease +1% increase -1% decrease
Impact on defined benefit obligation 62.72 59.16 50.29 62.57

The sensitivity analyses above have been determined based on a method that extrapolates the impact on defined benefit obligation as a
result of reasonable changes in key assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting period.

The following payments are expected contributions to the defined benefit plan in future years:

|Particulars As at As at

31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Within the next 12 months 27.60 29.35
Between 2 and 5 years 26.88 27.24
Between 5 and 10 years 29.53 19.72
Total expected payments 84.02 76.31 "

Note: The above disclosures are based on the valuation report by an independent actuary and relied upon by the auditors.

Segment Information

Information regarding Operating Segment Reporting as per Ind AS-108

The Chief Financial Officer monitors the operating results of its business units separately for the purpose of making decisions about
resource allocation and performance assessment. Accordingly, the Company has identified only one segment i.e., real estate sector as
its reportable segment for the purpose of Ind AS 108.

Real Estate segment (RE) is into development, sale, management and operation of all or any part of townships, housing projects,
including leasing of self owned commercial premises and also rendering development management services and thus entire business
has been considered as a single operating component by the Management.

The following table presents assets and liabilities information for the Company’s operating segments as at year end:
Geographical information Non-current assets Revenue from operations
As at As at for the year ended for the year ended
| 31 March2025 31 March 2024 31 March 2025 31 March 2024

India 579.18 357.80 1,203.99 5,435.46
Outside India (Dubai) - - - 900.00

579.18 357.80 1,203.99 6,335.46
Note:

Non-current assets disclosed above are excluding Investment in subsidiaries & Associates, financial instruments, deferred tax assets,
post-employment benefit assets etc.

Revenue from the customers contributing more than 10% of the total revenue are given below:

There are no customers who individually contribute more than 10% of the total revenue of the Company. Accordingly, no disclosures has
been made in this regard.
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38 Disaggregation of revenue

'Particulars For the year ended 31 March 2025 | For the year ended 31 March 2024
‘ India Outside India India Outside India

Sale of residential units 1,199.19 - 4,192.90 -
-Development management fees 4.80 - 2,142.56 -
Sales Commission on sale of plots/residential units - - - =
Total 1,203.99 - 6,335.46 -

39 Accounts of most of the trade payables, trade receivables, loans & advances and customer advances are subject to confirmation and
management does not except any material adjustments had the confirmation were received. In the opinion of the Management none of the
assets, other than property plant and equipment, have a value lower on realisation in the ordinary course of business than the amount at
which they are stated in these financial statements.

Signatures to notes 1-2 & 29-39
The accompanying notes form an integral part of the standalone financial statements
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